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DIRECTORS” REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty-Sixth (36th] Annual Report on the business and operation
of the Company together with Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ending March 31st, 2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rin Lakhs
Consolidated Standalone

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Total Revenue 28,814.95 30,097.49 28,814.95 30,094.05
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 2,377.24 2,269.00 2,307.33 2,174.43
Exceptional Items 152.99 - 152.99 -
Provision for Tax 641.80 769.89 634.25 766.06
Profit After Tax (PAT] 1,888.43 1,499.11 1,826.07 1,408.37
Other Compreensive Income (Net of Tax) 3.51 75.84 3.51 75.84
Total Comprehensive Income 1,891.94 1,574.95 1,829.58 1,484.21
for the period
Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve 1,600.00 1,400.00 1,600.00 1,400.00
Surplus carried to the next (205.77) (347.26) 181.54 102.41
year's account




OVERVIEW OF COMPANY PERFORMANCE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

2019-2020 has been a challenging year with unfavorable macros, slowdown in industrial activities and the COVID-19
Pandemic. Your company has however managed to remain stable in face of all adversaries by shifting its focus to
introducing newer and better products in the market, diversify its product portfolio to make it more in line with Global PPE
needs, improve profitability and build a universal brand of superior quality products. 3,338.32

During the year under consideration your
company's continuing focus on strengthening
its front end operations, has achieved a
Standalone Income of Rs. 28,814.95 Lakhs
and profit after tax of Rs. 1,826.07 Lakhs as
against Rs. 30,094.05 Lakhs and Rs. 1,408.38
Lakhs respectively for the previous year. The
Consolidated Income and Profit after tax of
the company for the year was Rs. 28,814.95
Lakhs and Rs. 1,888.43 Lakhs as against Rs.
30,097.49 Lakhs and Rs. 1,499.27 Lakhs
respectively for the previous year.

I EBIDTA I NET PROFIT 3,032.04
2,337.47
2,161.70
1,839.68 I

763.42 921.92 982.49 1,408.37 1,826.07

2015-16 = 2016-17 2017-18  2018-19 = 2019-20
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SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31st, 2020 was Rs. 624.00 Lakh. During the year under
review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock

options or sweat equity.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

Your Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 1600.00 Lakhs to the General Reserve for the financial year

ended March 31st, 2020.

DIVIDEND

Your Board has recommend dividend
of Rs. 2.00 per share for the financial
year ended March 31st, 2020 i.e.,
20% on an Equity Share of Rs. 10
each. The dividend if approved by the
shareholders at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting shall be paid to
those shareholders, whose names
appear in the Register of Members
as on Book Closure Date. Total
dividend of 20% for the year 2019-20
would absorb Rs. 124.80 Lakhs.

27,585.50 30,094.05 28,814.95
26,101.24 24.910.98
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TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend which remains unpaid or unclaimed for
a period of seven years from the date of its transfer to unpaid/ unclaimed dividend account is required to be transferred
by the Company to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), established by the Central Government under the
provisions of Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act,
2013, your Company has transferred Rs. 15765.60/- during the year to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. This
amount was lying unclaimed/ unpaid with the Company for a period of 7 (Seven] years after declaration of Final Dividend
for the Financial Year ended 2011-12. 11.59

Further, during the year, the Company
has transmitted 916 Equity Shares of
the Company into the DEMAT Account
of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL
in terms of the provisions of Section
124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the IEPF Authority [Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund] Rules, 2016, as
amended from time

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

I EBIDTA % TO REVENUE
I NET PROFIT % TO REVENUE



N
malicom;
4

to time. These Equity Shares were the Shares of such 10 Shareholders whose unclaimed/ unpaid dividend pertaining to
Financial Year 2011-12 had been transferred into IEPF and who had not encashed their dividends for 7 (Seven)
subsequent Financial Years. Individual reminders were sent to concerned Shareholders advising them to encash their
dividend and the complete List of such Shareholders whose Shares were due for transfer to the IEPF was also placed on
the website of the Company www.mallcom.in. Concerned Shareholders may still claim the shares or apply for refund to
the IEPF Authority in Web Form No. IEPF-5 available on www.iepf.gov.in.

The voting rights on shares transferred to the IEPF Authority shall remain frozen until the rightful owner claims the
shares. The shares held in such DEMAT account shall not be transferred or dealt with in any manner whatsoever except
for the purposes of transferring the shares back to the claimant as and when he approaches the Authority. All benefits
except rights issue accruing on such shares e.g. bonus shares, split, consolidation, fraction shares etc., shall also be
credited to such DEMAT account. Any further dividend received on such shares shall be credited to the IEPF Fund.

167.36

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 140 45

AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY. 119.15
. . . 103.38

No material changes and commitments affecting the 90.78

financial position of the Company occurred between

the end of the financial year to which this financial

statements relate and the date of this Report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the

company. Your Company continues to be one of the leading

Personal Protective Equipment Manufacturer in the
country. 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

I Book Value (Rs. Per Share)



SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

The Company has two subsidiary companies namely Mallcom VSFT Gloves Pvt. Ltd. and Mallcom Safety Pvt. Ltd. The
Company regularly monitors the performance of these companies.

The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the period ended 31st March, 2020, includes the Profit and Loss Account for
the subsidiaries for the complete Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company including all subsidiaries duly audited by the statutory auditors are presented in the Annual Report. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in strict compliance with applicable Accounting Standards and
where applicable, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as prescribed by the

Securities and Exchange Board of India.

A Report on Performance and Financial Position of
each of the Subsidiaries in Form AOC—1, is annexed
herewith as Annexure — A of this report. The annual
accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related
detailed information shall be made available to
Shareholders of the Company upon request and it
shall also be made available on the website of the
Company at www.mallcom.in. The annual accounts of
the subsidiary companies shall also be kept for
inspection by any shareholder in the head office of the
Company and the respective offices of its subsidiary
companies.

The policy for determining material subsidiaries as
approved may be accessed from the Company website
at the www.mallcom.in.

Debt Equity Ratio (Times)

1.55
1.32
1.21 1.15
l l !

201516 2016-17 201718 2018-19  2019-20
m Debt Equity Ratio (Times)
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association of the
company, Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall [DIN 01043022), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for the
consideration of the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 17(1)(c) of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015, the Board of
Directors of Top 2000 listed entities by market
capitalisation must consist of a minimum of 6
Directors. Accordingly, The Board upon the 1.80
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, w.e.f. 1st April,
2020, appointed as Additional Directors, Mr.
Arindam Bose (DIN: 05202786) (Non-Executive
Non-Independent] and Mr. Gaurav Kumar
Choudhary  (DIN:01729690)  (Non-Executive
Independent] to hold office till the ensuing
AGM. The Board recommends their
appointment as Directors for the approval by
the Shareholders of the Company at the
ensuing AGM. The Company has received
consent in writing from both to act as Director

in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-8 to

the effect that they are not disqualified u/s

164(2) to act as Directors.

Current Ratio

10
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All Independent directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b] of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation 2015. In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors of the Company possess the attributes of
integrity, expertise and experience as required.

During the year under review, no other changes took place in the Board of Directors except retire by rotation and further
re-appointment of Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

A Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 obtained from M/s. Rakhi Dasgupta and Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries has been annexed as Annexure - D of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5]) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm that:

Earning Per Share

al  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the FY 2015-16
year ended March 31st, 2020 the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along ~ FY 2016-17
with proper explanation relating to material

FY 2017-18
departures;

bl They have selected such accounting policies and FY 2018-19
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reason able and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the company for the year; Il Seriesl

FY 2019-20 29.26

11
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c)  They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d]  They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e] They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company that are adequate and were
operating effectively.

f]  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable laws and these
are adequate and are operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Board of Directors of

the Company, met 4 (Four] times on 25th May, 2019, 13th . .

August, 2019, 12th November, 2019, 10th February, 2020. Retained Profit 1826.07
Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the 1408.37
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 982.49

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate 929.44
Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was 763.42

held on 10th February, 2020, without the presence of

Non-Independent  Directors and members of the ‘
management, to review the performance of Non-Independent

Directors and the Board as a whole, the performance of the 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Chairperson of the company and to assess the quality,

quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the

Company management and the Board.
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COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has
adopted a terms of reference which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of Director and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company. The NRC recommends appointment of Director, Chief Executive Officer and Manager based on
their qualifications, expertise, positive attributes and independence in accordance with prescribed provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. The NRC is responsible for identifying and recommending persons
who are qualified to become directors or part of senior management of the Company. Remuneration Policy for the
members of the Board and Executive Management has been framed, the said policies earmark the principles of
remuneration and ensure a well balanced and performance related compensation package taking into account
shareholders’ interest, industry practices and relevant corporate regulations in India. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies” tab.

BOARD EVALUATION 12000 Shareholders Fund in last 5 years:
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation

17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015, the formal annual evaluation was carried out

for the Board's own performance, its committee & Individual
directors. Board Evaluation provides an opportunity to remind 8000
directors of the importance of group dynamics and effective
board and committee processes in fulfilling board and committee 6000
responsibilities. The evaluation sets the standards of
performance and improves the culture of collective action by 4000+
Board. It also improves teamwork by creating better understating
of Board dynamics, board-management relations and thinking 2000+
as a group within the board. The manner and detail in which
0 T T T T

evaluation was carried out is stated in the Corporate Governance
Report which is annexed and forms a part of this report. - Ser?ggi)-w 2016-17 201r-18  2018-18  2019-20

10000

“w

rI'
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company’s code of conduct is based on principle that business should be conducted in a professional manner with
honesty and integrity and thereby enhancing the reputation of the Company. The Code ensures lawful and ethical conduct
in all affairs and dealings of the Company. The Company’s Policy on Code of Conduct is available on the website of the
Company at www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies” tab.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of 3 (Three] Members, namely Mr. R.P. Singh, Mr.
Giriraj Mall and Dr. Barsha Khattry. Two-third of them being Independent Directors and the other Non-Executive Director. Mr.
R.P. Singh, an Independent Director, was the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Board accepted the recommendations
of the Audit Committee whenever made by the

Committee during the year. Further details about Reserves & Surplus

the committee and its operations are provided in the 10000.00 —
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of '
the Annual Report and is annexed to this report. 8000.00 —
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 6000.00 -
A copy of the Annual Return of the Company
S . . 4000.00 -
containing the particulars prescribed u/s 92 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as they stood on the 2000.00
close of the financial yeari.e. 31st March, 2020 —_ — — e
is furnished in ANNEXURE - B and forms part 0.00 T T T T f
of this Report. 2015-16  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the members of
the Company in its 32nd Annual General Meeting approved the appointment of M/s. S. K. Singhania & Co, Chartered
Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing 36th AGM.

The Report given by M/s. S. K. Singhania & Co, Chartered Accountants, on the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 forms part of this Annual Report. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer
in their Report. During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act.

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors in their meeting heald on 31st
July, 2020 have proposed appointment of M/s. S. K. Singhania & Co, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors to
hold office for a second term of 5 (Five] years from the conclusion of the 36th AGM till the conclusion of the 41st
AGM. The Board recommends their appointment for consideration of the Members of the Company at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE ON MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company made and maintained the Cost Records under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) for
the Financial Year 2019-20.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company had appointed M/s. Rakhi Dasgupta & Associates, Company Secretaries
in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit report
forms part of this Report as Annexure — C-1. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
and adverse remark.

Further, the Secretarial Audit Reports of the Company’s unlisted subsidiaries for the financial year 2019-20 forms part of
this Report as Annexure - C-2

15
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Further, pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Secretarial Audit Reports of the Companies material unlisted subsidiaries for the financial year 2019-20 forms part of this
Report as Annexure - C-2

A Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 on compliance of all applicable SEBI
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, was obtained from M/s. Rakhi Dasgupta & Associates,
Secretarial Auditors, and duly submitted to BSE Ltd.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

The Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements]
Regulation, 2015 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business and the provision of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder are not attracted. Thus, disclosure in form AOC—2 in terms of Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013
is not required. Further, there are no material related party transactions during the year under review with the
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel. The Company’s policy on Related Party Transaction is available
on the website of the Company at www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies” tab.

The details of related party disclosure under the relevant accounting standard from part of the notes to the financial
statement provided in the Annual Report.

DEPOSIT

During the financial year under review, the company did not accept any deposit covered under Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under, the Directors have constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. As part of its initiative under Corporate Social Responsibility, the company
has contributed for the purpose of scheme as provided in CSR Policy.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies” tab and
further details about the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR during the year under review have been
appended in Annexure - E to this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management's Discussion and Analysis forms part of this annual report and is annexed to this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt good corporate governance practices. The report on Corporate Governance for the
financial year ended March 31st 2020, as per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms a part of this Annual Report. The requisite Certificate from Practicing
Company Secretary for confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management has always been an integral part of the corporate strategy which complements the organizations
capabilities with business opportunities, robust planning and execution. structured risk management system permits
the management to take calibrated risks, which provides a holistic view of the business, wherein risks are identified in a
structured manner from Top down to Bottom up approach. A key factor in sustainable value is the risk that the company
is willing to take and its ability to manage them effectively In line with new regulatory requirements, the Company has
framed a Risk Management Policy to identify the key risk areas, monitor and report compliance and effectiveness
Appropriate actions pursuant to the Policy from time to time are taken to mitigate adverse impact of various Risks which
may adversely affect the performance of the Company. The Risk Management Policy of the Company may be accessed
on the Company's website www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies” tab.

17
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ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has robust Internal Financial Controls Systems in place commensurate with the size and nature of its
business, which facilitates orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to Company’s policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The internal control system ensures
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and facilitates the optimum utilization of available resources
and protects the interests of all stakeholders. The internal control systems are monitored and evaluated by the
internal auditors and their audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Commitee of the Board at periodic intervals. The
details of the internal control system and adequacy are covered in Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company a Whistle blower policy in place whereby a forum is available for all Employeel(s], business
associate(s] engaged with the Company who can report any fraud, irregularity, wrong doing and unethical
behaviour. The Policy provides that the Company investigate such reported matters in an impartial manner and take
appropriate action to ensure that requisite standards of confidentiality, professional and ethical conduct are always
upheld. Any complaint received under policy is put forward to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Whistle
Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website www.mallcom.in under the "Codes & Policies” tab.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

At Mallcom, our constant endeavour is to establish strong systems and processes that will enable increased
employee engagement, drive right performance behaviours and build capabilities to support organizational growth.
We consider our employees as the most valuable resource and ensure strategic alignment of Human Resource
practices to business priorities and objectives. The Company routinely organises workshops and seminars focussed
on creating a harmonious work environment, promoting ethical practices and strengthening the drive for high level
performance. The company does not have any employee of the category as specified in Rule 5 (2] of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014. Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and
other details as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5 (1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure - F

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, the company has been assigned Long Term Rating of BBB+ (stable) by ICRA Limited.
DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPALCE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL), ACT, 2013.

As per the requirement of the Act, the Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment of women
which provides for the protection of women employees at the workplace and for prevention and redressal of
complaints. The Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website www.mallcom.in under the “Codes & Policies”
tab. During the year no complaints were received.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ASORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts]
Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure — G.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATION

There were no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal during the year
impacting the going concern status and the operations of the Company in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation to employee at all level for their hard work,
dedication and commitment towards Company’s operations and performance. Your Directors also wish to place on
record their gratitude for the valuable assistance and co—operation extended to the Company by the Central
Government, State Governments, banks, institutions, investors and customers.

Date: July 31, 2020 For and on behalf of the Board
Reg. Office:

EN-12, Sector-V Ajay Kumar Mall

Salt Lake City Chairman and Managing Director
Kolkata-700091 (DIN: 00470184)
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Form ADC-1

[Pursuant to Section 129 (3] (1) read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Staternent containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/jeint ventures.
Part A : Subsidiaries

1 Mame of the subsidiary Mallcom safety Pvt. Ltd. Mallcom VSFT Gloves Pyt Ltd.
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary 2019-2020 2019-2020
concerned, if different fram the
halding company's reporting period
3 Reporting Currency And Exchange INR INR
Fate &4s On The Last Date
4 Share Capital 100,00,000 4.89,40,000
g Reserves & Surplus 24969151 3,27.43.205
& Tatal Liabilities 36.60,339 4,80,70,662
7 Total assets 3,86,29,400 12,97 53,8468
a Investment - -
g Turnaver - 8,05,05.699
10 | Profit/ [loss) before taxation [2,14.585.31] 72.07.174
11 Provision for taxation a0 18,080,655
12 Profit/|loss) after taxation (215.395.311 64,50,838
13 Proposed dividend - -
14 % of sharehalding 100 100
Notes:
1. Mames of subsidiaries which are yel lo commmence operations: Not Applicable,
2. Mames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sald during the year: Not Applicable.
For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3022046E
Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership Mo, 52722 [DIM : oo4701 84) [DIN : 01043022)
Flace: Kolkata 5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Date: 29th June, 2020

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
[ACS : 42302)
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Annexure B

FORM NO.MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on March 31 st, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12[1] of the Company [Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

i Registration Date 13th December,1 983
W Category/Sub-category of the Company ublic Company /Limited by shares

wi Wheather listed company

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

1 Manufacturer of Personnel 245 100%
Protective Equipment.

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

1 Mallcorm Safety Pet. Ltd. L1 g200WB2007PTC 20303 Subsidiary 1a0 2187]
Add: EN-12, Sector-V,
Salt Lake City, Kolkata-7000897,
2 | Mallcom VSFT Gloves Pvt, Ltd.  L74999WB2006PTC1 09074 Subsidiary 100 2[87)
Add: EN-12, Sector-V,
Salt Lake City, Kolkata-700091.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN [Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
il Category-wise Share Holding

Category of ‘No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the % Change|
shareholders _of the year 1 end of theyear during
‘Demat | Physical | Total [%ofTotal| Demat | Physical | Total [% of Total| the year
Shares Shares
A. PROMOTERS
{1) Indian
al Individual / HUF 1343020 -

1ada020] 21843 1362543 -l 1382549 21836  -0.007

bl Central Gavernment

¢l State Government

dl Bodies Corporate 242142 -l A 42 51.957 | 324mé6 .| F2ééh 51558 0.0M

e| Banks/ Financial - - . - - - - _ i
Institutions

fi Any Other - - - - : < % _
Sub-total (Al[1] 4605162 -| 4608162 T73.801| 4604709 -| 4604709 73.793 -0.008

(2] Foreign

al NRls - Individuals - - - - - . - B .

bl Other - Individuals - : . = . . ¥ .

t] Badies Corporale = - - - - = Z z -

dl Banks/ Financial - i - = 2 = E _ -
Institutions

e Any Other i i i . . : : . :
Sub-total [A)(2) - . - . - N : = :
Total Shareholding
of Promoter

Al = [AN[1)+[A)2])  |4605162

4605162 73.801| 4604709 4604709 73.792 -0.008

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

1] Institutions

al Mutual Funds - - ; . ] ) _ _ i

bl Banks/ Financial - - ; - - B - - _
Institutions

c|l Central Governments - - - - = - E 5 -

dl State Gavernments

el Wenture Capital Funds
fi  Insurance Companies - - A = 5 F : 3 =

gl Foreign Institutional e z = = = £ B S -
Investors [FI

h] Foreign Venture - - . = - - ] - i
Capital Funds

il Others [Specifyl : - : . 5 ; :
Sub-total (B)1) - - - - - « = G :
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lZI MNon-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporata
il Indian 30684 100 30784 0.493| 30660 . 30660 0.49 -0.002
il Dverseas
b} Individuals

il Individual
shareholders
halding nominal
share capital upto
F=1 lakh 150845 24485 215330 3451 180474 22419 203093 3.285 -0.194

Individual
shareholders
holding naminal
share capital in

excessof Rs1 L 40000 = L0000 0.641 R2245 = LI24AG 0.8a7 0156
¢l Others Specity
1. MR 12007173 - 1eoema|  zoszz| 1300773 -| taoorral  zod4s 0.024
2. Dverseas Corporate

Bodies
3. Foreign Mationals 44950 - 45950 0.752 45950 - 44050 a.752 0,600
4, Clearing Mermbers 240 - 2461 0.03%9 654 - 654 oo -0.029
5. Trusts
&, Foreign Bodies - DR,
7. |EPF Authority f1b - e 0.0t5 05
Sub-tatal [E](2] 1410253 245885 | 16734838 26199 1412872 229 | 143520 26207 0,008
Total Public
Sharehalding [B] =
(Bl 1+BI2] 161 0253 24585 | 1634838 26099 | 1é4287m 2209 | 1635291 26,207 0.008

C. Shares held by
Custoedian for
GORs & ADRs

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) | 6215415 24585 | 6240000 100.000 | 46217581 22419 | 6240000| 100.000 0.000
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

1 | Ajay Kumar Mall 1025320 | 1643 E 1025320 16,431 £ E

2 | Anmol Component Privata

Lirnited 50000 0.8m = 50000 0.801 - -
3 | Chaturbujh Impex Private

Lirited 104700 1.678 - 104700 1.678 - -

Dnb Exim Private Limited 85200 1,367 - 85300 1.367 = -
5 | Giriraj Mall 49300 0.790 - 48823 0.782 - -0.007
& | Kadambini Securities Private

Limited 2189606 35.090 - 2189406 35.090 - -
7 | Karani Dan Malt [Huf) 500 0.008 - 500 0.008 - -
8 | Kiran Deyi Mall 28600 0,458 - 2RA00 0.458 - -
¢ | Mallcam Holdings Private

Limited &1 3600 5.833 - &1.3600 9.833 - -
10| Maovers Constructions Private

Limited B3074 1.344 = BA0D0 1844 = 0.001
11| Praeti Mall 4400 0.071 E 4400 0.071 = E
12| Rahit Mall 3200 0.051 - 3200 0.051 - -
13| Sanjay Kumar Mall 4500 0.104 - 4500 D104 - -
14| Sunita Mall 149200 2.9 - 145200 2.3 = -
15| Surabhi Mall 24000 1.538 - R4000 1.534 - -
14| 55H Enterprises Private

Lirnited 114040 1.842 - 114960 1.842 - -

[Forme riy Vikram Traders

Pyt Ltd.|

TOTAL 4605162 73.801 - L604709 73.793 - -0.008

LSV PP PPPL
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Change in Promoter's Shareholding

AJAY KUMAR MALL

al At the Begining of the Year

1025320

16431

bl Changes during the year

[NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c] At the End of the Year 1025320 144731
ANMOL COMPONENT PRIVATE LIMITED

al At the Begining of the Year RO0O0 0801

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year 50000 .80
CHATURBUJH IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED

al At the Begining of the Year 104700 1.478

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c] AL the End of the Year 104700 1.478
OMB EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year B5300 1.367

b} Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c| At the End of the Year Beaon 1.367
GIRIRAJ MALL

al &t the Begining of the Year 49300 0,750

b] Changes during the year

Date Reason

o&f12/2019 Transfer la77 0.008 48823 0.782
cl| At the End of the Year 48823 0.782
KADAMBINI SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

al A1 the Begining of the Year 2189606 35.090

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c| At the End of the Year 2189506 35.090
KARANI DAN MALL [HUF)

al &t the Begining af the Year 500 0.008

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year 500 0.008
KIRAN DEVI MALL

al At the Begining of the Year 28600 0.458

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

el Al the End of the Year 28400 0.458
MALLCOM HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

al At the Begining of the Year 513600 5.833

b) Changes during the year [ND CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year | | #3600 9.833
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10 | MOVERS CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

a) At the Begining of the Year 81976 1.346

bl Changes during the year

Date Reason

05/04/201 9 Transfer 24 - 84000 1,348

cl| At the End of the Yaar 84000 1.3448
11 | PREETI MALL

al At the Begining of the Year A400 0.am

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl| &t the End of the Year A400 0.071
12 | ROHIT MALL

a) At the Begining of the Year q200 0.051

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

] &1 the End af the Year 3200 0.051
13 | SANJAY KUMAR MALL

al Al the Beqgining of the Year 4500 0.1 04

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

) At the End of the Year 4500 0104
14 | SUNITA MALL

a) At the Begining of the Year 149200 2,39

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year 149200 2.3
15 | SURABHI MALL

a) At the Begining of the Year FH000 1.538

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year g4000 1.538
16 | S5R ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

|Farmerly Vikram Traders Put. Ltd.}

al At the Begining of the Year 114060 1.842

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c| &t the End of the Year 114940 1.842

TOTAL L£605162 73.801 L604T0% 73793
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders [other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs):

SUNo|  For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | Shareholding at the beginning |  Cumulative Shareholding |
No.ofshares | %oftotal | No.ofshares | % of total
the company the company |

1 ARUMN KHERA

al At the Begining of the Year 7E1E 0120

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year 7515 0120
Z HEINRICH GERARDUS CRAMER

al &L the Begining of the Year 46550 0.752

bl Changes during the year [ND CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl| At the End of the Year AB550 0752
3| JAY KUMAR DAGA

a) At the Begining of the Year 1298494 20.809

bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

¢l At the End of the Year 1298494 20.809
4 MANGLA SHANTILAL GADA

al At the Begining of the Year a5e 0338

b) Changes during the year

Date Rea=zaon

07/06/201 9 Transfer 3454 0.059 12245 01094

cl At the End of the Year 12245 0156
g PLUTUS CAPITAL MAMNAGEMEMT LLP

al &t the Begining of the Year 29530 D.473

b] Changes during the year [MO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c] At the End of the Year 29530 0.473
6 | SNGADA .,

al At the Begining of the Year 8342 0134

b] Changes during the year

Date  Reason

19042009 Transfer fl B 01734

c| Al the End of the Year Bt 01734
7 | SARATH SURA

al At the Begining of the Yaar 275 0140

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

cl At the End of the Year | | s 0.149
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8 | SINGH| DINESH KUMAR HUF

al At the Begining of the Year B247 0132
bl Changes during the year
Date Reason
0f12/2019  Transfer B0 0.008 B747 0.1 40
c| At the End of the Year 8747 0140

¢ | SUMIL MANALAL KOTHARI
al At the Begining of the Year T204) 0115
bl Changes during the year
Date Reason
12/o4f2me  Transfer g 0,002 703, 0114
19/04/2019  Transfer (200 0.003 S804 0110
26/04/2%  Transfer [200} 0,005 BEG4 0108
1511209  Transfer l&51 0.001 4529 0105
2o0M22m9  Transfer [100) 0,002 4429 0103
ah2femg  Transfer 1300) 0.005 6129 0.098
0&/03/2020  Transter (87 .00 4042 0.097
cl At the End of the Year 4042 0.097

| ZAKI ABBAS MASSER
al At the Begining of the Year 40000 0.441
b] Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c] At the End of the Year 40000 0.6541
TOTAL 1464148 23.464 1467139 23.512

PIIIPII>D)2
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

1| AJAY KUMAR MALL
al Al the Begining of the Year 1025320 16431
bl Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
cl At the End of the Year 1025320 16431
2 | GIRIRAJ MALL
al At the Bagining of the Year 49300 0.790
bl Changes during the year
Date Reason
06/12/20 9 Transfer l477] 0.008 48823 0.782
cl At the End of the Year 48823 0.782
TOTAL 10745620 17.221 1074143 17.214

V. INDEBTEDNESS

i| Principal Amaunt

452,939,232

Indebtedness af the Campany including interest cutstanding/accrued but not due for payment

ii] Interest due but not paid

1459154

ii] Interest accrued but not due

Total (+ii+iii)

Additions

. 1 3.11 BBe77

4,54,398,386

Net Change -

il Principal Armount

[129.390.902)

323,548,330

Reduction 151,05.79.479 =

ii] Interest due but not paid 1,042,318 -
iii] Interest accrued but not die - -
Total [i+ii+iii] 324,590,648 -
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager

[¥in Lakhs)

Sk No. |

Total Amount

1

Gross salary

Mr. Ajay Humar Mall
[Managing Director]

[zl Salary as per provisions contained in section 171
of the Incame Tax, 1941

3B.66

38.00

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 1712] of the Income tax
Act, 194

[c} Profits in lieu of satary under section 1713) of the

Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock option

Sweat Equity

Commission:

as % of profit

others {specify]

Others, please specify

Total [A)

3B.66

38.66

Ceiling as per the Act

5% of the Net Profit of the Company

B. Remuneration to other Director

SL. No. |

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

| Fin Lakhs)

1

Independent Directors

Mr.R.P. Singh Cr. Barsha Khattry

[al Fee far attending board & committee meetings

0.36 0.48

0.84

o] Commission

[c] Others, please specify

Total 1)

0.356 0.48

0.84

Other Mon Executive Directars

Mr.Girira) Kumar =
Mall

[al Fee for attending board committes meetings

[&) Cammission

[c] Others, please specify

Total [2)

Total [B)=[1+2)

0.3 0.48

0.84

Total Managerial Remuneration

0.36 0.48

0.84

ERP2 2D,
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD

| Tin Lakhs)

Gross Salary CED Company CFO
Secretary

[a] Salary as per provisions contained in
section 1701 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. - 415 14.00 1815

(bl Value of perquisites ufs 17[2] of the
Incame Tax Act, 19481 - - - -

le) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Incame Tax Act, 1961 - = - -

2 Stack Option - 5 = z
3 Sweat Equity _ _ - -
& Commission = = = S
as % af profit = z - =
others, specify , ) - )
5 Others, please specify = = = _
Total - £.15 14.00 18.15

Vil. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

The details of penalties, punishments, compounding of offences far the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows :

1. COMPANY
PENALTY : : : . :
PUNISHMENT . - . . .
COMPOUNDING : - : : 3

2. DIRECTORS
PENALTY - - - E 5
PUNISHMENT - = : = :
COMPOUNDING - . . - .

3. OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT
PENALTY z : : 2 =
PUNISHMENT . - - - -
COMPOUNDING : - B = =

For and on behalf of the Board

Ajay Kumar Mall

Place: Kolkata Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 31st July, 2020 (DIM:Do4701 B4
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Annexure C-1

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 20401 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule Nao. ¢ of the Companies
[Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)] Rules, 201 4]

Ta,
The Members,
MALLCOM (INDIA) LIMITED,

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MALLCOM (INDIA) LIMITED |hereinafter called the company|. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion
thereon.

Eased on my verification of the Company's, Mallcom (Indial Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and ather records maintained by the company and alseo the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinian, the company has, during

the audit period covering the linancial year ended on 317 March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Mallcom [Indial
Limited ["The Company”| for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020, according to the provisions af:

{il  The Companies Act, 201 3 {the Act] and the rules made there undar;
fil  The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1956 ['SCRA} and the rules made there under;
liill  The Depositorees Act, 1994 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under,

fiv] Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Diract
Investment, Overseas Direct |Investment and External Commercial borrowings;

vl The foltowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Szcurities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEBI
Act']:

[al The Securities and Exchange Board of India |Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeavers| Requlations, 2011;
bl The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prehibitien of Insider Trading] Regulations, 1992,

[c}  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements| Regulations, 2009; NOT
APPLICABLE

[dl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Employee Stock Option Scherne and Employes Stock Purchase Scheme|
Guidelines, 1999, NOT APPLICABLE

[zl  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India |Issue and Listing of Dabt Securities| Regulations, 2008; NOT APPLICABLE

[fl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents! Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

[l  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares| Regulations, 200%; NOT APPLICABLE and
[hi  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of Securities| Regulations, 1998; NOT APPLICABLE

[} The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Dhli?atinn and Disclosure Requirements| Regulation, 2015,
|hereinafter referred to as as "Listing Requlation, 2015"];

vil  Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India:

DIDI>>>>220 33
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|, having regard to the compliance System existing in the Company and on the basis of my examination of the documents and
records maintainad in pursuance thereof, report that the company has complied with the fallowing laws applicable specifically
to the company:

1

r e S S LR R T

-
=t -

12,
13
14
15,

Factories Act, 1948

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Employee's Compensation Act,t 923[Earlier known as Workmen's Campensation Act,1993]

The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Act, 1952

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

Employess’ State Insurance |General] Regulations, 1950 and Employees’ State Insurance [Centrall Rules, 1950
The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Rules made thereunder

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1948

The Maternity Benefit Act,1961 and subsequent amendments thereof

Equal Rermuneration Act, 1974

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressall Act, 201 3 and Sexual Harassment
of Waomen at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013

Competition Act, 2002

Environment Protection Act, 1984 and Envirenment Protection Rules, 1986

The &ir [Prevention & Contral of Pollution] Act, 1981 and Rules made thereunder
The Water [Prevention & Control of Pallution] &ct, 1974 and Rules made thereunder

Management's Responsibility:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My respansibility is to express
an opinion on the basis of my Secretarial Audit based on the secretarial records provided to me by the management;

| have followed the appropriate Audit Practices and the processes to obtain a reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the content of the records, The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that the facts are correctly reflected
on the records.

| have not verified the correctness and the appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of evenis,

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, requlations, standards is the responsibility
of management. My examination was limited te the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit regort is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectivenass with which the management has canducted the affairs of the Company.

Recommendations:

| report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines and Standards mentioned above.

| further report that, there were no events / actions in pursuance of:-

al

b

cl

34

The Securilies and Exchange Board of India [Issue and Listing of Debl Securities]
Regulations, 2008; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Delisting of Eguity Shares| Raqulations, 2009
The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements]

Regulations, 2018, requiring compliance thersof by the Company during the audit period
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| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directars,
Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directars. The changes [if any] in the composition of the Board aof Directors that
look place during the period under review were carried oul in compliance wilh the provisions of Lhe Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda itemns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

&s per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and na dissenting views have been recorded,

| further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the review
of the compliance certificates [ reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to manitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

| further report that, based on the information provided by the Company during the period under review and also an the
review of guarterly compliance reparts by the Company Secretlary taken on record by the Board aof Directors of the Company,
in my opinion, adeguate systems and processes and cantrol mechanism exist in the Caompany to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable general laws,

| further report that, during the Audit Period under review, the Campany has not incurred any specific event/ action that
can have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, et

For Rakhi Dasgupta & Assciates
Company Secrataries
Firm Registration Mo, 5201 ¢WE6H2200

ACS No, 28739
Place: Kolkata CP Mo, 20354
Cated: June 15th, 2020 UM : ADZB73980003427 34
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Annexure C-2

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant ta Section 204(1] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule Mo. ¢ of the Companies
|Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 201 4]

Ta,
The Membars
MALLCOM SAFETY PRIVATE LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MALLCOM SAFETY PRIVATE LIMITED [hereinafter called the company|. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and exprassing my
Dpinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s, Mallcom Safety Private Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
autharized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 * March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Campany has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minule books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Mallcom Safety
Private Limited ["The Company’] far the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020, according to the provisions of;

il TheCompanies Act, 2013 [the Act] and the rules made there under;
[il]  The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1956 ['SCRA’| and the rules made there under; Not Applicable
li)  The Depositories Act, 19946 and the Requlations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

[v]  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and Lthe rules and requlations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Cornmercial borrowings: Not Applicable

[v]  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1492 ['SEBI
Act']:- Mot Applicable

[a]l  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers] Regulations, 2011;
[b]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India |Prohibition of Insider Trading] Regulatians, 1952,
lel  The Securities and Exchange Board of India |Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements| Requlations, 2009;

[d]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stack Purchase Scheme|
Guidelines, 1999;

[e]  The Securities and Exchange Board of Indiz |Issue and Listing of Debt Securities] Regulations, 2008;

[fl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents| Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing withclient;

gl The Securities and Exchangs Board of India | Delisting of Equity Shares| Requlations, 2009; and
Rl The Securities and Exchange Board of India |Buyback of Securities| Regulations, 1998;

lil  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements| Regqulation, 2015,
[hereinalter referred Lo as as “Listing Regulation, 2015°];

[vi] Secretarial Standards1 &2 asissued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
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|, having regard to the compliance System existing in the Company and on the basis of my examination of the documents and
records maintained in pursuance thereof, report that the company has complied with the fallowing laws applicable specifically
to the campany:

Factories Act, 1948

2. The Minimum Wages Act, 1548

3. The Employee's Compensation Act,923(Earlier known as Workman's Compensation Act,1993]

&, The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Act, 1952

5. The Employees” State Insurance Act, 1948

4. Employees' State Insurance (Generall Requlations, 1950 and Employees’ State Insurance [Central] Rules, 1950

7. The Paymen! of Gratuily Acl, 1972 and Rules made thereunder

8. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1948

2. The Private Securities Agencies Regulations Act, 2005

10, The Maternity Benefit Act 1961 and subsequent amendments thereof

1. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

12, Sexual Harassment of Women at Werkplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013 and Sexual Harassment
of Women at Warkplace |Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal| Rules, 2013

13 Competition Act, 2002

14 Environment Protection Act, 192B4 and Environment Protection Rules, 1284

15.  The Air |Prevention & Control of Pallution] &ct, 1981 and Rules made thereunder

16 The Waler [Prevention & Contral of Pallution] &ct, 1974 and Rules made thereunder

Management's Responsibility:

1L Maintenance of secretanial record is the respansibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express
anopinion on the basis of my Secretarial Audit based on the secretarial records pravided to me by the management;

2. |have followed the appropriate Audit Practices and the processes to obtain a reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the content of the recards, The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that the facts are correctly reflected
on the recerds.
| have not verified the correctness and the appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accaunt of the company,

L Wherever reguired, | have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and reguiations
and happening of events.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

&, The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Campany nor of the efficacy or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Recommendations:

| report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Requlations,
Guidelines and Standards mentioned above.

DIODOD2 00037



malicom$ > >>>> > >

| further report that, the company is an unlisted private company and hence, there were no events / actions in pursuance
of The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and the Requlations thereof,

| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directars,
Maon-Executive Directors and Independent Directars. The changes [if anyl in the composition of the Board of Directars that
taok place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act,

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and ebtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recerded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and no dissenting views have been recorded,

| further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the review
of the compliance certificatas / reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinian, there are
adequate systerns and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and cperations of the Company to manitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and gquidelines.

| further report that, based on the informaticn provided by the Company during the Audit Period under review and also an
the review of quarterly compliance reports by the Company Secretary taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in my apinion, adeguate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the Company ta monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable general laws.

| further report that, during the Audit Pericd under review, the Company has not incurred any specific event/ action that
can have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc.

For Rakhi Dasgupta & Assciates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration Mo, 52019W8492200

Rakhi Dasgupta
ACS Mo. 28739
Place: Kolkata CP Na. 20354
Dated: June 15th, 2020 UDIN ; Ap28739B000342811
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

|[Pursuant to Section 204(1] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Rermuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Mallcom VSFT Gloves Private Limited,

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MALLCOM VSFT GLOVES PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
ina manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutary compliances and expressing
my Jpinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s, Mallcom VSFT Gloves Private Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns fited and ather recards maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Campany, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report thatin my opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and alsa that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined tha books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fited and other recards maintained by Mallcom VSFT
Gloves Private Limited ["The Company”| for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020, according to the provisions af;

[l  The Companies &ct, 2013 [the Actl and the rules made there under;
lil  The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1954 [[SCRA] and the rules made there under; Not Applicable
lii) The Depositories Act, 1994 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

liv]  Foreign Exchange Managemesnt Act, 1996 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Dverseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings; Not Applicable

lv]  The following Requlstions and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEBI
Act’]:- Not Applicable

lal  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers| Requlations, 2011,
bl The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Tradingl Regulations, 1992;
lcl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India |lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements| Regulations, 2009;

[dl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Schemal
Guidelines, 190¢;

lel The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue and Listing of Debt Securities] Regulations, 2008;

[l The Securities and Exchange Board of India |[Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents] Requlations, 1993
reqgarding the Companies Act and dealing withclient;

gl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Delisting of Equity Shares] Regulations, 2009; and
[h]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of Securilies] Regulations, 1998,

lil  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements] Regulation, 2015,
|hereinafter referred to as as "Listing Requlation, 20157);

[vi] Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
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|, having regard to the compliance System existing in the Company and on the basis of my examination of the documents and
records maintained in pursuance thereof, report that the comgany has complied with the following laws applicable specifically
to the company:

1.

o ® = o @ B e o8

1m0

13
14
15
1,

Factories Act, 1948

The Minirmum Wages Act, 1948

The Employee’s Compensatian Act,1923(Earlier known as Workmen's Compensation Act,1993)
The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Act, 1952

The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

Employees’ State Insurance |General] Requlations, 1950 and Employees’ State Insurance [Central) Rules, 1950
The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Rules made thereunder

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1948

The Private Securities Agencies Regulations Act, 2005

The Maternity Banefit Act 1941 and subsequent amendments thereaf

Egual Remuneration Act, 1974

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Preventian, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 201 5 and Sexual Harassment
of Woman at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressall Rules, 2013

Competition Act, 2002
Environment Protection 4ct, 1986 and Environment Protection Rules, 1984
The Air [Prevention & Cantrol of Pollution] Act, 1981 and Rules made thereunder

The Water |Prevention & Control of Pollution] Act, 1974 and Rulas made thereunder

Management’'s Responsibility:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial recard is the respansibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express
an opinian an the basis of my Secretarial Audit based an the secretarial records provided to me by the management;

| have followed the appropriate Audit Practices and the processes to obtain a reasonable assurance about the correctness
aof the content of the records. The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that the facts are correctly reflected
an the records.

| have not verified the correctness and the appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and ather applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. My examinatian was limited Lo the verification of procedure on tesl basis.

The Secretarial Audil report is neither an assurance as 1o the fulure viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effecliveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Recommendations:

| report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines and Standards mentioned above,
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| further report that, the company is an unlisted private campany and hence, there were no events / aclions in pursuance
of The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and the Regulations thereof.

| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Mon-Exscutive Directors and Independent Directars, The changes [if any] in the compasition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed nates on agenda were senl
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda iterns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also an the review
of the compliance certificates / reports taken on recerd by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to moniter
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

| further report that, based on the information provided by the Company during the Audit Period under review and also on
the review of guarterly compliance reports by the Company Secretary taken an recard by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in my opinion, adeguate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable general laws.

| further report that, during the Audit Period under review, the Campany has nol incurred any specific event/ action thal
can have a major bearing on the Campany’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc.

For Rakhi Dasgupta & Assciates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration Mo, 5201 ¢WEBA&R2200

Rakhi Dasgupta
ALCS Mo 28739
Pace: Kolkata CF Mo. 20054
Dated: Juna 15th, 2020 UDIM : AnzB739B000342621
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Annexure D

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 3413) and Schedule V Para C clause [10lli] of the SEBI [Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

M/s. Mallcom [India) Ltd,
N-12, Sectar-V,

Salt Lake City,
Kolkata-7o0091

| have examined the relavant reqisters, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of MfS. MALLCOM
(INDIA] LTD having CIN- L51109WB1983PLCO37008 and having registered office at N-12, Sector-V, Salt Lake City Kolkata-
700091 and (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”|, produced before me by the authorized officials of the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3] read with Schedule ¥ Para-C Sub clause 10[i]
of the Securities Exchange Board of India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements| Requlations, 2015,

In my opinion and to the best of my information and accarding to the verifications |including Directors Identification Number
[BIN] status at the Portal hitp://www.meca.gov.infmcafoportal/viewSignatoryDetails.dol as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors en the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31* March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs [MCA| or any such other Statutory Autharities:

1 RAVINORA PRATAP SINGH 002408910 26/04/20m
2 AJAY KUMAR MALL 00470184 131121983
3 GIRIRAJ KUMAR MALL 01043022 o7/08/2010
4 BARSHA KHATTRY 01974874 16/01/2014

Furthermare, ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director an the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the appointment / continuity of Directors
on Board, based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Rakhi Dasgupta & Assciates
Company Secretaries
Firm Regisiration Mo, 5201 9WBA&92200

Rakhi Dasgupta
ACS Mo, 28739
Place: Kolkata CP Mo 20354
Dated: June 29th, 2020 UDHM : AC2B739B00041 4709
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Annexure E

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR]
INITIATIVES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 Read with Companies [Carporate Social
Responsibility Policy), Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the company’s C5R Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs:

Carporale Social Responsibility is strongly connected with the principles of sustainability; an organization should make
decision not enly on financial factors, but also considering the social and environmental conseguences. As a corporate
citizen receiving various benefits out of society, it 1s our co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to the people,
society and the environment for inclusive growth of the society where we operates. Company aims to continue its efforts
to build on its tradition of social respensibility to empower people and deepen its social engagements.

The company understands the needs for promoting education, growth and development of children from lower socio-
ecanamic seclion of society and has also contributed to promole Olympic Sports during the financial year 2019-20,

The Carporate Social Responsibility [CSR| Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, this Corparate
Social Responsibility Policy [CSR Palicy] indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Cornpany, which has been approved
by the Board, The CSR Pelicy may be accessed on the Company’s website www.mallcom.in

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

The C5R Committee of the Board of Directors aversees the CSR undertakings to ensure that the CSR objectives are met.
The CSR Cammittes Camprises of:-

® dr. Ajay Kumar Mall , Managing Directar - Chairman
®  Giriraj Kumar Mall, Non-Executive Director - Meamber
® [ Barsha Khattry, Non-Executive Independent Director - Member
3. Average Met Profit of the company for the last three Financial Year and prescribed C5R expenditure:

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under prescribes that every company having a net worth of
rupees h00 Crores or more, or turnover of rupees 1000 Crores or more or & net profit of rupees 5 Crores or more during
any financial year shall ensure that the Company spends, in every financial year atleast 2% of the average net profit made
during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its C5SR Policy. The provisions pertaining to carporate
sacial responsibility |'CSR'] as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the Company.

Tin Lakhs)
Average net profil of the Company for last three financial years 110677
Prescribed CSR Expenditure [2% of the average net profit} 2214
Total armount to be spent for the financial year 2019-20 2204
Amount Spent during the financial year 201 9-20 34.00
Unspent Amount during the financial year 2019-20 -
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4. Prescribed CSR expenditure [two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):

| Zin Lakhs]

1 |Training & Olympics Sports - 34.00 Lakhs 34.00 Lakhs 34.00 Lakhs Direct
Promaotion of
Dlympics Sports
via Air Rifle
Shaoter India,
Ms. Mehuli
Ghosh and Para
Badmintan
Athlete

Ms. Manasi

Jdashi

Ms. Mehuli Ghosh is one of the youngest Air Rifle Shooters of India and accerding to the International Shooting Spart

Federation [IS5F|, she has a world ranking of sixth and Asian ranking of third, Para Badminton Athlete Ms, Manasi Joshi
is currently ranked World Mo. 2 in Singles

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and menitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with C5R Objeclives
and palicy.

Ajay Kumar Mall Giriraj Kumar Mall
Chairman & Managing Director, Chairman of C5R Committes Director & Member of C5R Committee
DIM:004701 84 DIM-01 043022
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Annexure F

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Campany Secrelary during the financial
year 201 9-20, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneratian of the employees of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel [KMP| against the performance
af the Company are as under;

1. | Ajay Kumar Mall 3B.64 7 17.34
Managing Director

2. Giriray Mall A A MA
Director

3. | Ravindra Pratap Singh A A MA
Independent Director

4. | Barsha Khattry M, MA MA
Independent Director

5. | Shyam Sundar Agarwal 14.00 1B.45 MA
Chief Financial Officer

6. | Shuvanki Purakayastha 415 4.38) MNA
Cornpany Secratary

Sitting Fees paid to the Directors have not been considerad as remuneration.

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2.23 Lakh. In the financial year,
there was anincrease af 16,1 5% in the meadian remuneration of emplaoyees,

There were 413 permanent employees an the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020.

Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees ather than the managerial personnel and its comparison
with the percentile increasa in the Managerial Rermuneration and justification thereof,

Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel is 1§ % while percentile increase
in the Managerial Remuneration is 8 %. The average increase every year is an outcome of the Company’s market
campetitiveness, salary benchmarking survey, inflation and talent retention.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
For and behalf of the Board

Ajay Kumar Mall

Chairman & Manaqging Directar
|DIN : po4T01 B4

DIODODOD D000 45



malicom® > >>>> >

Annexure G

INFORMATION ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH COMPANIES [ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 ARE PROVIDED HEREUNDER:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
[il The steps taken or impact an conservation of energy:

The Company is preventing wastage of energy usage by relentless optimization process to achieve lower
tuel/energy consumption. The Company has also placed well-structured energy management system,

[ The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The Company is exploring viability of renewable source of energy at its selected site and during the Financial
Year 201 9-20 has increased the usage of rice husk in manufacturing activities of its subsidiary company

liif  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment's:
The Company has not made any material capital investment on energy conservation equipment during the year.
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

As your Company has not entered into technical collaboration with any entity, there are no particulars relating to technology
ahsorption and has not imparted any technology during the year. The Company however has been continuously upgrading
its manufacturing facility with the latest equipments and gadgets available in the market far automation as well as improved
quality cantrol.

The Company do have Research & Development [R&D) section and keaps developing various new products as per the market
requirement either on demand or as per its awn innovation and has been continuausly adding o its range of products,
Expenditure incurred by the company an R&D activities are clubbed with the normal business expenses and are not being
shown separately since il is not malerial in nalure apart from inveslmenl made on Laboralary Eguipments,

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

Particulars with regard to Foreign Exchange Earnings and Dutgo are as follows: [¥in Lakhs)

2019-20 |  2018-19
Foreign Exchange earnings 17.848.93 —

Foreign Exchange Outgo a,082.a5 144819

Far and behalf of the Board
Ajay Kumnar Mall

Chairman & Managing Director
[DIN : 00470184)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Your Company has been supporting and promoting the business
interests of its members and is united in the goal of pretecting
the health and safety of people worldwide, We share a personal
and professional commitment to protect the safety and health
of our employees, contractors, customers and the people of
the communities in which we operate.

FY2019-20 has been a challenging year with several macro
headwinds. Slow economic activity and Liguidity challenges
impacted the overall demand scenario. During the year
Government undertook initiatives like reductian of corporate
tax rates, which could have positive impact in the long run.

Later part of the year also witnessed an unprecedented
outbreak of Corona Virus sending global econarmies into tizzy,
impacting supply chain as well as consumer sentiment,
Complete lockdown of the country was unparalleled to any
disruption experienced in the past several decades. |t is feared
that COVID-1 9 would leave a desp cut ineconamy and corporate
financials. During the lockdown period the Company accorded
paramaunt pricrity to Employee health and welfare and ensursd
that its commitment towards payment to the vendors and work
force are duly met, Recognising that the welfare of partners,
associates and employees were paramount, the levels of
engagements were heightened and specific assistance provided
to ensure smooth functioning. Effective deployment of IT and
digital resources, seamlessly connecting employees, ensurad
effective continuity of operations even while warking from
horme.

Currently there is uncertainty on pace af recovery, the Company
iswell prepared to face challenges and cater to the emerging
needs of its customers. The impact of these disruptions an
the Financials of the Company for FY 2019-20 is negligible.
However, the Management expects short term challenges in
the first hali of FY 2020-21 and continues to pursue its lang
term growth strategy. With & robust Manufacturing base, strong
brand affinity and a competent work force the management
is confident to lead the recovery in a shorter period in post
pandemic phase and strive to sustain profitable and industry
leading growth.

The Company’s focus has been on Technology and Innovation
enabled capacity building, to corvert the challenge ol disruption
inte an opportunity. With the global pandemic situation, the
Company recognised the Global demand of Medical PPEs and
has scaled up manufacturing of essential PPE including face

masks and medical overalls. Simultaneous work on
contemparary and emerging areas has helped the Company
meet the needs of the consumer of today. Technology has
been adopted across the organization with the objective of
simplifying processes, induce analytics driven decision making
to identify emerging trends and create maximum value far all
stakeholders.

The pandemic has had a significant impact on the export
sectars in the economy. Moreover, the consequences of the
ongaing U5-China tensions will have ramifications an supply
chain networks and financial markets across the globe, The
Global GDP growth rate was ravaged by Covid-19 pandemic
and is projected to shrink by 3.2 % in FY2020-21. On the domestic
front, due to the glabal pandemic and subsequent nationwide
lockdown, the GDP growth rate contracted to 4.2% for FY2019-
20. The Industrial activity across sectors showed only a marginal
improvement. Crude prices saw a significant fall in the latter
half of the year.

The glabal personal protective equipment |[PPE] market is
projected ta witness a CAGR of B.&% and the industry is likely
to expand to USD 47.4 bitlion by 2024 With the Global Pandemic
and necessity for PPEs to contain it, the demand is expacied
to grow evan higher. Coupled with the augrmenting workplace
safely concerns for employees, the use of protective clathing
and equipment across several industries have grown
exponentially. Significant growth in the demand for
multipurpose equipment from a diverse range of industries
has fuelled market growth over the years to come. Furthermare,
numerous mandatory safety regulations imposed by
international arganizations such as NFPA, OSHA and NIDSH
is expected to pasitively influence the market demand.

The Govt. of India had earlier estimated the Parsonal Protective
Equipment market in India to grow at CAGR 1 4% by 2020. The
recent COVIDT ¢ crisis however has spawned a PPE kit industry
in India worth nearly Rs. 7000 Crores within a time span of 1 -
2 months during the latter half of FY 2015-20. India has now
becomne the second largest producer of medical isolation kits
in the World producing over 4.5 Lakh PPE suits daily.

We are extremely enthusiastic about the opportunities in 2020
and beyond. We finished 2019 in a relatively strong position
with our businesses delivering on our strategic priorities and
generating positive momentum across the board. We are
driving growth that is rooted in the fundamental business
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model. Going forward, there is an increasing shift being
witnessed towards the erganised secter owing te brand and
guality awareness, With wider choice, proeduct innovation
and warranty, being offered by organised players, customers
are putting mare focus on this segment. "Mallcam™ enjoys
a privileged position because of its high guality standard and
strict adherence to time schedule at the most competitive
prices aver the decades.

Financial Performance and Outlook

The financial Statements have been prepared in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian
Accounting Standards [Ind-AS).

The Company has recorded a Standalane and Consolidated
profit after tax of Rs, 1826.07 Lakhs and Rs. 1888.43 Lakhs
respectively during the financial year 201 9-2020 as against
Rs.1408.37 Lakhs and Rs. 149911 Lakhs during the financial
year 2018-2010. The basic & diluled Standalone and
Consalidated earnings per share are Rs. 29.26 and Rs. 30.24
respectively for financial year 2019-2020 as against the basic
& diluted earnings pershare of Rs. 22.57 and Rs. 24.02 for
financial year 201 8- 201 9.

Opportunities and Threats

The Personal Praotective Equipment Manufacturing industry
thrives on safety regulations. The Occupational Safety and
Health Administration [05HA) has continued to implement
anincreasing number of regulations to protect workers. As
a result, more workers in hazardous conditions must use
personal protective equipment to prevent injury, which has
and will cantinue to sustain dermand for industry products
and mitigate industry volatility, Demand from Medical,
Construction and Industrial growth will drive growth for
personal protective equipment and clothing aver the five
yadrs (o 2025,

As usual, your Company faces normal competition in all its
businesses, from Indian as well as international companies.
Mallcom's globally competitive cost positions and well crafted
business strategies have enabled it to retain its market
pasitions, Your Company strongly believes in the brand egquity
and its ability to provide its customers with innovative
solutions, The SWOT analysis with respect to the company
and its products is discussed below:

Strengths

»  Mallcam lIndia) Ltd. IMIL] is one of the few established
manufactiurer and exporter of "Personal Protective
Equipments” with unigue advantage of offering
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maximum range of products vis-a-vis its competitors
fram: India;

'

MIL has a long track recard in the Persanal Protective
Equipment [PPE] Category;

¥  MIL has been & rapidly growing and profit-making
organization and a recognized Trading House, with
quality standard confirming to 50 9001 2008 and SA
goo0:2008Certified Company;

#  MIL has been assigned Lang Term Debt Rating of ICRA
BEB+ far its Waorking Capital Bank Borrowings by ICRA
Limited;

¥  MIL is a debt free company complying with key ratios
benchmarks confirming the solid financials and liquidity
position of the company praviding ample opportunity
for the campany Lo leverage an its fundamentals and
market reputation to expand its scale of operations to
meet future demands;

# Usage of Personal Pratective Equipment [PPE| being
mandatory at most of the work places both in india and
abroad and rising awareness for the wark safety coupled
with advancement of work culture/ technology will result
in consistent growth in demand for company's products;

¥ The Company has a first mover's advantage and strang
Brand value for its products range and marketing in
domestic markel, Quality of Indian fabrics and the growth
momentum in India, despite rising inflation, may be
taken as an opportunity for Indian exports.

Challenges

#  Strategies like product innovations or madifications
require investments. These strategies entail higher
casts and higher risks.

¥ The nature of business the company is in has been
traditionally a low margin business with possibility of
moderate scale of operatians and lower cash accruals.

#  Theweak operating profitability margins are sensitive
to incentives provided to the Sector by GOl and its
agencies;

#  Highworking capital intensity of the business adversely
effecting the liguidity position and profitability of the
campany;

Risks and Concerns

-

¥# The Company’s results are affected by competitive
conditions and customer preferences.



®  High manpower costs, stringent labour laws and shart
age of skilled workers are the majar risk concern.

#  Theoperations are subject to risk ansing from fluctuations
inexchange rates with reference to currencies in which
the company transacts.

Internal Control Systems and Adequacy

Inarder to ensure arderly and efficient conduct of business,
the Company management has put in place necessary internal
control systems commensurate with its size and nature of
business. The internal control systems provide for well
docurmented policies/quidelines and authorization and approval
procedures. Company through its own Internal Audit
Department carries out pericdical Audits at all locations and
functions. Sorme of the salient features of the Internal Control
systems in vogue are:

[l Arobust ERP systemn cannecting all plants, sales offices
ard Head Office to enable seamless data inflow. This is
constantly reviewed from Internal Control stand point.

lil Preparation of annual budget for operations and services
and monitoring the same against the actual at periodic
intervals,

liii) All assets are properly recarded and system put in place
ta safequard against any losses or unauthorized use ar
disposal.

lv] Periodic physical verification of fixaed assets and all
inventories,

lv] Observations arising out of the Internal Audit are
periodically reviewed at the Audit Commitiee meeting
and follow up action taken,

[vil Perindic Presentations made ta the Audil Commitles on
various operations and financial risks faced by the
Company and action proposed to mitigate such risks
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Human Resources/ Industrial Relations

Your Company considers its brands and its people strength as
its major assets. Mallcom HR structure has been designed to
support the business in achieving sustainable growth and also
groom the employees’ talents considering the future
requirements. Mallcom has a formulated uniform HR Pelicies
for all employees/ workers to define the HR functions and to
make Mallcom such a place or institution where the pecple
working has defined role and responsibilities with a sense of
belangingness amangst them. Further it has created platforms
for recognizing and motivating employees for the good work
they do in the organization.

The Cormpany has established listening and feedback systems
from employees through usage of 340 degree feedback far
leadership team, Such feedbacks help the cormpany to have
acollaborative, open and transparent culture. During the year
under review, the company has focussd on motivation and
health training programes.

We maintained cordial and harmonious Industrial relations in
all aur manufacturing units. Several HR and industrial relations
initiatives implemented by the Company have significantly
hetped in improving the work culture, enhancing productivity
and enriching the quality of Life of the workforce,

For and on behalf of the Board

Ajay Kumar Mall
Chairman & Managing Director
DIMN:004701 84

Date: 3154 July, 2020
Place: Kolkata
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Highlights of Financial Performance :

23,?';'.::?

3007274

" 28,769.09

[T in Lakhs)

30,078.76

1. | Met Sales/ Incorne from Operations

2 Other Income from Operations 45.86 2191 45.84 18.73
3. Tatal Income from Operations {1+2) 28.B14.95 30,094.05 268,81 4.95 30,097.49
. Total Expenditure 26,507.62 27.010.62 26,437.70 27,828.50
5. Operating Profit 3.338.32 3.032.04 3.197.22 3.228.88
. Cperating Margin 11.60% 10.08% 1111% 10.74%
7 Depreciation 468,78 467.11 5&63.30 56517
8 Praovision for Tax 634.25 Tob.0b 653.05 782.37
9. ProfitfLoss after Tax 1.826.07 1,408.37 1,8688.43 1,459.11

Cash flow analysis:

Source of Cash

[Fin Lakhs)

T4 Cash flow from Operations 3.179.99 2.959.08 2,773.44 31 71.07
2. | Mon-Operating Cash flows l459.91) R84 165.76 5.04
3. | Increase/ [Decreasel in Cash & Cash Equivalent 229.32 [106.50] l233.34) (100.77]

Total 2,949.40 2,862.42 3,172.54 3,075.35

Use of Cash

1. Mel Capital Expenditure 53828 RO2.60 [469.00] 8r3.31
2. Financial Expenses 2R4.83 333.37 [254.67] 3534.20
a Dividend |Including Dividend Tax) 150.45 180.45 150,45 15045
& Direct Taxes Paid 43425 Ba6.36 453.05 a72.468
5. Increase/ |Decrease| in Mon-Current Investments 1,680.34 545.18 291.00 520.18
4. | Repaymant of barrowings 1,293.91 |35.60 1,293.91 179.45
7 Wet Change in Warking Capital i1 504.68) Boo.oé 1,709.80 363.04

Total 2,949.40 2,862.42 3,172.54 3,075.35

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, expectations ar forecast may
be torward locking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressad in the slatement. Impartant factors that could influence the Company's operations include global and domestic
supply and demand conditions affecting selling prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in government
requlations, tax laws, economic developrments within the country and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Our Carporate Governance philosophy is aimed at creating
and nurturing a valuable bond with stakehalders to maximise
slakeholders value. Your Company considers Corporate
Governance a pre-requisites fer meeting the needs and
aspirations of its shareholders and other stakeholders in tha
Company and firmly believes that the same could be achieved
by maintaining lransparency in its dealing, creating robust
policies and practices for key process and systems with clear
accountability, integrity, transparent governance practices and
the highest standards of regulatory compliances, Mallcom
{India) Ltd. aspires to reach the highest standards of Corporate
Governance, while emphasising an transparency, creating a
sustainable culture and setting industry-leading benchmarks.

The Campany has set itself the objective of expanding its
capacities and becaming glebally competitive in its business.
As a part of its growth strategy, the Company believes in
adopling the 'besl practices’ that are followed in the area of
Corporate Governance across various geographies. The
Campany emphasizes the need for full transparency and
accountability in all its transactions, in order to protect the
interests of its stakeholders, The Board considers itself as a
trustee of its shareholders and acknowledges its respensibilities
tawards them [or creation and saleguarding Lheir wealth, In
addition to compliance with requlatory requirements, the
Company endeavours to ensure that highest standards of
ethical and responsible conduct are met throughout the
organisation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board aof Directers is entrusted with the ultimate
responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction
and performance of the Company and has been vested with
requisite power, authorities and duties, The Board has an
appropriate mix of vast knowledge, wisdom and varied industry
exparience to guide the Company in achieving its objectives in
a sustainable manner.

The Board of Directors has an optimum combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors with One Woman
Director and fifty per cent of the Board of Directors comprises
of Mon-Executive and Independent Directors. The Chairperson
aof the Board is an Executive Director. The Board meets at least
4 |Four] times a year and more if Campany needs merit
additionat oversight and guidance. During the Financial Year
2019-20, the time gap between any two Board Meetings did
nat exceed 120 [One Hundred and Twenty] days. The Board of
Directors periodically reviews compliance reports pertaining
ta all laws applicable to the Company. All statutory and ather
matters of significance including infermation as mentioned in
Parl A of Schedule || to the SEBI [Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements| Regulations, 2015 are informed to
the Board to enable it Lo discharge its responsibility of strategic
superyision of the Company.

COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

Asat 31 st March, 2020, the composition of the Board of Directors
af the Company, their attendance at Board Meetings/Annual
General Meeting held during the year 201 9-20 and the number
of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships
held by them in other Companies are given herein below:

Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall Managing i 4 Yes Wil Ml il P
[DIM - ood7o1 84 Directar
Mr, Giriraj Kumar Mall Mon-Executive, | 4 P Yoz ik il il 48,823
[DIM : o1 043022 Mon-Independent

Director
Mr. Ravindra Pratap Singh | Mon-Executive, | 4 3 ez il il il Mil
[DIM : o240t 0) independent

Directar
Or. Barsha Khattry Mon-Executive, | 4 & Yes Mil il il Mil
[DIM : 01974874 independent

Directar
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¥ Forthe purpose of considering the Limit of the number of
directarship in the other companies, only listed public
companies are included and all other companies including
unlisted public company, private limited companies, foreign
companies and companies under section B of the
campanies act, 2013 have been excluded.

¥ Forthe purpose of considering the limit of the number of
chairmanship/membership in committees of other
companies only listed public companies are included and
all other companies including unlisted public Company,
private limited companies, foreign Companies and
campanies under section B of the Companies Act, 2013
have been excluded.

¥ Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of the Listed Public Company have been
considered for the purpose of ascertaining number of
membership & Chairmanship of the Committee.

NUMEBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD AND THE DATES ON
WHICH HELD

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide
on Campany / business policy and strategy apart fram other
Board businesses, The Board met four |4) times during the
financial year 201 9-201.8, on 265th May, 20019, 13th August, 2019,
121k Novernber, 2019 and 10th February, 2020. The maximum
interval between any twa meetings was well within the
rnaximum allowed time gap of 120 days. Directors attending
the meeting actively participated in the deliberations at these
meetings.

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS
INTER-SE

Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall, Chairman and Managing Director on the
Board of Directars is brather of Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall, Non-
Exscutive Non-Independent Director,

INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has unrestricted access Lo all Company-related
information. In addition ta matters statutorly requiring approval
of the Board, all major items relating to mabilization of
resources, capital expenditure, investments, acquisitions,
technology adoption and risk managemaeant are discussed in
the Beard. All infermation prescribed under the Corporate
Governance Code is placed before the Board of Directors. All
the items on the Agenda are accompanied by notes giving
comprehensive information on the related subject and for
certain matters such as financial/business plans, financial
results detailed presentations are made. The agenda for Board
meeting with relevant nates are sent in advance separately to
each Director to enable the Board to take informed decisions.

H2

COMPLIANCE

The Board reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable
ta the Company, presented by Managing Director at its
mestings,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Independent Directors play an important rale in
deliberations and decision making at the Beard Mesting and
bring te the Campany wide edperiences in their respactive
fields. They also contribute in significant measure to Board
Committees, The independent rele vis-a-vis the Company
means they have a special contribution ta make in situations
where they add broader perspective by ensuring that the
interests of all stakeholders are kept in acceptable balance
and in providing an object view in instances where potential
conflicts may arises between sharehalders:

Al Independent Directors make annual disclosure of their
Independence to the Company. Mone of the Independent
Directors has any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company or its subsidiaries, apart from
receiving sitting fee as an Independent Director,

DETAILS OF FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES IMPARTED
TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS IS DISCLOSED

All Independent Directors are familiarized with the Campany.
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of
the industry inwhich the Company operates, business model
of the Company. etc. from time to time. The Company makes
consistent efforts to acqguaint the Board with the overall
business performance covering all Business verticals, by way
of presenting specific performance of each Plant, Product
Category and Carperate Function from time ta time, The entire
Board including Independent Directars has access o Product
Heads/ Factory Heads and other commercial/ technical staff,
wherever reguired for informed decision making. Detailed
agenda are senl well in advance to all the Direclors in order
far the Board to perform its function and fulfill its role effectively.
The details regarding Independent Directors’ Familiarisation
Programmes are given under the "Codes & Policies™ section
on the website of the Company www.rmatlcam.in.

SKILLS/ EXPERTISE/ COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS INCLUDING THE AREAS AS IDENTIFIED BY THE
BOARD IN THE CONTEXT OF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Thae Company is a Personal Protective Equipment |PPE]
manufacturer and exparter. The individual Members of its
Board of Directars brings in knowledge and experience fram
3 variety of sectors, demonstrating breadth and depth of
managemenl and leadership experience in the lollowing
competance areas:



¥ Financial and business acumen;

¥ Guiding and setting the pace for Company’s Operations
and future develapment by aiding implementation of best
systems and processes;

# Building effective Sates & Marketing strategies, Corporate
Branding and Advertising functions;

¥ QOverseeing the development and implementation of Risk
Management/ Gavernance, risk and compliance |GRC)
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¥ Managernent and strategy of the Information Technology
function; and

# Human Resources Managemaent.

The Mormination and Remuneration Policy of Directars, KMPs
and Other Employees of the Company sets cut the criteria
which serve as guidelines in considering potential nominges
tc the Board of Directors to ensure the continuance of a
dynamic and forward-thinking Board,

tools; Expertise /Skills of Directors:
| Sr. No. | Name of Director Expertise/ Skill |

1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall

Strategic Marketing, Business development, Finance and allied fislds,
standardization of systems and processes across the organization,

2 Mr. Girira) Kurmar Mall

Strategic Marketing, Brand Development, IT reforms, Techneolegy matters
and Business Administration

3 Dr. Barsha Khattry

Corporate Advisory,Economics, Finance and allied fields

4 Mr. R.P, Singh

Corporate Advisory, Finance and allied fields

CONFIRMATION THAT IN THE OPINION OF THE BOARD, THE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS FULFILL THE CONDITIONS
SPECIFIED IN THE SEBI REGULATIONS AND ARE
INDEPENDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT

Based on the declaration submitted by the Independent
Directors of the Company provided at the beginning of the
Financial Year 2020-21, the Board hereby certify that atl the
Independent Directors appointed by the Company fulfill the
conditions specified in these Regulations and are independent
ol the management,

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Independent Directors of the Board met on February 11,
2020, without the presence of the Nen-Independent Directors
and members of the Management, inter alia to evaluate:

1.  Performance of Mon-independent Directors, the Board
as a whole including its Committees

2. Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking
into account the views of Executive Directors and Mon-
Execulive Direclars;

3. The guality, quantity and timeliness of flow of infarmation
between the Company Management and the Board.

ALl Independent Directors were present at the meeting.
BOARD EVALUATION

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for
evaluating its performance and effectivenass as well as that
of its Committees and individual Directars, including the
Chairman of the Board. For Beard and its Committees, the

exercises was carried out through a structured evaluation
process covering varicus aspects of the Boards funclioning
such as composition of the Board and committees, experience
and campetencies, performance of specific duties and
obligations, governance issues etc. In case of evaluation of
the individual Directors, one to one meeting of each Director
with the Chairman of the Beard and the Chairman of the
Momination and Remuneration Committee is held. The
Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which
reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the
Board and its Committees.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has farmulated a Code of Conduct to Requlate,
Manitor and Report Trading by Designated Persans to deter
the insider trading in the securities of the Company based an
the unpublished price sensitive information. The Code envisages
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while
dealing in the securities of the Company. The Palicy is available
an the wehsite of Company under Codes & Policies sectian
and can be accessed at www.mallcom.in. All Board members,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the code far the year ended on
31st March, 2020, Declaration to this effect signed by the
Managing Directar for the year ended on March 31, 2020 has
been included in this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has constituted a gualified and
Independent Audit Committee in line with the provisions of
SEBI [LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Companies Act, 201 3,
Committee acts a= a link between Auditors and Board. The
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Committee is vested with following powers and terms of
references as prescribed under relevant pravisions aof the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI |LODR) Regulation, 2015:

al

04

Erief description of terms of reference

The Audit Cammittee of the company is entrusted with
the responsibility to supervise the company internal control
and financial reporting process inter alia, performs as
follows:

Cwversight of the Company’s financial reporting process
and lhe disclosure of its financial information to ensure
thal the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
cradible,

Recommending te the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment if required, the replacement or removal of
the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors,

Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial
Statements before submission to the Board far approval,
with particular reference to:-

al Matters required to be included in the Director's
Responsibitity Statement to be included in the Board's
Report in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013,

bl Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasaons for the same;

el Major accounting entries invalving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment by the management;

dl Significant adjustments made in the Financial
Statements arising out af Audil findings;

el Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to Financial Statements;

fl Disclosure of any related party transactions;
gl Quabfications, if any, in the draft Audit Report.
hl  The going concern assumption,

Reviewing and monitoring with the management, the
quarterly Financial Statements before submission ta the
Board for approval,

Approval of any subsequent madification of transactions
of the company with related parties.

Scruliny of inter-corporate loans and invesiments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity,
wherever it is necessary.

&,

mn
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13

15

16

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
managemeant systems.

Reviewing with the management performance of Statutory
and Internal Auditors, adequacy of the internal cantrol
systems,

Discussing with Internal Auditors any significant findings
and following up thersan.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by
the Internal Auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reparting the same to the Board.

Discussing with Statutary Auditors before the Audit
commences about the nature and scope of Audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concarn.

Ta laok into the reasons for substantial defaults in the
payment to the shareholders, lin case of non-payment of
declared dividends| suppliers and ather creditors, if any.

Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism,
in case the same exists.

Carrying out any other functions as is mentioned in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committes.

In addition to the above, the Audit Committee also reviews the
fellowing:-

Ti

bl

Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition
and results of aperations.

Statement of significant related party transactions |as
defined by the audit committee|, submitted by the
management.

Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses
issued by the Statutory Auditors,

Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control
weaknesses;

The appaintment, rermoval and terms of remuneration of
the Chief Internal Auditor shatl be subject to review by the
Audit Committes,

The guarterly/half yearly/annual financial performance of
the Company before being presented to the Board.

Achievement of the actual financial results vis-a-vis the
budget of the Company.

The Statement of uses/application of funds raised through
preferential issue.

Composition, Meeting and Attendance:

Audit Committee’'s composition and terms of reference are in



compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI [LODR) Regulations, 201 5. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee met four times during the financial year
2019-20 1.2, on 25th May, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 1 2th Novernber,
2015 and 1 0th February, 2020, The gap between the two meetings

The details of member’s attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings during the financial year 2019-20 are as under:
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was not more than 120 days. The meeting of Audit Committes
is also atlended by the Executives, including the Chief Financial
Officer, Statutary Auvditors and Internal Auditors as it considers
their presence to be appropriate, The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary of the Committee.

L Mr. Ravindra Pratap Singh Chairman Mon-Executiva, 4 4
[DIM:00240910) Independent Director

%, Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall Member Mon-Executive, 4 4
[DIM:01 D43022] Man- Independent Director

. Dr. Barsha Khatlry Mamber Mon-Executlive, 4 4
[DIM: 01 974874) Independent Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee's canstitution and terms of referance are
incompliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI {LODR] Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

al Terms of Reference

1. Toidentify persons who are qualified to become Director
and who may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend
to the Board their appointment and/or removal.

2. Tolormulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Directors, and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees.

3. Toformulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board,

4. Todevise a policy on Board diversity,

5. To carry out any ather function as is mandated by the
Board fram time to time and/or enforced by any statutary
natification, amendment or madification, as may be
applicable.

The Normination and Rernuneration Commitiee’s composition
and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 and SEEBI [Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015. During the year
under review, the Commitlee met on 25th May, 201 ¢ and the
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committes..

The details of member’'s attendance at the Momination & Remuneration Committee held during the financial year 201 9-20 are

as follows:

1. Dr. Barsha Khattry

[DIM: 01 974874 Chairpersan| Man-Executive, Independent Director 1 1
2. Mr. Ravindra Pratap Singh

[DIM: ao240910) Mermber Mon-Exacutive, Independent Director 1 1
3 Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall

[DIM: 043022] Member Mon-Executive, Non- Independent Director 1 1

P
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Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
[LODR] Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors of the Company,
based on the recomrmendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committes, has tormulated & Remuneration
Policy for Directors and Senior Management. All decisions
relating to the remuneration of the Directors were taken by
the Board on recommendation of nemination and remuneration
committee and in accordance with the Shareholder's approval
wherever necessary, The remuneration policy of the Company
is devised in such a manner as to remain competitive in the
industry to attract and retain talent and appropriately reward
employees on their contributions, The Policy is available on
the websile of Company under ‘Cades & Policies section and
can be accessed at www.mallcom.in.

Chairman &
Managing Director

Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall
[DIN:0D4701 84

The details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors during the financial year 2019-20 are as:-

38.60

Remuneration of Executive Director

The Committee recammends to the Board, remuneration of
Executive Directors subject to approval by the Members and
such other authorities, as may be necessary. While
recommending the remuneration, the Committee considers
various factors such as qualifications, experience, expertise,
position, leadership gualities, prevailing remuneration in the
industry, volume of the Company's business and profits earned
by it and the responsibilities taken by the director carcerned,
The remuneration are within the limits as prescribed under
Section 197 and Schedule ¥ of the Act and Rules made there
under. Executive Directors are not paid sitting fees for attending
the Meetings of the Board and its Committees thereon,

Mil 10,25,320

Remuneration of Non Executive Director

The Mon-Executive Directars receive sitting fees for attending
mestings of the Board and its Committees and that the same
does not excead the maximum amount provided in Section
147(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 4 of The

Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Persannel] Rules, 201 4. The Nen-Executive Directors af the
Company are not paid any other reruneration or cammission,
There is no other pecuniary relationship or transaction of Nan-
Executive Directors with the Company which has patential
conflicts with the interest of the Company at large.

The details of remuneration, sitting tees and commission paid to each of the non-executive Director during the financial year
201%-20 are as follows:

Mr. Ravindra Pratap Singh Mon-Executive, 36,000 Mil Nil
[DIN: 0024091 0] Independent Director
Dr. Barsha Khattry Mon-Executive, 48,000 Mil Mil
DIN: 1 974874 Independent Director
Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall Mon-Executive, Mil il 48,823
[DIN: 043022 Mon - Independent
Director
CSR COMMITTEE Corparate Social Responsibibity [CSR] Committee of Directors

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with The Companies [Corporate Sacial
Responsibility Policy] Rules, 201 4, the Company has constituted
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inter-alia, to oversees the Corporate Social Responsibility
[CSR] and other related matters as referred by the Board of
Directors and discharges the roles as prescribed under
section 135 of the Companies Act, 201 3.



Terms of Reference:
1.  Formulation and ensuring compliance of C5R Policy;

2. Ensure effective implementation and monitaring of the
CSR activities as per the approved policy, plans and budget;

3. Ensure compliance with the laws, rules and regulations

The composition and attendance details of the members of the CSR Committee are given below:
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governing the CSR and periodically report to the Board of

Directors.

During the year, the C5R Committee met an 25th May, 2015 to
discharge its functions and the Company Secretary acls as

the Secretary of the Committes,

Man-Executive, 1 i

1 Mr. Giriraj Kumar Mall Member
IDIM:01 043022) Mon- Independent Directar

2. M. Ajay Kumar Mall Chairperson Managing Director 1 1
(DIN:004701 B4)

& Or. Barsha Khattry Member Mon-Executive, 1 1
(DIN: 01974874 Independent Director

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee’s constitulion and Lerms of reference are in
compliance with provisians of the Companies Act, 2003 and
the SEBI [LODR| Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time,

Terms of Reference:

1. Consider, resolve and monitor Reprisal of
investor's/shareholder's grievances related to transfer of
securities, nan-receipts of Annual Reparts, non-receipts

The compasition of the Stakeholders” Relationship Committee is as under:

of declared dividend etc;

2, Owersee the performance of the Company’s Registrars

And Share Transfer Agents.

3. Carry oul any other function as is referred by the Board

from time to time and/or enforced by any statutory
notification/amendment or modification as may be
applicable.

4. Perferm such olher funclions as may be necessary or

appropriate for the performance of its duties.

Mon-Executive, 1 i

1. Mr. Girira] Kumar Mall Chairperson
(DIM:01 043022) Mer- Independent Director

2, Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall Member Managing Director 1 1
(DIN:004701 B4)

3 Dr, Barsha Khattry Member Non-Executive, 1 1
(DIM: o1 574874 Independant Directar

Ouring the year, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met on 25th May, 2019 and the perquisite quorum was present at
the meeting. Company Secretary is designated as the "Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressal of the investor's

grievances,

The Status of Invester Complaints as on March 31, 2020, as reported under the Listing Regulations are as under:

Mil MiL
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All the reguests for transfer of shares have been processed on ime and there are no transfer pending for more than 15
days.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The particulars of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are provided as under. All the resolutions set out in
the respective notices were passed by the sharehelders with requisite majority,

Thirty-Fifth Annual 10th September, 2019 | "Rabindra Tirtha” DG-17, 0G| Mo
General Mesting at 12:05 p.m. Black [Newtown], Action Area |,
Kolkata — 700154

Thirty-Fourth Annual 27th August, 201 B | "Rabindra Okakura Bhavan™, | Yes

General Mesting at12:05 p.m. Block - 0D, 27/401, Sector -1, | 1, Re-appointment of
DD Block, Salt Lake City, Mr, Ravindra Pratap Singh [DIN
Kolkata - 700064 00240910] as an Independent

Directer for another consecutive
lerm of 5 years,

2. Re-appointment of
Dr. Barsha Khattry [DIN 01974874
as an Independent Director for
anolher cansecutive termof 5

years.
Thirty-third Annual 2oth August, 2017 | "Rabindra Okakura Bhavan™, | Mo
General Meeting at12:00 p.m. Block — 0D, 27/4/1. Sector -1,
DO Block, Salt Lake City,
Kolkata - 700064
SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED LAST YEAR THROUGH applicable. These were published in Business Standard
POSTAL BALLOT or Financial Express in English and Sukhabar in Bengali,
Nil 2. Website: These results are simultaneously pested on the
PERSON WHO CONDUCTED THE POSTAL BALLOT EXERCISE website of the Company at www.mallcom.in and also

uploaded on the website of the Exchange where the

Mok Apaticatls Company is listed, The Company has not made any

SPECIAL RESOLUTION PROPOSED TO BE CONDUCTED presentation to the institutional investors or to the analysts
THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT during the financial year.

Mo Resq[utioﬂ re.quiring F‘osta.t Ballot as required by the 3 Green environment: The Company's philosaphy focuses
Companies [Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballet] Rules, on making the environment greener for the benefit of

2011, has been placed for Shareholder’s approval at this Annual

) posterity. In this regard, Your Company requests its
General Meeting.

shareholders to register/update the e-mail ids for
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION communication purpose thereby contributing to our

1. Financial Results: The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly anaviranmmant

financial resulls of the Company are sent Lo the Stock GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION
Exchange immediately after they are approved by the

Board alongwith limited review report or audit report as al Annual General Meeting:
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Day: Thursday
Date: 24th September, 2020
Tirne: 12.059 p.m,

Mode: Through Video Canferencing [VC] ar Other Audie Visual
Means [DAVM]

The Companies registered office at EN-12, Sector-V, Salt Lake,
Kolkata = 700091 will be considered as the venue for the
purpose af this Annual General Meeting.

bl Financial year

The Financial year of the Company starts from 1st April of a
year and ends on 31st March aof the following year.

c] Dividend Payment:

Dividend, if declared, shall be paid within 30 days from the
date of the Annual General Meeting. Dividend shall be remitted
electranically i.e. through MECS, NEFT etc. wherever bank
details of shareholders are available with the Campany, and
in other cases, through Demand DOrafts, payable at par.

d] Dividend history for the last 5 years is as under:

-,ﬂ_r." Rate of | | jend Pe T Tota
2014-15 15 1.50 93,460,000
2015-16 20 2.00 1,24,80,000
2016-17 20 2.00 1,24,80,000
201718 20 2.00 1,24,80,000
201819 20 2.00 1,24,80,000

el Electronic Clearing Service (ECS):

The Company has extended the ECS facility to shareholders
ta enable them to receive dividend through electronic Mode
in their bank account. The Company encourages members
to avail this facility as ECS provide adequate protection against
fraudulent interception and encashment of Dividend warrants,
apart from eliminating loss/damage of dividend warrants in
transit and correspondence with the Campany an revalidation/
issuance of duplicate dividend warrants,

fl Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange:

Equity shares of Mallcom |indial Ltd. are listed on BSE Limited.
The annual listing fees and custodian fees have been paid ta
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the Stock Exchanges and Depositaries within the stipulated
due dates,

g) Stock code

BSE scrip code - 539400
I1SIM - INE382CO1015

hl Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Miche Technologies Pvl. Ltd.

a4 Auckland Place,7th Floor, Room No. 74 & 7B,
Holkata- 700017

Ph-la33) 2280 6616/ 17/ 18; Fax- [033] 2280 6619

il Share Transfer System:

Trading in equity shares of the Company through recognized
Stock Exchanges can be done only in dematerialized farm,
In terms of the amendment carried out during Last Financial
Year in Regulation 40 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Requiations, 2015 transfer of securities were to be carried
out in dematerialized form anly with effect from 1st April,
209,

In compliance of the provisions of Listing Regulations, the
share transfer systerm of the Company is audited eveary six
manths by & Practicing Company Secretary and a certilicate
to that effect is issued by him/her. In case of request for
dematerialization of shares, confirmation of dematerialization
is sent to the respective depository i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited INSDL) or Central Depository Services
lindial Limited {CDSL), expeditiously,

The Board of Directors of the Company have delegated the
autharity to approve the transfer of shares, transmission af
shares, requests for deletion of name of the shareholder etc.
ta the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee. A summary of
approved transfers, transmissions, deletion requests, etc,
i5 placed before the Board of Directars from time to time as
per the Listing Regulations. Transactions invalving issue aof
share certificates, namely, issuance of duplicate share
certificates, split, rematerialisation, consclidation and
renewal of share certificates are approved by the
Stakeholder's Relationship Commitiee,

The Company and its RTA are in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the framework set forth by SEBI,
vide its Circular No. SEB/HO/MIBSD/DOP1 /CIR/P 20 8/73
dated 2o0th April, 2018,
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jl Dematerialization of shares:

Break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 315t March, 2020 is as follows:

Particulars. T N.ofshares | % of Shares
Dematerialised Shares &1 758 99.64
Physical Shares 2285 0.36
Total Issued Capital 4240000 100.00

0.36%

22.77%

B NS0L POSITION
m COSL POSITION

Physical Shares

T6.87%

Shareholding in Physical & Demat Mode

k] Comparison of the performance of market share price at BSE with BSE (Sensex]:

Manthly high & low prices of the equity shares of the Company at BSE and BSE [Sensex) during the Financial year 201 9-20

Month Share Price At BSE BSE SENSEX
' High(Rs) | Low (Rs) High (Rs.] Low (Rs)
April, zmg 259.00 226,70 39,487.45 38.460.25
May, 2019 262,35 237.00 404 24.96 3695610
June, 2009 279.70 2738.00 40,312.07 35.870.94
July, 2m g 268.00 235.00 4003241 3712826
August, 2019 235.35 209.00 37.807.55 36,102.35
Septernber, 201 9 250.00 227.00 3944112 35.987.80
October, 2015 241 50 200.55 40,392.22 17 415.83
Movember, 2019 235.00 200.05 4116379 40,01 4:23
Decermnber, 2019 21155 185.30 41,809.96 400135.37
January, 2020 25460 17810 42.273.87 40,475,855
February, 2020 261.00 201.20 £1,709.30 1821997
March, 2020 712.20 13285 39.083.17 25.438.90
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MIL Share Price Movement Vs. BSE SENSEX
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1l In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason thereof
Mot Applicable
m) Distribution of Shares:

The sharehalding distribution of the equity shares as an March 31, 2020 is given below:-

. 1 to 500 . 1014 1,19 65,554 | 1.05
501 to 1000 42 3.77 34.911 0.54
1001 ta 5000 33 2.97 75,787 1.22
5001 to 10000 & 0.54 46,420 0.74
10001 to 50000 7 0.4% 256,148 4.11
50001 to100000 3 0.27 2,65,300 £.25
100001 and above 7 0.63 54,975,880 B3.07
TOTAL 1112 100.00 62,40,000 100.00

n] Shareholding Pattern:

The shareholding of different calegories af the shareholders as on March 31, 2020 is given below:-

Promater's Holding 40,04,709 73.79
Individual/others 18,35,291 26.21
Total 62,40,000 100.00
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ol

al

Shareholding Pattern

42,460,000

16,35,291

Outstanding GDRs /ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible
instruments:

Mot Applicable,

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation,
The Company proactively manages these risks through
forward booking and proactive vendor development
practices. The Company’s reputation for guality, products
ditferentiation and service, coupled with existence of
powerful brand image with robust marketing network
mitigates the impact of price risk on finished goods.

Plant Location:

The Company’s plants are located at;

West Bengal (i) Plol No. 1645 and 1664, Zone - g,

Kolkata Leather Complex, Bantala, 24
Parganas [South) - 743 502

i) 348 8nd C, C.N. Ray Boad, Kolkata - 700 039

[ii1] Plal No. 35 and 36, Sectar -1, FSEZ, Falla,
24 Parganas |South), West Bngal.

Uttarakhand [iv] Plot Mo, 32, Sectar - 34,

62

Integrated Industrial Estate,
Haridwar = 2452403, Uttarakhand

46,04,70%

rl

5]

tl

® Promoter's Holding

B Invidividual/cthers

B Total

Address for correspondence:

Mallcam [India) Limited

EN-12, Sector-V, Salt Lake City, Kalkata- 700091

Tel: +51 33 40161000; Fax:+91 33 40141010
E-mail: E-mail: investors@mallcom.in

Wabsite: www.mallcom.in

Credit Rating

Curing the year under review, the company has been
assigned Lang Term Rating of BBB+ [stable] by ICRA
Limited.

Audit of reconciliation of share capital:

As stipulated by SEBI, a practising company secretary
carries out the audit of reconciliation of share capital to
reconcile the total admitted capital with Mational Securities
Depositary Limited INSDL) and Central Depository Service
[India) Limited [C DSL| and the total issued and the paid
up capital. The audit is carried out every quarter and the
report there on is submitted to the stock exchange and is
placed before the board of directors of the company, The
audit, inter alia, confirm that the total issued and paid
aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized
farm held with NSOL and CDSL and total number of shares
in physical form.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Curing the year 201 9-2020, the Company had no significant



Wi,

Wil

wiii.

material significant transaction with its related parties,
which is considerad to have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

The Company has not been penalized, nor have the stock
exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority imposed any
strictures, during the last three years, on any matter
relating to capital markets,

The Company has an established Vigil Mechanism/
Whistleblower Policy to enable stakeholders lincluding
Directors and employees| to report unethical behaviour,
aclual or suspected [raud or violation of the Company's
Code of Conduct. The Policy provides adequate safeguards
against victimization of Director|sl/employeels| and have
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committes in
exceptional cases. The protected disclosures, if any
reported under this Policy will be appropriately and
expeditiously investigated by the Chairman. The Whistle
Blower Policy is available on the Company s website
www.mallcarn.in under the "Codes & Policies” section,

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory
reguirements of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements| Regulations, 2015,

The Company has formulated policy for determining
Material Subsidiary pursuant to provisions of listing
regulations-and the same has been disclosed on the
company’s websile www.mallcormuin under the "Codes &
Policies” section,

The policy on dealing with related party transactions is
available on the website of the Company www.mallcom.in
under "Codes & Policies” section.

On the basis of written representations/ declaration
received fram the Directors, as on 31 st March, 2020, M/s
Rakhi Dasgupta & Associates, Company Secretaries have
issued a certificate, confirming that none of the Directors
an Board of the Company has been debarred or disgualified
from being appointed or continuing as Director of
Companies by SEBI MCA or any such authority. The said
certificate forms part of this report,

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting
Standards while preparing Financial Statements.
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ix. The Company has an approved Risk Management Policy
by the Board. Risk evaluation and management is an
ongoing process within the erganization and is pericdically
reviewed by the Board of Directors. The policy has been
disclosed an the company’s website www.mallcarm.in
under the "Cades & Policies” section.

% Tatal fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor is detailed in Notes to the Consalidated Audited
Financial Stalements of the Company.

¥i. The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual
harassment at the workplace the company has in place
the sexual harassment policy, duly approved by its board
and has alse formed committess called |nternal
Complaints Committee at corporate office and at all
ragional affices for prevention and prohibition of sexual
harassment and redressal against comptaints of sexual
harassment of warking women al the warkplace as per
Sexual Harassmeant of Women At Workplace |Prevention,
Prohibition And Redressal] fct, 2013 read with Sexual
Harassment of Wamen At Workplace [Frevention,
Prohibition And Redressal] Rules, 2013. This Internal
Complaints Comrittee has the pawer/ jurisdiction to deal
with complaints of sexual harassment of working women
as per the rules specified therein. All the employees
|permanent, contraclual, temporary, trainees| are covered
under this policy. During the financial year 2019-20, no
such complaints were received across the organisatian.

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS:

i,  The Board: As the Chairman of the Company is an Executive
Chairman, hence the provision on entitlement of
chairperson's office at the expense of the Company in
case of a Non-Executive Chairperson is not applicable.

i, Shareholders' Rights: Quarterly financial staterments are
published in leading newspapers and uploaded on
Cormpany's website www,mallcorm.in and an,

iil. Modified aption(s] in Audit Report: The Auditors of the
company have issued an unmodified report on financial
staterments for FY 201 9-20.
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iv. Separale posts of Chairperson and CED: Presently, Mr.
Ajay Kurmar Mall is the Chairman-and Managing Director
of the Company. He is also the CEQ af the Company.

v. Reporting of Internal Auditar: The Company has appointed
the Internal Auditors for conducting the internat audit who
report to CFO and has direct access to the Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements specified in Regulations 17 1o 27 and clauses |b)
to [il of sub - regulation 2] of Regulation 44 of the SEBI [Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements| Requlations, 2015,

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Chief Executive and Chiel Financial Officer have provided
Compliance Certificate to the Board in accordance with
Regulation 17|8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI
[LODR| Regulation, 2015 far the financial year ended March
a1, 2020,

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In Compliance with the Regulation 3413] and Schadule V of the
SEB! [LODRI, Regulations, 2015 a certificate fram Practicing
Company Secretary conforming compliance with the conditions
of corporate gaovernance is annexed to this report.

OTHER USEFUL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
ECS Facility

The Company provides facility of "Electronic Clearing Service”
|ECS] for payment of dividend ta its shareholders. ECS Facility
assists in guick remittance of dividend withoul possible
loss/dalay in postal transit. Shareholders holding shares in
physical form are reguested to provide details of their bank
account for availing ECS facility. However, if the shares are
held in demateriatized form, the ECS mandate has to be
communicaled ta the respectlive Depository Participant |DP.
Changes, if any, in the details furnished earlier may also be
communicated ta the Company or DP, as the case may be.

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated 20th April, 201 8, the Company
had in the year 201 8 written to the shareholders halding shares
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in physical mode reguesting them to submit their PAMN and
Bank Account details for updation of their data in Company
records. Those shareholders who are yet to respond to the
Company's reguest in this regard are requested once again to
take action in the matter at the earliest,

Update Emails for receiving notice/ documents in e-mode

The shareholders who have not registered their email addresses
with the Company are requested to kindly register their email
addresses with the Company in the Farm annexed with the
Matice of Annual General Meeting enabling the Company La
beller service shareholder correspondence thraugh e-mode,
The sharehalders have also an aplion to register their email
addresses with their Depository through Depository Participant.

In line with the Circular Mo, 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020,
Circular Mot 7/2020 dated 1 3th April, 2020 issued by the Ministry
of Corpaorate Affairs fallowed by Circular Mo. 20/2020 dated
gth May, 020, your Company is sending the Notice calling the
AGM along with the Annual Report to the shareholders in
electronic mode anly at their email addresses.

Dematerialization of Shares

Equity Shares of the Company are under compulsory demal
trading segment. Considering the advantages of scrip less
trading. members are advised to consider dematerialization
of their shareholding so as to avoid inconwenience involved in
the physical shares such as mutilation, possibility of loss/
misplacement, delay in transit etc, and also to ensure safe
and speedy transaction in securities,

Transfer / Transmission [ Transposition of Shares

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [SEBI| amended
Requlation 40 of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements| Requlations, 2015 infarming that transfer of
securities would not be processed unless the securities are
held in the dematerialized form with a depesitory with effect
from 1 sl April, 200 9. Any investor who is desirous of ransferring
shares |which are held in physical form| after 1st April, 2019
can do so only after the shares are dematerialized. The said
amendment is not applicable for transmission [i.e. ransfer of
title of shares by way of inheritance / succession] and
transposition [i.e, re arrangement / interchanging of the order
of name of shareholders) cases.



In terms of the relevant SEBI circulars, a copy of the PAN Card
is to be furnished ta the Company in the following cases:

* deletion of name of deceased sharehalder{s] where shares
are held jointly in the name of twao or more shareholders;

+ |ransmission of shares Lo the legal heirs where shares
are held solely in the name of deceased shareholder;

* |ransposition of shares where order of names of
shareholders are to be changed in the physical shares
held jointly by two or more sharehaolders,

Imvestors, therefore, are requested to furnish the self-attested
copy ol PAN card, at the time of sending the physical share
certificatels] to the Company, for effecting any of the above

Flaca: Kolkata
Date: 31st July, 2020
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stated requests. Shareholders are also requested to keep
record of their specimen signature before lodgement of shares
with the Company to avoid probability of signature mismatch
at a later date.

Update Correspondence Address / Bank Mandate / Email Id

To ensure all communications/ monetary benefils recaived
promptly, all shareholders holding shares in physical ferm
are requested to natify Lo the Company, change intheir address
{ bank details / email ld instantly by written request under the
signatures of sole/ first joint holder. Shareholderis| holding
shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify change
in bank details / address { email 1d directly with their respective
DPs.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ajay Kumar Mall
Chairman & Managing Director
[DIN:0o4701 84)
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Ta,
The Members
Mallcom (Indial Limited

| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Persannel,
affirmation(s) that they have complied with the Cade of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in
respect af the financial year ended 31 st March, 2020.

Date: July 31st, 2020 Ajay Kumar Mall
Place: Kolkata Chairman & Managing Director
[DIN : 004701 84)

CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD] & CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

Ta,
The Board of Directors
Mallcom [India) Limited

We, Ajay Kumar Mall, Managing Director and Shyam Sundar Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer of Mallcom [India) Limited,
certify that:

al We have reviewed Lhe Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2020
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that -

[i] these staterments do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact ar contain statements
that might be misleading;

liil these Statemnents together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
Accounting Standards, applicable laws and requlations;

bl There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
A1st March, 2020, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Campany’'s Code of Conduct;

cl Wea accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Campany pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the Auditors and
the Audit committee, and the steps have been taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d] [i] There has not been any significant change ininternal conlrol over financial reporting during the year under reference;

lii] Thers has net been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes
to the financial statements; and

lilil We are not aware of any instances during the year of significant fraud with involvement thersin of the management
or any employee having a significant rale in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Ajay Kumar Mall Shyam Sundar Agrawal
Maraging Director Chief Financial Officer
IDIN : 004701 84)

Date: lune 29th, 2020
Place: Kaolkata
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ta,

The Members,

Mz, Mallcam [Indial Ltd,

CIM- L51109WB1983PLCo37008

This is to certify that:

1. We have examined the compliance of canditions of carporate governance by M/s. Mallcom [Indial Ltd [hereinafter
referred “the Company”], for the year ended on 31 st March, 2020 as stipulated in relevant regulations of Securities and
Exchange Board of India |Listing Obligations and Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 201 5, with Stock exchangels|
and as stipulaled in the guidelines on Corporale Governance [hereinalter referred “the Guidelines™).

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the respansibility of the Management. Qur examination was
limited to procedures and implementations thereof adapted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the
Company. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of Certification and have been provided with such records, documents, certifications, etc.
as had been reguired by us.

3. The Company has taken steps for reviewing of Compliances of Laws. An elaborate system is in place for management
of currency as well as interest rate risk relating to Fareign Loan and steps had been taken in ather areas of integration
znd alignment of Risk Management with corporate and operational objectives.

4. As per the records maintained by the company there is no investor grievances remaining unattended or pending more
than 30 days.

5. Inour opinion and to the best of our infermation and according ta the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentionsd Listing
Regulations.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Rakhi Dasgupta & Assciates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration Mo, 5201 9WBA9Z200

Rakhi Dasgupta
ACS No. 28739
Place: Kaolkata CP Mo, 20354
Dated: June 29th, 2020 UDIM : AD2B739B00041 6432
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FIVE YEARS HIGHLIGHTS

A. Profit & Loss Statement

[¥InLakhs)

Particula 201920 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16
Revenue fram Operations 28,769.09 30,072.74 24,830.22 25,848,580 2756719
Other Income 45.86 rilie | 80.75 252 44 183
Talal Revenue 2B,814.95 30,072.74 24,m 008 2610124 | 27.585.50
EBIDTA 3.338.32 3.032.04 2,337.47 236170 1.83%.68
Depreciation & Amartizations L0878 &O71 &27.1 435,04 42636
Exceptional & Extracrdinary items 152.99 = - - -
Finance Costs 2R6.23 3005 413.08 3306 2750
Profit Before Tax 2,460.32 217443 1.496.48 1,395.50 1AM 73
Tax Expenses 634.25 Th6.06 e 47358 4283
Met Prafit 182407 140837 o824 521 4 78342
Cash Profit [in Rs.) 2,204 85 1,875.48 141704 1,349.44, 120013
Basic and Diluted EPS [In Rs.) 2024 2257 15.7% 1485 1223
B. Balance Sheet [¥ In Lakhs]

Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-1¢
Met Block of Fixed Assets 2B0g.92 3046.33 308319 2.923.14 2,864.50
Shareholders Fund/ Capital Emplayed 10443.02 4753.63 T434.56 B451 14 5,664.39
C. Key Ratios

| Particulars | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16
EBIDTA to Revenue from Operations (%] 11,40 10.08 241 8.36 a.67
Return on Equity |Nat Warth] % 1745 1409 1321 14.29 13.48
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the Members of MALLCOM (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
Dpinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
stalements of MALLCOM (INDIA] LIMITED (the "Company’|, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 91 March 2020, the Statemment of
Frofit and Leoss [including Other Comprehensive Incomel, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Staterment of Changes in Equity for the vear
endead an that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

2, Inour opinion and to the best ot our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the infarmaticn required by the Companies Act, 2013
[the ‘Act’] in the manner so required and give a true and Tair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards ['IndAS’] specified under Section
133 of the Act, of the state of affairs {financial position] of the Company
asat 31 st Mareh 2020, and ils prafil [financial performancs including
other comprehensive incomel, its cash flows and the changes in equity
tor the year ended on that date

5, Key Audit Matter that require to be communicated in our report;

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accardance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143010) of the Act. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are indepandent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ['ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements
and the Cede of Ethics. We believe that the audil evidenca we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

&, Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most signiticance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These malters were
addressed in the context of our audil of the financiat statements as
awhole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

[il Completeness, existence and accuracy of Revenue Recognition [Refer to Mote 2.15 and 22 to the standalone financial statements]

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition fAdoption of New Accounting Standard Ind
AS115: Revenue from contracts with customers [Refer to Mate
2,15 and 22 to the standalone financial statements]

Revenue is one of the key profit drivers and is therefore susceptible
to ris-statement. Cut-off is the key assertion in so far as revenue
recognition is concerned, since an inappropriate cut-off can result
in material misstatement of results for the year. The Company
manufaclures and sells a number of products 1o ils customers.
The Company has adopted the new accounting standard ind AS
115 as at April 1, 2018 and accordingly has reviewed its sales
contracts for determining the principles fer recognizing revenue
in accerdance with the new standard,

Principal audit procedures:

al Dur audit procedures with regard to revenue recognition included
testing controls, automated and manual, around dispatches/
deliveries, inventory reconcitiations and circularization of receivable
halances, subslantive testing for cut-offs and analytical review
procedures

bl Selected a sample of contracts and through inspection of evidence
of performance of these controls, tested the operating effectiveness
of the internal controls relating 1o the identification.of perfarmance
obligations and timing of revenue recognition.

o} Selected 2 sample of contracts and reassessed contractual terms
to determine adherence to the requirements of the new accouniing
standard

[ii) Existence and Valuation of Inventories [Refer note 2.10 and 8 of the Standalone Financial Statements]

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company’s major part of inventory comprises Raw Material!
Accessories/ Work-in-Progress/ finished goods which are
geographically spread over multiple locations such as factories
producing difference products. These inventaries are also procured
at many times as per customer specification and order requiremant
and customized as such. The whale inventary is counted by the
Company on & cyclical basis and accordingly provision for

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the following audit
procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence:

a) Obtzining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of management’s key intarnal
contraks relating to physical verification of inventories by the management
and the internal auditors of the Company, Identification of obsalete and
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

obsalescence of inventories 15 assessed and recognized by the
management in the financial statements based on managament
estimation as at end of reparting period

The Cempany manutactures and sells goods which may be subject
ta changing consumer demands and product developments.
Significant degrea af judgment is thereby required to assess the
net realizable value of the inventories and appropriate level of
provisioning for items which may be ultimately sold below cost,
Such judgment includes management’s expectations for future
sale volumes, invantary liguidation plans and future selling prices
less cost to sell,

Based on above, existence and valuation of inventories has been
identitied as a key audit matter.

slow moving inventories, inventories with low or negative gross
margins, monitaring of inventory ageing and assessment of
provisianing and of net realizable values.

bl  Assessingwhether items in the invenlory ageing report prepared
by the management were classified within the apprapriate ageing
bracket;

el Performing a review of the provisions for inventories by
examining movements in the balance during the current year and
new pravisions made for inventory balances as at 31 March 2020
during the current year to assess the historical accuracy of
management's invenlory pravisioning process;

d] Assessing, on a sample basis, the net realizable value of slow-
maving and obsolets inventories and inventaries with low or negative
gross margins as calculated by management with reference to prices
achieved and costs to sell after the financial year end.

e]  Attending cyclical inventory counts at various godown & factories
at regular intervals during the re poﬂm% period and evaluating the
resulls of the cycle counts parforrmead by the managemant throughout

the year to assess management's estimation of fhe provisioning,

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial staterents
and aur auditor’s repart theraan,

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do nat express any form of assurance
conclusicn therean

In cannaction with our awdit of the financial statemanls, our
responsibility is to read the ather information and, in doing so,
consider whather the ather information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
ar otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |f, based an the
work we have performed, we canclude that there i1s a material
rmisstaternent of this ather infarmation, we are required 1o report that
fact, We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the standalone financial statements

7. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 1 34[5] of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
afl the state of affairslfinancial position], prafil or loss [fnancial
performance including other comprehensive incomel, changes in
equity and cash flows af the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind A5 specified
under Section 133 af the Act. This responsibility alsa includes
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implernentation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial stataments that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due ta fraud ar error,

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible

/0

for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless managemeant either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease oparatiens, or has no
raalistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directars are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

10. Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
rmisstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor’'s
report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate,
thay could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11, Aspart of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

al Identity and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and apprapriate to provide a basis
far our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,as
fraud may invalve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Bl Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, Under Section1 4313] [i] of the Act, we are also
responsible for explaining our apinion an whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

cl  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management

dl Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the
going cancern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence



ohtained, whether amaterial uncerlamty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a gaoing concern. |f we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are reqguired to draw attention in
our guditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our
opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company ta cease Lo conlinue as a going
concarn,

el Evaluate the overall presentation, structurs and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and evenls ina manner that achieves fair presentation. Materiality
is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the econcmic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and gualitative factors in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our waork; and ta
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone
financial statemnents.

12. We communicate with these charged with govermance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, mcluding any significant
deficiencies ininternal control that we identity during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with
a slatement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and o communicate
with themn all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

14. From the matlers communicated with those chargad with
governance, we determine those matters that were of mast
significance in the audit of the financial staterments of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these
matlers in our auditor’s repart unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. A&s required by Section 197014} of the Act, we repart that the
Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down undar Section
197 read with Schedule V to thae Act.

16, As required by the Companies [Auditor’s Report] Order, 201 4
{the 'Order] issued by the Central Government of india in terms
of Section 143011} of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a staternent
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

17. Furthar to our comments in Annexure A, as required by
Section 143030 of the Act, we report that:
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al we have saughl and obtained all the infarmation and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary far the purpose of our audit;

bl inour opinion, proper books of account as required by Law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

cl  the standalane financial slatemants dealt with by this repar
are in agreement with the books of account;

dl inour apinian, the aforesaid standalane flinancisl statements
comply with Ind &S specified under Section 133 of the Act;

el anthe basis of the written represantations received from
the directors and taken on recerd by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 1 6412] of the Act.

fl  we have also audiled the internal financial controls over
financial reporting [IFCoFR] of the Company as on 31 March 2020
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial staterments
of the Company for the year ended on that date and cur report as
per Annexure B expressed an unmadified opinion;

gl with respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditar's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies [Audit
and Auditors] Rules, 2014 las amended|, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

il the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in the standalone financial staterments;
il the Company has made provision, as required under th
eapplicable law ar IndAS, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on leng-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii] there has been no delay in transferring ameunts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Campany during the year ended 31 March 2020,

ivl the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as
well as dealings in specified bank notes were applicable far the
period from & November 201 & to 30 December 201 &, which are not
relevant ta these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

18, A=z required by the Companies [Auditar’s Report] Order, 2014
|"the Order”| issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143011) of the Act, we give in “Annesure B” a slalerment an Lhe
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and § of the Order.

For 5. K. Singhania & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration No. 302204E

Rajesh Singhania

Partner
Membership Mo, 52722

Flace: Kolkata
Dated: Juna 29th, 2020
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ANNEXUREATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

[Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date)

In respect of its figed assets:

1

al  The company has mamntained proper recards showing full
particulars, including guantitative details and situation of its fixed
assets,

bl According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, such
frued assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year, In our opinion, the frequency of verification of
the fixed assets by the management 1s reasonabls having regard
to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on verification.

Baced upon the audit procedure performed and according to the
records of the company, the tille deeds of all the immovahle
Properties are held in the name of the company,

2]

In respect of its inveniores:

2

al  Theinventories have been physically verified by the management.
I our opinien, the freguency of verification is reasonable.

bl The discrepancies noliced an verification between the physical
stocks and the book records were not material and have baen
property dealt with in the books of accounts,

|

Since the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured,
clause lal, {bl & (cf of section [iii] of Para 3 of the Order is not applicable.

Since the company does not have any oan, as such provisions of section
185 and 184 of the Act are not applicable,

Since the company has not accepted any deposits, section |v] of Para
3of the Order 5 not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the
company pursuant to the Campanies {Cost Records and Audit] Rules,
2014 read with Companies [Cost Records and Audit] Amendment Rules,
2m4 specified by the Central Government under section 148 of the
Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed cost records
hiave been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
axamination of the records with & view Lo determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

al  According te the intormation and explanations geven to us, the
company has ganerally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Cuty, Excise Duty, Cess, Goods and Service Taxand other
matarial statutory dues applicable to it

Bl According to the information and explanations given to us, the
details of disputed amount of various taxes are deposiled by the
Company are as follows :

IZ in Lakhs]

Incame Tax Act 2010-11 25.31 12.00 13:31 CIT (A ppeal]
201112 45.90 23.00 22.00
201213 24.36 1600 B.36
20314 37.75 1035 27.40
2N 4-15 146,03 12.25 378
20M5-16 14.67 .40 10.47
Service Tax - 53.18 .08 20,50 Commissionar [Appeall
VAT - Ll e . IQHEE West Bengat Taxation
Tribunal [WBTT|
CaT - 34,93 g 33,62 Cammissianer [Appeal|
8. Inour opinion and accarding to the infarmation 2nd explanations givan Ind As financial statements as required by the applicable Indian

ta us, the company has not defaulted in the repayment ol loans or
barrawings from Banks, The company did not have outstanding loans
from Financial institutions, Debenture Holdars or Government.

Since the Company did not raise any maney by way ol initial public
offer or further public otfer [including debt instruments] and term
lans during the year, saction [ix] of Para 3 of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations give fo us, no fraud by
the Company aron the Campany by its officers or amployees has bean
noticed or reparted during the year,

In gur opinion and according to the information and explanations given
la us, lhe company has pad [ provided managerial remuneratian in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by provisions of
cection 197 read with Schedule ¥ Le the Companies Acl, 2013,

Irqur opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to usg, the Company is not a nidhi company, as such section [« of Para
3 of the Order is not applicabia,

Ineur opinian and according to the infarmaticn and explanations given
to us, sll transactionswith the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed inthe Standalone

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 29th, 2020

accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on aur examination of the records of the Company, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placemeant of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, clause iyl
of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations giver to us and based
on cur examination of the records of the Company, the Company has
not entered info non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them, as such section [xv] of Para 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

The Cempany is net required te be registered under Section 45-14 of
the Reserve Eani of India Act 1934,

For 5. K. Singhania & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Mo, 3o2206E

Rajesh Singhania
Partner
Membership Mo, 52722
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

|Referred to in Paragraph 2IF] under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date|

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause || of
subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act’),

Wa have audited the internal financial controls ever financial reporting
of MALLCOM [INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”| as of 315t March
2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalong Ind AS financial
statements of the Company fer the year ended on that date.

Management s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reparting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
af india [ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thal were operating effectively
{or ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
1o the Company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial intormation, as required
under the Companies Act, 203,

Auditors Responsibility

Qur respansibility is to express an opinion an the Campany's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reparting |"the Guidance Note") and the Standards an Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(1 0l of the Companies
Act, 2013, 10 the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Contrals and, bath issued by the
Institute of Charterad Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to abtain reasanable sssurance aboutl whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and
if such contrals aperated effectively in all matenal respects,

Qur audit involves perferming procedures ta obtain audit evidence aboul the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Dur audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reparting, assessing the risk that & material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend an the auditor’s
judgment, including the sssessment of the nisks al material misstatement al
the financial statements, whether due ta fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed 1o provide reasenable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extarnal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal
financial control over financial reparting includes those policies and procedures
that

{t] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transaction and dispositions of the asseis of the company;
{2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
1o permit pregaration of financial slatements in accordance with ganerally
accepled accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures af the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the
Management and directors of the Company, and |3l provide reasonabie assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
dispesition af the Campany’s assete that could have 3 material effect on the
financizl statemnents.

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to errer or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Alse, projections of any evalustion of the internal financisl contrals
over financial reporting to future period are subject ta the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinian, the Campany has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financiat controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating eftectively as at 31 5t March
2020, based on the internal contral ever financial reporting criteria established
by the company considering the essenlial companents of internal control stated
n the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of India.

For S. K. Singhania & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration No. 302206E

Rajesh Singhania
Partner
Membership No. 52722

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 20th, 2020
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BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2020

(7 in Lakhs)
Sl. NO. | Particulars Mote As at As at
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
ASSETS
MNon-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 277944 200812
Capital work-in-pragress 43 29374 42 .82
Intangible assats 5 30.48 50,21
Financial Assets
Investmants & 590.04 500.06
Loans 7 47.03 7B.57
Current Tax Assel [Met) 172.m 04, 68
3.932.74 1,852 .46
Current Assets
Inventories g 7.505.92 &, 768.32
Financial Assets
Invastmants Q 212519 R44.BR
Trade Receivables 10 214387 351477
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 510,52 202,
Other Bank Balances 12 a.71 7.43
Loans 7 20.85 26 4B
Other Current Aszets 13 2,330.M 3,.856.05
14,715 87 14,993,171 |
Total Assets 1B,648.65 18,845.57
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 f24.00 624,00
Other Equity 15 g.819.02 813589
10,443.02 8,763.85
Deferred Tax Liabitity |Met] 2 35.58 23.68
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 3,235.48 4,52%.39
Trade Payables 17 3.331.05 3.B40.48
Other Financial Lizbilibies 18 L0414 438,63
(ther Current Liabilities 1g 1184677 1,206.02
Provisions 20 12.59 4348
B,205.63 10,081,568
Total Equity and Liabilities 1B,648.65 18,845.57
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral opart of the Financial Statements.
As par our Repart of even date.
For 5. K. Singhania & Ca. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302206E
Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership Mo. 52722 [DIM - 00470184 [DIM - 01 043022)
Place: Wolkata 5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha
Date: 28t June, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

[ACS : 42302)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2020

[T in Lakhs)
1R Particulars Mote | For the year ended |For the year ended
NO. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

INCOME
| Revenue from operations 22 2B.7469.09 30,072.74
] Other Income 23 45 B 21,3
[I1 | TOTAL INCOME 28,814.95 30,094.05
IV | EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 16,01 6.21 17,229 87
FPurchase of Traded Goods 25 1,858 2,003.73
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 [295.53] [349.2¢)
Employee Banefils Expense 27 122613 1,158.24
Finance Costs 28 25623 390,50
Depreciation and Amartization Expense 468.78 L£67.11
Manufacturing and Other Dperational Expenses 25 b.448.T 6.464.89
Other Expenses 29ial 7818 364.54
TOTAL EXPENSES 26,507.62 27,919.62
Y | Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 2,307.33 217443
Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems 152.99 -
Profit before tax 2,460.32 2,174.43
Wl | Tax Expense 34
Current Tax 58791 Fhb .0z
Tax for Previcus Years 35.41
Deferred Tax {Creditl/Charge 1001 0.04
VIl | PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,826.07 1,408.37
WIil | OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Iterns that will not be Reclassified ta Profitar Loss - -
Income Tax relating to tems that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - B
Fairvalue of Investment / Exchange difference on transaction of foreign
aperalions 1 |kl 2380 117.53
Income Tax relating to these items [6.00] [31.28)
[tems that will not be reclassified to profil or loss |[Re-measurement of
post employment benefit obligations) [ra.09] [14.26)
Income Tax relating to these items 4.80 5.23
3.51 75.84
¥ | TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 1,829.58 1,484.21
[Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the Period]
¥ | Earning per equity share of ¥ 10 each [In %) 16
Cash 36,95 a0.43
Basic and Diluted 2024 a2 57
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
Az per our Report of even date,

For 5. K. Singhania & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302206E

Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall
Partner Chairman & Managing Directar Director

Membership Mo, 52722

Place: Kolkata
Date: 200 June, 2020

[DIM : 004701841

S5.5.Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer

DI

[DIM - 01 043022]

5. Purakayastha
Company Secretary
[ACS - 42302]
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2020

I in Lakhs]
SL Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
Mo. 31.03.2020 31.03.201%
B CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIMG ACTIVITIES
Met Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary ltems 2,301.15 2.174.43
Adjustments For:
Depreciation and Amartisation Expense 468,78 AE7
Batances Written Back [Met| 242 [5.95
Interast Incomea 1.52 [2.85]
Prafit on sale of Property, Flant & Equipment |Metl/dssets Written OFf [5.99]
Extraordinary iterm 152.99
Reameasurement gain of DBO/DBEP [3.51]
Finance Costs 254,23 B78.83 333.4 8465
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,179.99 2,959.08
Adjustments For:
lIncreasel/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 2,896.30 [1 44778
[Increase)/Decreasa in Inventories [Fo7.60) [28&.70]
Increasef|Decrease| in Trade and Other Payables and Provisions|  [594.05] 1,504,664 034,42 800,06
Cash Generated From Operations &4, 684,65 2,159.02
Direct Taxes Paid [Met of Refunds| [634.25] [566.36]
Met Cash from Operating Activities 4,050.40 1,592.66
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment {Met]/dssets Written OF 5.20
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments
[Inctuding Capital Work-in-Progress and Advances) |538.23] [502.401
Purchases/Precceeds from sale of Investments [1.580.34) (54518
Intersst Incoma [1.92] (212049 3.85 [1,007 541
Met Cash from/ [Used in] Investing Activities 12,120.49] [1,037.94]
| CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds/| Repayment| af Short Term Borrowingslnet] f1.253.m] 35.60
Interest and Finanoial Charges Faid [256.23) |333.38]
Dividend and Tax paid thergan |Interim, special and Final] [150.45) [1, 700,55 [150.45] (&4 2]
Met Cash from/ [Used in] Financing Activities (1,700.59) [448.23]
Met Increase/[Decrease] in cash or cash equivalents [A+B+C| 229.32 106.50
Cash or Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 299.64 193.14
Cash or Cash equivalents at the end of the year 52%.23 299.64
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements,
1 Reconcillation of Financial Liabilities arising from Financing Activities
Particulars Opening Balance Financing Cash Flow Changes Maon-Financing Cash Flow Changes Closing Balance
Asat 1.6.19 Principal Repayment Fair Value Changes Forex Changes | As at 31.03.2020
Shart Ferrm Barrowings 4.520.3% 12659 = 323548
Larmg barm Borrowings - - - - - -
2 Direct Taxes are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities”
3 The abave cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 'Staterment of Cash Flows'.
& For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Eguivalants comprises the followings:
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 | Asat31.03.2019
Balances with Banks 51652 Py
Cashin Hand o 743
Total 529.23 299.64
As per our Report of even date.
For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ma. 302206E
Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall
Partner Chairman & Managing Directar Oirectar
Membership Mo, 52722 [DIM - oo470184) (DN« o1 043022
Place: Bolkata 5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Date: 26th June, 2020
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Company Secratary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31st March, 2020

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL [Refer Note 14)

(2 in Lakb
t*,r hares of 10 each, issued, subscribed and ll:,r paid-up
As at 31.03.2020 6,240,000 624.00
As at 31.03.2019 6,240,000 624.00
B. OTHER EQUITY [Refer Note 15]
For the year ended 31st March, 2020
[T in Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2019 £01.49 511.00 7,125.00 102.41 8,139.89
Profit for the current year - - - 1.826.07 1,826.07
Comprehensive Income far the year - - 3.51 3.51
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - - 1.829.58 1,829.58
Transfer toflfrom| Retained Earnings - - 1.400.00 [1.4600,00] =
Remeasurement of DBR/DBO/Investment . - - -
Dividend Paid - - [124.80 [124.80)
Dividend Tax Paid - - [25.45] [25.45)
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2020 401.49 511.00 8,725.00 181.54 9,819.02
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
17 in Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2018 £01.49 173.17 6,810.64
Profit for the current year - - 1.408.37 5
Comprehensive Income for the year - - 75.84 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 148421 14842
Transfer tof|from] Retained Earnings - - 1,400.00 i1, 400.00] -
Rermeasurement of DBP/DEO/Investment - - [4.52] [4.52]
Dividend . [124.80] [124.80]
Dividend distribution Tax - - - |25.65] 25,651
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2019 £01.49 511.00 7.125.00 102.41 8,139.89

As per our Report of even date.

For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo. 302206E

Rajesh Singhania ALK Mall G.K.Mall

Fartner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Mermbership No. 2727 [DIN - pog701 84 [DIM : o1 p4a022]

Flace: Kolkata S.5.Agrawal S. Purakayastha

Date: 20th June, 2020 Chiet Financial OHicer Company Secretary

IACS - 42302
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

Corporate Information

Mallcom [India) Limited ["the Company”| is a public
lirnited company domiciled in India and is incorporated
inthe year 1983 under Companies Act applicable in India.
Its shares are listed an ane recognized stock exchange,
the BSE Limited in India. The registered office of the
company is located at EN-12, Sector-V, Salt Lake,
Kolkata- 700091, India.The company is one of the
established manufacturers — exporter of Persanal
Protective Equipments [PPEL. It has a long track record
in the Industrial Safety Products categaory, These financial
staterments are approved and adopted by the Board of
Cirectors of the Company in their meeting dated 29th
June, 2020,

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Measurement

2.2

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a
histarical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Derivatives financial instruments

Certain Financial assets measured at fair value [refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees
["INR"] and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs,
except otherwise indicated.

Current Vs Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the

balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

al Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
cansumed in normal operating cycle

bl Held primarily for the purpose of trading
tf Expected to be realised within twelve manths after
the reporting period, or

dl Cashor cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other
assets are classiflied as non-current.

A liability is current when:

al Expected to be settled in normal aperating cycle

bl Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢l Due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting periad, or

dl There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlernent of the Lability for at least twelve months

after the reparting period. The Company classifies
all other Liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assels and LUabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities, Based on the nature of

2.3

product and time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle

Property, Plant and Equipment

Froperty, Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated deprciation/amortization and impairment,
if any. Freehold land not containing mineral reserve is
disclosed al cosl less impairment, if any, Cost comprises
of purchase price and directly attributable cost of
acquisition/bringing the asset to its working conditian
for its intended use [net of credit availed, if any]
When significant parts of the plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals the company
depreciates them seperately based on their specific
useful lives, Capital work in progress is carried at cost
and directly attributable expenditure during construction
period which is allocated to the property, plant and
equipment on the completion of project.

Borrowing costs directly attributable ta the acquisition/
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part
of the cost of such assel ULl such time Lhe assel s ready
for its intended use Other borrowing costs are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation and Amortisation

Deprecigtion is pravided on written down value method
over the estimated useful lives of the assetls. Leasehold
Property are depreciated over their expected lease terms.
Mo depreciation is charged an Freehold land. Estimated
useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Asset Estimated Useful
Lives
Flant & Machinery 13 Years
Building 28 Years
Electric Installations 13Years
Mould & Dies 13 Years
Furniture & Fixtures BYears
Yehicles & Years
Office Eguipment 4 ¥ears
Computers 1 Years
Computer License 4 Years
Patent Right 4 Years

Gains or Losses arising from de-recognition of assets
are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of Profit and loss when the
asset |s derecognized.



2.4

2.5

2.6

The residual Values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end adjusted
prospeclively, if appropriale,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amartization and impairment, if any. Cost camprises of
purchase price and directly attributable cost of
acquisition/bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use |net of credit availed, if any)
Amaortization is provided on a written down value method
over estimated uselul lives.

The residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted praospectively, if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal praceeds and Lhe carrying amount of the asset
and are recagnised in the statement of profil or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets

Anitermn of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
its use or disposal Gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and Lhe carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss,

Leases
Company as lessee

The Campany assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. & cantract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to contraol the
use of anidentified asset for & period of Lime in exchange
for consideratian, To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Campany assesses whether: il the cantract involvas the
use of an identified asset, |ii] the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
tha asset through the period of the lease and [iii] the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. At
the date of commencement of the lease, the Company
recognizes a right-of-use asset ["ROUT) and a
corresponding lease Liability for all lease arrangements
inwhich it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less [short-term leases| and low value
leases, For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recagnizes the lease payments as an aperating
expense an a straight-line basis over the term of the
lzase. Certain lease arrangements includes the options

2.7
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to extend ar terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these aptions when itis reasonably certain thal they will
be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the tease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the carmmencement date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives,
They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU
assels are depreciated from the commencement date
on & straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset, Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-
in-usel is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets, In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined fer the Cash
Generating Unit {CGU] to which the asset belongs,

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company Is a lessor is classified
as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operaling leases. When the Company is an intermediate
lessar, it secounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a
finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset
arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental
income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease, Company adapted Ind A5114
on Leases w.e.f1st April 2019.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal & external factors. Animpairment loss
is recognized wherever the carrying amounts of an asset
exceed its recoverable amount. The recaverable amount
is the greater of the assets net selling price and value
inuse. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value at the
weighted average cost of capital. Reversal of impairmeant
loss is recagnized immediately as Incoeme in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial Liabilities [financial
instruments) are recognized when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual pravisions of the instruments,
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Finaricial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities [other than financial assets and
financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets ar financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or lass are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Prafit and
Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified
as current, il they are expected Lo be realised or setlled
within aperating cycle of the Company or atherwise these
are classified as non-current,

The classification of financial instruments whether Lo be
measurad at Amortised Cost, at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss [FVTPL| or at FairValue through Other
Comprehensive |ncome [FVTOCH depends an the objective
and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification
of financial instruments are determined on initial
recognition

Cash & Cash equivalents

Cash & Cash equivalents consist of Cash on Hand, Cash
at Bank, Term Deposits & Chegues in Hand. ALL highly
liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject
Lo an insignificant risk of change in value and are having
original maturities of three months or less from the date
of purchase, are considered as cash eguivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which
are unrestricted for withdrawal and usagse.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose chjective
is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest an the principal
amount outstanding are measured al amortised cost.
The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
subsequent to initial recognition are measured at
amorlized cost using Effective Interest Rale [EIR] method.

The effactive interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts [including
all fees and points paid or recewved, lransaction cosls
and other premiums or discounts| through the expected
lifa of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the
gross carrying amaunt of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of financial liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

ili) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other

iv]

vl

vil

Comprehensive Income [FYTOCI]

Financial assets are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flaws and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income

For the purpose of para fil and [iii] above, principal is
the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognitian
and interest consists of consideration for the time valua
of money and associated credit risk,

Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through
profit or loss

Financial Instruments which does not meel the criteria
of amaortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive inceme ara classified as Fair Value
through Profit and loss. These are recognised at fair
value and changes therein are recogmized in the
statementol profit and loss.

Derivative and Hedge Accounting

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments
such as foreign exchange forward, swap and option
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates in respect of linancial instruments and
forecasted cash flows denominated in certain foreign
currencies. The Company uses hedging instruments
which provide principles on the Use of such financial
derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy
of the Company. The hedge instruments are designated
and documented as hedges and effectiveness of hedge
instruments to reduce the risk associated with the
exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at
inception and on an angaing basis.

Any derivative that is either not designated as a hedge,
or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109
"Financial Instruments” is categorised as a financial
assel, at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs attributable are alse recognised in Statement of
prafit and loss. Changes in the fair value of the derivative
hedging instrument designated as a fair value hedge are
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, Changes
in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument
designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised in ather
comprehensive income and presented within equity as
cash flow hedging reserve to the extent that the hedge
is effective Il the hedging instrument no longer meets
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the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity till that time remains and thereafter ta the extent
hedge accounting being discontinued is recognised in
Statement of profit and loss. When a forecasted
transaction is no longer expected to accur, the curmulative
gain or loss accumulated in equity is transferred to the
Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each
balance shest date. A financial asset is considered to be
impaired if abjective evidence indicates that one ar more
events have had a negative effect on the estimaled future
cash flows of that asset.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial
asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrumeant has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial instrument has net increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

Howewver, for trade receivables or contract assets that
result in relation to revenue from cantracts with
custarmers, the Company measures the loss allowance
at an amaount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

viii] Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a linancial assel or a
Company of financial assets when the contractual rights
La the cash flows from the asset expire, or when il
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party.

On derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity
instruments designated as FYTOCI), the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable are recognised in
staternent of profit and loss,

On derecognition of assets measured at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in aother
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liahilities are derecognised if the Company’'s
obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled. The difference batween the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised

2.9
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and the cansideration paid and payable is recognized in
Staterment of Profit and Loss

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to
be held far not more than a year are classified as current
investment. All ather investments are classified as long
term investments. Current Investments are carried at
lower of cosl and fair value determined on individual
investment basis. Lang-terms investments are carried
at cost. A provision of diminution is made to recognize
a decline, ather than temporary, in the value of long-
term investments

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued al lower of cost or net realisable
value, Cost of inventories is ascertained on "FIFD basis.
Materials andother supplies held for use inthe production
of inventories are not written down below cost if the
related finished products are expected tobe sold at or
above cosl.

il Raw Materials, Stores and spares

These are valued at the lower of cost and estimated
net realizable value, after providing for cost of
absolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever,
considered necessary.

iil Work-in-progress and Finished Goods

These include cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their prasent
location and condition, Cost is determined an First
in First aut [FIFQ| basis.

2.11 Foreign Currency Transaction

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
reparting currency prevailing at the date of the
transaction, Realized gains/ losses on foreign exchange
transactions during the year are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are fransiated at the year end rates and
resultant gains/losses fram fereign exchange translations
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss,

Forward Exchange Contracts not intended for trading or
speculation purposes.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of
forward exchange contracts is amortized a5 expense or
inceme over the life of the contract, Exchange differences
on such contracts are recognized inthe statement of
profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates
change. Any profit or lass arising on cancellation or
renewal of forward exchange contract is recognised as
income or expense for the year,
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2.12 Equity Share Capital

Anequity instrument is a contract that evidences residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of its Liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded
as share capital and the amount received in excess of
par value is classified as Securities Premium,

Caosts directly attributable to the issue of ardinary shares
are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects

2.13 Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

Frovisions are recognized when an enterprise has a
present obligation as a resull of past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Frovisions are not discounted to its present value and
are delerminad based on best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date. They are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for and are
disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements
when there is a possible cbligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or when there is a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not prabable
that an outflow of resources will be required Lo settle
the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this
respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in
the financial statement by way of notes Lo accounts when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

2.14 Employee Benefits

82

il Short Term Employee Benefits

Shart term employee benefits, such as salaries,
wages, incentives etc. are recagnized as expenses
at actual amounts, in the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the year in which the related services are
rendered. Leave not availed in a year can be carried
farward up to 30 days.

iil Defined Contribution Plans

Defined contribution plans are Provident Fund
Scheme, Employee State Insurance Scheme and
Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for
the employees. The company makes monthly
contributions towards these funds / schemes, which
are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Lass in
the financial year ta which they relate, There is no
obligation other than the monthly contributions,

iiil Defined Benefit Plans

The company has a defined benefit plan for Post-
employment benefit in the form of Gratuity for all
emplayees. Contribution on account of gratuity
payment is made to the Gratuity Trust. Liability for
above defined benefit plan is provided on the basis
of actuarial valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date.
The actuarial method used for measuring the liability
is the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gain
and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
other comprehensive income

2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with
delivery.

Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the Company transfers Control of the
product . Contral of the product translers upon shipment
of the product ta the customer or when the product is
made available to the customer, provided transfer of
title to the customer occurs and the Company has naot
retained any significant risks of ownership or future
obligations with respect to the product shipped . Amounts
disclosed as revenue are net cff returns, trade
allowances, rebates and indirect taxes.

Export Benefits

Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods
in the year of export if the entitlements can be estimated
with reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent o
clairm is fulfilled.

Interest & Dividend

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking
inta account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable,

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’
right to receive payment is established by the balance
sheet date,

2.16 Borrowing Costs

Borrawing cost comprises of interest and other costs
incurred in connaction with the borrowing of the funds,
All borrowing costs are recagnised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss using the effective interest method

2.17 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax
expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is
recognized in the income statement except ta the extent



that it relates to itermns recognized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered fram or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amaount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.Current
incame tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or Loss is recognised outside profit or loss [either in other
comprehensive income or in equity], Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate, Current tax assets and
lizbilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
Lo realise Lhe asset and settle the Liability on a nel basis
or simultansously

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
betwesn the tax bases of assels and Liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax Liabilities are recognised
for all taxable termparary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible tempaorary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no
lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable
prafits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured al the tax rates that are expected ta apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates [and tax laws] that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recegnised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss [either in ather
cemprehensive income or in equity].Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate ta the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to
Equity Shareholders [after deducting attributable taxes)
by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average
numbers af equity shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for events of bonus issue, bonus elements
in a right issue to existing shareholders and share splits.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per
share, the net profit or Loss for the year attributable to
equity sharehalders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive polential equity shares.

2.1% Segment Reporting

Segment is identified and reported taking into account
the nature of products and services, the different risks
and returns and the integral business reparting systems.
The Company primary business segment is Industrial
Safety Products. The Industrial Safety Products business
incarporates product Campanys viz. Leather hand Gloves,
Industrial Work Garments, Seamless Knitted Gloves,
Leather Shoe Upper, Salety Shoes and Nitrile Dipped
Gloves, which mainly have similar risks and returns,
Thus the Company business activity falls within a single
primary business segment.

Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key
sources of estimation and uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period, Accounling
estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates, Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Differences between the actual results and
estimates are recognised in the year in which the results
are known / materialised and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
and the use of assumptions in the financial staterments
have been disclosed below. The key assumptions
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3.1

3.2

84

concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and Liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed helow:

Depreciation / amortisation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment / intangible assets.

FProperty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assels are
depreciated/amortised on straight-line/written down
value basis over the estimated useful lives lor lease term
if sharter| in accordance with Company accounting policy,
taking into account the estimated residual value,
wherever applicable.

The Company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible
and Intangible Assets whenaver there is objective
evidence that the assets are impaired.In such situation
Asset’s recoverable amount is estimated which is higher
of asset’s or cash ganerating units [CGL fair value less
cost of disposal and its value in use. |n assessing value
in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted
using pre-tax discount rates which reflectthe current
assessment of time value of money. In determining fair
value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations
are considered oratherwise in absence of such
transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The
Campany reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine Lhe amountl aof
depreciation / amortisation and amaount of impairment
expense to be recorded during any reparting period, This
reassassment may result in change estimated in future
periods.

Arrangements containing leases and classification of
leases

The Company enters into service / hiring arrangements
for various assets [ services, The determination of lease
and classification of the service/hiring arrangement as
a finance lease or operating lease is based on an
assessment of several factors, including, but not limited
to, transferof ownership of leased asset at end of lease
term, lessee’s oplion to purchase and estimated certainty
of exercise of such aption, propertion of lease term to
the asset’s economic lite, proportion of present value of
minimum tease payments to fair value of leased asset
and extent of specialised nature aof the leased asset,

3.3

3.4

35

3.6

3.7

Claims and Compensation

Claims including insurance claims are accounted far on
determination af certainty of realisation thereof.

Impairment allowances on trade receivables

The Company evaluates whether there is any objective
evidence that trade receivables are impaired and
determines the amount of impairment allowance as a
resull of the inability of the custormers to make reguired
payments. The Company bases the estimates on the
ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthingss
of the trade receivables and historical write-off
experience. If the financial conditions of the trade
receivable were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

Income taxes

Sigmificant judgment is required in determination of
taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for
incame taxes.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Critical estimate of the DBO involves a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mortality, discount rate anticipation of future
salary increases etc. as estimated by Independent Actuary
appointed far this purpose by the Management. Variation
in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO
amount and the annual defined benefit expenses,

Provisions and Contingencies

Frovisions and liabilities are recognised in the period
when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outllow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated.
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability
requires the application of judgement to existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject to change,

Management judgment is required for estimating Lhe
possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/ claim/ litigations/ against the Company
as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending
matters with accuracy.

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and
estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly
and revised to take account of changing facts and
circumstances.
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NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [As at March 31, 2020)

(¥ in Lakhs)

(i) | Tangible Assets:
1 | Free Hold Land 45552 - - | 45952 - - - -|  459.52
2 | Buildings 1.094.45] 30.24 - |102469( 27014 80.73 - | 350.87| 773.82
3 | Plant and Equipment | 2,289.84| 102.11 7.32 |2,3B4.63| 793.72| 28238 5.22 |1.070.88 | 1.313.75
& | Electrical Installations 171.74 5.59 = 177.33 62441 29.3 - o795 85,58
5 | Mould & Dies 55.09 74.04 - | 13063 22.446| 25.48 - 4784 82.49
& | Furniture & Fixtures 70.99|  4.62 - 75.61| 33.58| 1043 - | 4401 31.60
7 | Vehicles 52.02 - - 52,02 30.39 6,76 - 3715 14.87
B | Office Equipments 17.39| 6.63 - 24.02 8.34| 586 - | 1420 9.82
g | Camputer Software 30.52] 10.64 - 41.16| 2527 B.10 - 33.37 e
Total 4,262,465 234.47 7.32 |4,4669.61(1,2466.34 | £49.05 5.22 |1,690.17 | 2,779.44

NOTE 4a: CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS [As at March 31, 2020]

[T in Lakhs)

1 Plant & Equipment 2601 | 24.52 2h.62 24.52 - - - = 24.52
2 | Building 13.73 | 255.38 13,73 | 255.38 = = - ] 255.38
3 Electrical Installations 1.08 - 1.07 a.01 - - - - 0.0
4 | Factory Equipment - 8.05 - 8.08 - - - - 8.05
£ | Camputer Software 1.40 .80 1.40 5.80 - - - - 5.80
SUB Total [C) 42,82 | 293.74 £2.82 | 29376 - = - - 293.76
NOTE 5: INTANGIBLE ASSETS [As at March 31, 2020)

[F in Lakhs)

liil |Intangible Assets:
1 |Computer License 84.86 - - Bg.Bh| 382 18.36 - 56.49 28.37
2 Patent Right 10.05 - - 10.06 6.57 1.38 - 7.94 PR
Total 94.92 - - F4.92 | 44.69 19.74 - &4.43 30.48
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NOTE é: NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

) Iin Lakhs]

1 |UNQUOTED
Subsidiary Company Fully Paid Equity Shares
Mallcom VSFT Gloves Pyt, Ltd, 10 4,894,000 490,00 4,894 000 4£50.00
Mallcom Safety Pyt, Ltd, 10 1,000,000 100,00 | 1,000,000 100.00
Total 590.00 590.00
2 Other Instruments
Investrment in Government or Trust Securities 0.06 0.06
[NSC Placed with VAT Authorities]
Total o 590.06 - 590.06
MNOTE 7: FINANCIAL ASSETS- LOANS

in Lakhs]

|[Unsecured and Considered Good)
1 |Lpans and Advances to Staff and Workers - - 20.85 29.48
2 {Security Deposits &7.03 78.57 3 =
Total 467.03 78.57 20.85 29.48
NOTE 8: INVENTORIES [Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value)

4.115.94

in Lakhs]

38714

1 |Raw Materials [includes in transit T 479.37 lakhs [As at 31.03.201 ¢ T217.48 lakhs]]

2 |Stores and Spares 1,005.20 T47 .94

3 |Work-in-Progress 1,183.B46 1340.51

4 |Finished Goods 1,260.92 808.73
Total 7,565.92 &,768.32
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(T in Lakhs]

Investments at Amortised Cost
QUOTED
Bonds
Edelweiss Capital Limited | NCD 100,000 250 299.61 R0 544.85
2 |Investment in Mutual Fund [Debt]
L&T Triple Ace Bond Fund -Direct -Growth 10.00 541,200 N004 - -
L&T Banking & P5U Band Fund-Direct-Growth 10.00 1,643,232 305.08 - -
L&T Short Term Fund-Direct -Growth 10.00 1,469,649 295.93 2 =
LE&T Money Market Fund-Direct-Growth 10,00 1,486,061 303.99 R -
Nippon India Banking & PSU Bond Fund-Direct -Growth 10.00 4,057,205 61042 - -
1,825.58
Total 2,125.1¢9 544.85
9.1 AGGREGATE CARRYING AMOUNT AND MARKET VALUE OF QUOTED INVESTMENTS

(T in Lakhs]

Quoted Investments:

|n Bonds and Units of Mutual Funds 212519 212510 R44.85 q44.85

Total 2,125.19 2,125.1% b4&4.85 544.85
NOTE 10: TRADE RECEIVABLES

1 |Secured, Considered Good

2 |Unsecured

(% in Lakhs]

Considered Goad 2143.87 1,514.77

Considered Doubtful - -

Total 2,143.87 3,514.77
NOTE 10.1: Ageing of Trade Receivable

Within the credit period
1-180 days past dus

2.&3.8?

(7 in Lakhs]

3.514.77

Total

2,143.87

3,514.77

DIIPI>>D>0 87



malicom$>>>>> 5>

NOTE 11: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(¥ in Lakhs]
1 |Balance with Banks 508,09 28319
2 |Cashin Hand 11.43 9.02
Total 519.52 292.21
NOTE 12 : OTHER BANK BALANCES
(T in Lakhs]

Margin Money [Pledged with Banks) 9.7 7.43
Total 9.7 7.43

NOTE 13 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(2 in Lakhs]

{Unsecured and Considered Good|
1 |Advances to Suppliers and Contractors 731.88 1.780.51
2 |Prepaid Expenses 17.43 12,47
3 |Balance with Revenue Authorities [Indirect Taxes] 1,581 .50 2,043.07
Total 2,330.81 3,836.05
NOTE 14 : SHARE CAPITAL
{2 in Lakhs]

1 |AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
2 |ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
62.40.000 Equity Shares aof Rs, 10/- each fully paid-up 624.00 624.00
Total 624.00 624.00

14.1 DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES OF THE COMPANY

1. | AJAY KUMAR MALL 10,25,320 1643 10,25.320 1643
2. | KADAMBINI SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED, 21,89.606 35.09 21,689,606 35.09
3. [JAY KUMAR DAGA 12,98,494 20.81 12,98.494 20.81
4. | MALLCOM HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 613,600 983 6,13.600 9.83
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142 The company has only one class of eguity shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity share
is entitled to one vate per share.

14.3  Inthe event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts: The distribution will be in proportion to the number
af equity shares held by the shareholders.

4.4  Asnolreshissue or reduction in capital is made during the current year as well as during the previous period, hence
there is no change in the opening and closing capital. Accordingly, reconciliation of share capital has not been given,

14.5 Agreegate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued Tor consideration ather than cash and bought back shares
during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date:

As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
il Nil

14.6 The Equity Shares of the company are listed at BSE Limited and the annual listing fees has been paid for the year

NOTE 15: OTHER EQUITY
MNature of Reserves
Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve represents the amount, being the purchase price lower then the fair market value of the capital assets
acquired by the company and used for the purpoeses of its business.

Securities Premium Reserve

Securities Premium Reserve represents the amoaunt received in excess of par value of equity shares of the campany. The
same, Interalia, may be utilized by the company to issue fully paid-up bonus shares Lo its members and buying back the
shares in accordance with the provisions of the companies Act, 2013,

General Reserve

General Reserve represents the reserve created by apportionment of profit generated during the year or transfer from
other reserves sither voluntary or pursuant to statutory requirements. The same is a free reserve and available for
distribution.

Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the company.

NOTE 1é6: CURRENT BORROWINGS

[ in Lakhs]

Secured
1 |Loan Repayable on Demand
From Bank
Export Packing Credit 304760 4.529.39
Packing Credit Foreign Currency Loan g7.82 -
Total 3,235.48 4,529.39

141 Demand loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of all present/future stack and receivables, all present/future
fixed assets [excluding Land & Building! and Carporate guarantee by Kadimbini Securities Private Limited and Mallcom
Holdings Private Limited and further personal guarantee of Managing Director.

1462 There is no default in repayment of principal and interest thereon
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NOTE 17 : TRADE PAYABLES

[% in Lakhs]

1 |For Supplying of Goods 2.751.64 3.325.3

2 |Far Supplying of Services B79.41 51517
Total 3,331.06 3,840.48

17.1 Trade Payables are based an the infermation available with the Company regarding the status aof the Suppliers as
defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2004” and there are no delays in payments
to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as required to be disclosed under the said Act.

NOTE 18 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- OTHERS

(¥ in Lakhs]

1 |Security Deposits from Customers, Vendors & Others &#1 & 418.63

Total 40416 £38.63
NOTE 19 : OTHER LIABILITIES

[Z in Lakhs]

1.148.80

1026.53

1 |Customer Advances
2 |Statutory Liahilities 37.97 179.49
Total 1,185.77 1,2046.02
MNOTE 20: PROVISIONS

1 |Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 12.59 a2.85
Other Staff Benefit Schemes [Leave Encashment) - 3443
Total 12.5% £3.48
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NOTE 21: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES [NET]

1 |Deferred Tax Assets:

Arising on account of:
Expenses allowed for tax purpose when paid

2 |Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Arising on accaunt of;
Depreciation and Amartization

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

l21.90]

13.68

[ in Lakhs]

f12.42]

11.06

Net Deferred Tax Assets/[Liabilities]

{35.58]

(23.68]

Companents of Deferred Tax Assets / [Liabilities) as at March 31, 2020 are given bellow

Deferred Tax Assets: - - - -
Fair Valuation of financial assets and Liabilities [31.94] |&.00) 137,94
Provision For Post retirement and other Employee Benefits 14.11 [8.08] - .03
Femeasurement Of Defined Benefit Obligation 5233 - .80 10.03
Total Deferred Tax [12.62] [2.08] [1.20] [21.50]
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Fair Yaluaticn [Gainl / Lass an investmenis - - - -
Timming Diffrence with respect to property, Planl and equipment 1106 A2 - 13.68
and Other Intangible assets - - - -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 11.06 2.62 = 13.68
Met Deferred Tax Assets/ |Liabilities) 123.48] 110.70 [1.20] [35.58)

Companeants of Deferred Tax Assets / [Liabilities) as at March 31, 2019 are given bellow

Deferred Tax Assets: - g . e
Fair Valuation of financial asséts and Liabilities [1.48] |30.28) - [a1.54]
Provision For Post retirement and other Employee Benefits 11.72 2.39 - 1411

Remeasurement Of Detined Benefit Obligation [3.93) - P14 5.23
Total Deferred Tax 11 |- 27.8g Q1 [12.62]
Deferred Tax Liabilities: -

Fair Valuation [Gainl / Logs an Investments - - - -

Timming Diffrence with respect to property, Plant and equipment 886 240 - 11.068
and Other intangible assets = - : =

Total Deferred Tax Assets B éb 2.40 = 11.04
Met Deferred Tax Assets/ [Liabilities) (2.55] [30.29] 7.14 [23.68)
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NOTE 22: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(T in Lakhs]
1 Sale of Manufactured Goods
Leather Gloves 4,614.64 482000
Textile Garments 8,490.65 8,787.65
Nitrile Dipped Gloves 2.108.62 3.231.21
Safety shoes 9.425.37 9.054.14
Shoe Upper 601.73 782.09
Knitted Gloves 128.64 668.04
Helmet/Facemask/Eye Protection 49.61 66.59
Others 11.12 11110
25.430.32 27,520.92
2 Sale of Traded Goods
Leather Gloves 166.27 153.50
Textile Garments 278.68 580.00
Nitrile Dipped Gloves 322.47 2B.50
Safety shoes 1,396.03 285.70
Dthers 33.06 7.50
2,196,581 1,055.20
3 Service Exports - 93.16
4 Job Wark Charges - 26.49
5 Foreign Exchange Gain 164.38 28952
& Export Incentives 977.88 1,087.45
1142.26 1,496.62
Total 28,769.09 | 30,072.74
NOTE 23: OTHER INCOME
(T in Lakhs]
1 Interest Income 3.67 3.85
2 |Profit on sale of Fixed asset 5 5.99
3 |Profit on sale of Investment 27.21 -
4 |Balances Written Back 2.42 5.99
5 |Other Non Operating Income 1256 5.48
Total 45.86 21.31
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NOTE 24: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(T in Lakhs]
al |Opening Stock 4,619.07 4,681 .64
PURCHASES OF RAW MATERIALS AND STORES
1 |Raw Materials [Including Carriage Inward] 14,224.38 14,764.29
2 |[Stores and Spares 1.584.34 1.739.22
3 |Packing Materials 709.56 663.79
Sub-Total 16,518.28 | 17,167.30
Closing Stock 512114 4,619.07
| Cost of Materials Consumed 16,01621 17.226.87
Total 16,016.21 | 17,229.87

NOTE 25: PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

1 |Safety Shoes 1.321.11 1.246.19
2 |Nitrile Dipped Gloves 209.32 27.95
3 |Leather Gloves 104.63 152.75
4 |Textile Garments 19416 546,96
5 |Others 29.69 7.m
6 [Custom Duty on Purchase - 22.87

Total 1,858.91 2,003.73

NOTE 26: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(¥ in Lakhs)

1 |Closing stock

Waork-in-Progress 118386 1.340.50
Finished Goods 1,26092 80874
2,444.78 2149.24
2 |Opening stock
Work-in-Progress 1,34050 95220
Finished Goods 808.74 B47.78
214924 1.799.98
3 [lincreasel/Decrease (295.53) (349.26) |
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%

%

/

[ in Lakhs]

1 |Finished Goods

Leather Gloves 31059 20.53
Texlile Garments 148.50 .04
Mitrile Dipped Gloves 140.58 248.22
Safety Shoes 365.89 334.72
Shoe Upper 95.39 .
Knitted Gloves 135 14:66
Leather 7688 -
Helmets 21.47 &0.00
Parsonal Protective Equipments [Others| L0068 7257

1,260.92 B0B.74

2  |Work-in-progress

Leather Glaves 103.95 33.90
Nitrile Dipped Glaves - 240,75
Textile Garments 418.83 396.70
Knitted Gloves 2.98 19.90
Safety Shoes 562.86 24.09
leather - 33.80
Shoe Uppers G5.24 hot.37

1,183.86 1,340.51

MNOTE 27 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

1.117.84

% in Lakhs]

1,089.57

1 |Salaries, Wages and Bonus
2 |Contribution to Providend and Other Funds [Refer Note 32 B3.08 &0.47
3 |Leave Encashment - [4.80]
4 |Staff Welfare Expenses 20.21 15.09
Total 1,226.13 1,158.24
MOTE 28 : FINANCE COSTS

169.34

(% in Lakhs]

333.37

Interest Expenses
2 |Bank and Finance Charges &4 89 57.13
Total 256.23 390.50
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NOTE 29 : MANUFACTURING AND OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

[T in Lakhs]

5.089.71

5.146.79

1 |Fabrication & Processing Charges
2 |Factory Maintenance B0.05 i1 .85
3 |Freight- Export 122856 201.28
4 |Terminal Handling Charges - Export 60.21 &2.94
5 |Clearing & Forwarding expenses 03.373 111.06
& |Insurance 25.40 20.45
7 |Carriage Dutward 35.67 g1.10
8 |5Sales Promaotion Expenses 318.24 a87.08
9 |Trade Fair Expenses 27.43 20.08
10 |Sales Commision 19.04 32.84
1 |Other Selling Expenses 142.1 179034
12 |Pawer and Fuel 214.81 208.49
13 |Repairs to Building 4.66 20.77
14 |Repairs to Plant and Machinery 874 6803
15 |Security Charqes 48.09 41.69
TOTAL 6,648.71 6,654.89
NOTE 29 [a] : OTHER EXPENSES

7 in Lakhs]

22.96

1 |Rent
2 |Rates and Taxes 8.44 .33
3 |Travelling & Conveyance 8.98 104.67
4 |Directors’ Sitting Fees 1.72 1.52
5 |Loss on sale of Fixed Assels 0.33 -
& |Paostage, Telephane & Talex 12.67 15.95
7 |Printing & Stationery 1427 19.46
8 |Filling Fees 0.49 1.72
9 |Legal & Professional Fees 54.69 35.90
10 |Membership & Subscription 8.79 17.26
11 |Payment to Auditors |refer details below| &.77 4.38
12 |Miscellaneous Expenses 183.98 2490
13 |Irrecoverable Receivables Written Off 2.09 48,40
Total 328.18 364.54
Payment to Auditor
As Auditor:
Audit Fee 3.75 275
Tax Audit Fes 0.50 0.50
Certification Charges .80 0.80
Other Services 1.72 0.33
Total &6.77 £.38
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NOTE 20 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CLAIMS/DEMANDS NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBT)

a) Contingent Liabilities
Export bills duly discounted/negotiated under LT and for which acceptance already

received and/or moved to bank line [previous years figures relates Lo Bill drawn
under LT only) 156.60 6Bg.52

Outstanding Bank guarantee issued by 5Bl and CITI Bank 22,4 5.00

Bond under customs issued in the faver of Assistant Commissioner of Customs
covering the purchase of imported / indigensus capital goods/ raw materials
without payment of Custom duly with respect to 100% E.O.U. for Manufacture
of Safety Work Garmenls 250.00 250.00
Bond cum Legal undertaking issued in favour of Development Commissioner

Indigenaus capital goods/ raw materials without payment of

Custom duty with respect to 100% FSEZ unit 310.00 310.00
Sales Tax demand in respect of earlier years, Which has been disputed

by the company 32584 2.80
Incarme Tax Demand in respect of earlier years, which has been disputed

by the company 84,21 124.79
Service Tax Demand in respect of earlier years which has been disputed

by the company 29.50 11 .88
Corporate Guarantee Given in faver of Citibank M.A for the term lean extended

by them to the Subsidiary Company * Mallcom VSFT Gloves Put, Ltd” 180.95 180.95

UsD 23.71,828.18|33,10,315.35

EURD 24.28,332.45 | 29,95,800.10
NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS [REFER NOTE 27]
{al Contribution to defined Contribution Plans recognized as expenses are as under:-

¥ in Lakhs]

5552 n.Jo

rnvidend und
ESIC 19.08 19.92
Total 75.50 51.62

Ib] Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity - The company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
seryice gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary] for each completed year of service. The
scheme is funded with HOFC Standard Life Insuarance Co Ltd.
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Disclosure for defined benefit plans based on actuarial reports:

(7 in Lakhs]
Particulars For the year | For the year
_ended | ended
31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 107.54 8070
Current Service Cost 11.30 o2
Interest Cost T.26 &6.24
Remeasurements [gains)/losses A8 1547
Benefits paid [3.18] [4.09)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 129.09 107.55
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year BE.44 85.4
Expected Return on Plan Assels h.97 b.62
Remeasurements [gains)/losses (12.02] 0.51
Cantributions B.Bq B
Benefits paid [3.18] [4.09]
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 87.16 88.44
Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 8B.44 B5.40
Actual Return on plan assets [&.95] 73
Contributions B.Bg -
enefits Paid [3.18] [4.09]
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 87.14 88.44
Actuarial [Gain]/Loss on Planned Assets:
Actual Return on plan assets [6.95] 7.3
Expected Return on Plan Assets [5.97] |4.42]
Actuarial [Gain]/Loss (12.92) 0.51
Actuarial (Gain]/Loss recognized:
Actuarial [gain]/loss- obligation [4.18] [15.47]
Actuarial [gainl/loss- plan assets 12.92] 0.51
Tetal Actuarial (Gain)/Loss {19.09] [14.58)
Actuarial [Gainl/Loss recognized 119.09] 114.96]
Outstanding actuarial [gain)/loss at the end of the year
Experience adjustment:
Experience Adjustment [Gainl/Loss for Plan Liabilities 2.07 (15.47]
Experience Adjustment [Gainl/Loss for Plan Assets 12.02 [0.51]
Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:
Mumber of employees 365 356
Total monthly salary 27.23 24.23
bverage Past ServicelYears| B.50 820
Average Future Service[Years) 20.60 21.40
Average AgelYears] 3940 3840
Weighted average duration [based on discounted cash flows] in years 13 13
fverage Manthly Salary 7,460 6,806
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 11.30 g.22
Interest Cost 726 5.25
Expected Return on Plan Assets [5.97] [&.62)
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 12.5% 8.85
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[TinLa Id'u}

Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (0CI)

Actuarial lgainsl/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 41.93 19.10
Total recognized in Other Comprehensive Income £1.93 19.10
Total recognized in Total Comprehensive Income 54.52 27.95
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet consists of

Present Value of Defined Benetit Obligation 129.09 107.54
Fair Value of Plan Assats 8716 BB.44
Met Liability £1.93 1910
The Major Categories of Plan Assets as a % of Total Plan

Qualifying Insurance Palicy 100% 100%

The Principal actuarial assumption used:

Discount Rate 6.75%
per annum pEr annum
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%
per annum pEr annum
Maortality Rate 1ALM 2006-08 | IALM 2004-08
Littimate Ultimate
Expected Rate Of Return 7.75% 7.755%
perannum PEF annum
Withdrawal Rate [Per Annum) b95% pa 6.95% p.a

7.75%

The estimates of future salary increases have been considered in actuarial after taking into consideration the impact of
inflation, Senierity, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand situation in the employment market, Same
assumptions were cansidered for comparative period 1.2 201 8-1 % as per Ind-A519. The Gratuity Scheme is invested in group
Gratuity cash accumulation policy offered by HDFC Life Insuarance Co Ltd. The gratuity planis not exposed to any significant
risk imview of absolute track record, Investment is as per IRDA guidelines and mechanism is there to monitor the performance
of the fund.
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Terminal

Basic Salary | Basic Salary

[Excluding [Excluding

all other atl other

Allpwances Allowance

and and

Perguisites] | Perguisites|

Vesting Period 5 Years ol k Years ol

Service Service

Benefits of Mormal Retirement 15/26*Salary | 15/26*Salary

MNumber af Mumber af

Completed Campleted

Years of Yearsal

Service Service

Benielit on early exil due to death and disability hs above hs above

excepl that | excepl that

rid vesting r vesting

conditions canditions

apply apply

Lirnit 2.000.000.00 | 2,000,000.00

Current Liability:

Current Liability 28.50 20.00

MNon Current Liability 100.59 7846
| Total Liability 129.09 | 107.55 |

* Because of Overfunding

* Current Liability: It is probable outlay in next 12 months as required by the Companies Act

nns-iti'vitr Analysis:

Ipacl an [Jefnr.l B
Benefit Obligation
[¥in Lakhs] 75.78

81.53

7975

The company expacts to contribute 12,59 Lakhs [Previous Year T B.85 lakhs) to gratuity fund,
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2020 s 13 years | as at 31.03.2019: 15 years).
Estimate of expected benstit payments [In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted),
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01 st April 2020 to 3151 March 2021 28.50
ot st April 2021 to 31 st March 2022 4.8
01 st April 2022 1o 315t March 2023 460
@1 st April 2023 to 31 st March 2024 4113
01 st April 2024 to 315l March 2025 B.60
01 st April 2025 Onwards TB.44
N
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[c] Providend fund managed by a trust set up by the company
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In terms of the guidance note issued by the Institute of Actuaries for measurement of providend fund liabilities, the
actuary has provided a valuation of pravidend fund liability and based on the assumption provided below. The details
aof the plan assets and obligations position are as follows:

{69.34]

(% in Lakhs]

B0.70

Plan assets at the year end, at fair value
Present value of defined obligation at year end a8.44 85.40
Met liability/lasset] recognized in the Balance Sheeat 19.10 [£.70]

NOTE 32: SEGMENT REPORTING

[A] The Company's primary business segment is Industrial Safety Products. The Industrial Safety Products business
incorporates product groups’ viz. Leather hand Gloves, |ndustrial Work Garments, Seamless Knitted Gloves, Leather
Shoe Upper, Safety Shoes and Mitrile Dipped Gloves, which mainly have similar risks and returns. Thus the Company's
business activity falls within a single primary business segment.

Far the purpose of geographical segments, total sales are divided into India and other countries. The following table
shows the distribution of the company's sales by geographical market regardless of where the qoods are produced:

|B

{7 in Lakhs]

Segment Revenue from Operations:

Outside India 18.964.22 20,704.94
Within India 2.804.87 9.367.80
Total 28,76%9.09| 30,072.74

in Lakhs]

Trade Receivables:

Outside India 1.940.37 3.044.99
Within India 203.50 L69.78
Total 2,143.87 3,514.77

The campany has commaon fixed assets for producing goods for domestic and export markets. Hence, Separate figures for
fixed assets/additions to fixed assets are not furnished.
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NOTE 33: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE [AS PER IND AS 24- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES)

al Subsidiaries

il Mallcomn Safety Pvt. Ltd. [MSPL]
il Mallearn YSFT Gloves Put. Ltd, [VSFT]

bl  Associates

il Kadambini Securities Pvt. Ltd. [KSPL]
il Mallcom Holdings Pvt, Ltd, [MHPL]
il Mavers Construction Pvt. Ltd. [MCPL]
wl Chaturbujh Impex Pvt. Ltd. [CIPL]

vl DMNB Exim Pyt, Ltd. [ONE]

vil Two Star Tannery Put. Ltd. [TSTPL]
vii] Best Safety Put. Ltd [BSPL]

viiil 55R Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. [SSR] [formerly Vikram Traders Put, Ltd.]

ix] Mallcom Lexotic Exports Pyvt, Limited [MLEPL]
%] Anmol Components Put. Ltd. [ACPL]
xi] Trencher Online Sarvices Private Limited [TOSPL]

cl  Key Managerial Personnel

il Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall [Managing Director]

il Mr. Shyam Sundar Agrawal [Chief Financial Officer]

il Ms, Shuvanki Purkayastha [Company Secretary)
[Ms. Twinkle Pandey in FY. 201 8-201 9]

dl  Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

il Mr. Sanjay Kumar Mall
il Mrs. Sunita Mall

il Mr. Giriraj Mall

) Mr. Rohit Mall

v|  Ms, Kiran Devi Mall

vil Mrs. Preeti Mall

wil] Ms, Surabhi Mall

el Transaction with related parties during the year and balance outstanding at the year end:

Sale of goods & services

Purchase of goods & services

Job Work Charges paid

Advance Given

Security Deposit / Advance
Unsecured Loan & Advance Repaid
Remuneration **

Dividend Paid

Rent [including service charges| Paid

.25

B55.06
56.03

3.49 | 774.80|1.085.59 = : e,
2.994.02 [3.410.24 ~ - -
875.7% - - - x =

13.03| 206,38 9.07 - - o

13.03 = 7.9 - - -
= . 56.81 52.27
& 75.07 ¥5.07 2051 20.51 575
- 54.00 54.00 - - -

10,20
6.75

** As the future liability of gratuity is provided an actuarial basis for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to

the related party is not included above.
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fl Details of compensation paid to KMP during the year are as follows:

(7 in Lakhs]

Shaort-term emplo*_.ree-beneifs 5318 48,77
Past-employment benefits® 3.63 3.50
Other long-term benefits® - -

* Post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits are disclosed based on actusl payment made on
retirement/resignation of services, but does not include provisien made on actuarial hasis as the same is available for all
the employees together.

MNOTE 34: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(Tin Lkl‘lil

Current Tax 587.93 764.02

Deferred Tax

Relating to origination and reversal of Lemporary differences = e
Tax Expense attributable to Current Year's/Period's Profit 587.93 766.02
Adjustments in respect of Income Tax of Earlier Years 35.61 -
Income Tax Expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 623.54 766.02
Current Tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during
the year/period

Met [gainl/Lass on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 1.20 26.73
Income Tax Charged to Other Comprehensive Income 1.20 26.73

NOTE 35: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows:-
(¥ in Lakhs]

FInam:Inl. [urnin and Ilun-ll:rrnnl
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Trade Receivables 2143.87 2.143.87 3.514.77 FE1AT7
Cash and Cash Equivalents 51952 519.52 252,21 202 21
Other Bank Balances a7 9,71 T.43 T.43
Loans B7.87 87.87 108.05 10B.05
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and

Loss Account

Investment in Equity Instruments and Bonds 2.715.25 271525 11343 11340

Financial Liabilities [Current and Non-Current)
Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Borrowings 3.325.48 3.325.48 4,520.39 4,529.39
Trade Payables 3.331.05 | 333105 | 3.840.48|  3,840.48
Other Financial Liabilities H04.116 L0416 438.63 £3B.63
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Fair Valuaton Technigues
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amaount that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, current trade receivables and payables, current financial Liabilities and assets
and borrowings approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments, The
management cansiders that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial Liabilities recognised at nominal
costfamortised cost in the financial statements approximate thair fair values,

A substantial portion of the company’s long-term debt has been contracted at flaating rates of interest, which are reset at
short intervals. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying value subject to adjustments
made for transaction cost. In respect of fixed interest rate borrowings, fair value 1s determined by using discount rates that
reflects the present borrowing rate of the company.

Investments [Other than Investments in Associates, Joint Venture and Subsidiaries| traded in active market are determined
by reference to the gquotes from the stock exchanges as at the reparting date. Investrments in liguid and short-term mutual
funds are measured using quated market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held. Quoted Investments
for which guotatians are not available have been included in the market value at the face value/paid up value, whichever
is lower except in case of debentures, bonds and government securities where the net present value at current yield tao
rmaturity have been considered. Unguoted investments in shares have been valued based on the historical net asset value
as per the latest audited financial statements.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities:

The Company follows established risk management policies, including the use of derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign
fluctuations on foreign currency assets/liabilities. The counter party in these derivative instruments is a bank and the
company considers the risks of non-performance by the counter party as non-material.

The following tables present the agreegate contracted principal amounts of the company's derivative contracts putstanding:

Underlying Purpose Category As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019 Currency
MNo. of deals | Amountin | No. of deals | Amount in
Foreign Foreign
Currency Currency
Export Receivables Forward 14 | 237182818 19 | 331031535 USD/INR
Expart Receivables Forward g 24,28,332.45 17 299580000 EURG/IMR
FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Company's activities and exposead to variety of financial risks, The key financial risks includes market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Campany's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial pertormance. The board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks,
The risks are goverened by appropriate policies and procedures and accardingly financial risks are identified, measured
and managed in accordance with the Campany’s policies and risk objectives,

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market fluctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of
future cash flows of a financial instruments. The major components of Market risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivables, borrowings, investments and
trade and other payables.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign Currency risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
foreign currency denominated borrowings, trade receivables and trade or other payables.
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The Company has adopted a comprehensive risk management review system wherein it actively hedges its foreign exchange
exposures within defined parameters through use of hedging instruments such as forward contracts, The Company periodically
reviews its risk management initiatives and also takes experts advice on regular basis on hedging strategey.

Interest Rate Risk

The company’s exposure in market risk relating to change in interest rate primarily arises from floating rate borrowing with
banks and linancial institutions. Berrowings at fixed interest rate exposes the campany to the fair value interest rate risk.

Other price risk

The Company’s equity exposure in Subsidiaries are carried at cost or deemed cost and these are subject lo impairment
testing as per the policy followed in this respect. The company’s current investments which are fair valued through profit
and loss are not material. Accordingly. other price risk of the financial instrument to which the company is exposed is not
expected to be material,

CREDIT RISK

The credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed ta credit risk from its operating activities |primarily trade receivables).
The management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitared on an ongoing basis, The company
periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic
trends and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly and Lhe company obtains necessary
security including letter of credits and/or bank quarantee to mitigate.

The carrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financial statements, [net of impairment losses|
represents the company's maximum exposure to credit risk. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer
base being large and unrelated. Of the trade receivable balance at the end of the year [other than subsidiaries), there are
no single customer accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable and 10% of revenue as at March 31,2020 and
March 31, 2019,

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will net be able to seltle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Company's objective is to maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet it's cash and collateral requirements at all
times. The company’s assets represented by financial instruments comprising of receivables are largely funded against
borrowed funds. The company relies on borrowings and internal accruals ta meet its fund requirements, The current
committed line of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term fund requirement.

NOTE 34: EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)
A. Basic and Diluted EP5:

Profit or Loss attritutable to ordinary Equity Shareholders T in Lakhs 1.826.07 1.408.45
Equity Share Capital TinLakhs 624.00 624.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

[Face value of T 10/- per share| Nos. 62,40,000 |  62,40,000
Earnings Per Share- Basic and Diluted L4 20.26 22.57

B. Cash EPS: [Profit for the year+Depreciation and Amortisation Expense+Deferred tax)/Weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding
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NOTE 37: LEASE
|n case of asset taken on lease:
Operating Lease:

The campany has taken certain premises on lease for 3 years to 99 years, There are no subleases,

: [% in Lakhs)

_Particulars  2019-20 | 2018-19
Lease payment for the year 4.23 §.39
Minimum Lease payment not later than 1 year h.08 4.39
Later than one year but not later than Five years 1.87 8.78
Later than Five years a5 a1 .84

NOTE 38: MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

There were no dues outstanding to the suppliers as on 31.03.2020 registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
[Cevelopment| Act, 2004, to the extent such parties have been identitied from the available documentsd information. Mo
interestin terms of such Act has either been paid or provided during the year,

MNOTE 39: In the opinion of the management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value of realization of loans
and advances and other current assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amaunt at which they
are stated in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 40: Provisions of Section 135 of the Compamies Act, 201 3 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] is applicable
in case of the company. The Company was required to incur a minimurm amount of 22,1 4 Lakhs being two percent of average
net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years as calculated as per section 198
of the Campanies Act, 201 3. The company has incurred a sum of ¥ 34.00 Lakhs in the year and the excess amount was duly
approved by the C5R Committee, Audit Comittes and the Board, All the expenses have been incurred in cash,

NOTE 41: Figures less than 50,000 have been shown actual, wherever statutorily required to be disclosed, as the figures
have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs,

NOTE 42: The Company has considered the possible effects that may arise out of the still unfolding COVID-19 pandemic on
the carrying amounts of Property , Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investments , Inventories , Trade Receivables etc.
For this purpose the campany has considered internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of the
financial results including credit reperts and related information , ecanomic forecasts, market value of certain investments
etc. Based on the current estimates the company doesn't expect any significant impact on such carrying values.

NOTE 43: The Board of Directors has recornmended dividend of § 2/- per equity [previous year ¥ 2/-] of T10/- each for the
year ended 31 st March, 2020

NOTE &4&: These Financial Statements have been approved by Board of Directors of the Company on 2¢th June 2020 for issue
to the shareholders for there adoption.

A= per our Report of even date,

For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 3022046E

Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall

Partner Chairman & Managing Director  Director

Membership Mo, 52722 [DHM : oo4707184) [DIM : D1043022)

Place: Kolkata S5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Date: 2oth June, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
[ACS : 42302
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the Members of MALLCOM (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audiled the accompanying consolidated
financial staterments of Mallcom India Limited | the
Holding Company | and its subsidiaries {the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group'| which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
[including Other Comprehensive Incomel, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Staternent of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting pelicies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statements /
consolidated financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 [‘Act’] in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including
Indian Accounting Standards [Ind AS’) specified
under Section 133 of the Act, of the consclidated
state of affairs [consolidated financial position) of
the Group as at 31 March 2020, and its consolidated
profit [consolidated financial performance including
other cormprehensive incamel, its consolidated cash

flows and the consolidated changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ['ICAI'] together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit cof the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have futfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 15 of
the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements
far current period,

We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report :

Information other than the Financial Statements and

(i) Completeness, existence and accuracy of Revenue Recognition [Refer to Note 2.15 and 22 to the standalone
financial statements]

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition /Adoption of Mew Accounting
Standard Ind AS115: Revenue from contracts with
customers [Refer to Mote 215 and 22 to the standalone
financial statements]

Principal audit procedures:

al Our audit procedures with regard to revenue
recognition included testing controls, automated and
manual, around dispatches/deliveries, inventory
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue is one of the key prefit drivers and istherefore
susceptible to mis-statement. Cut-off is the key
assertion inso far as revenue recognition is concerned,
since an inappropriate cut-off can result in material
misstatement of results for the year. The Company
manufactures and sells a number of products to its
customers. The Company has adopted the new
accounting standard Ind A5 115 as at April 1, 2m 8
and accordingly has reviewed its sales contracts for
determining the principles for recognizing revenue
in accordance with the new standard.

reconciliations and circularization of receivable
balances, substantive testing for cut-offs and
analytical review procedures.

bl Selected a sample of contracts and through
inspection of evidence of performance of these
controls, tested the operating effectiveness of the
internal controls relating to the identification of
performance obligations and timing of revenue
recagnition,

cl] Selected a sample of contracts and reassessed
contractual terms to determine adherence to the
requirements of the new accounting standard.

lii) Existence and Valuation of Inventories(Refer note

2.10 and B of the Standalone Financial Statements)

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company's major part of invenlory comprises Raw
Material/ Accessories/ Waork-in-Progress/ finished
goods which are geographically spread over multiple
locations such as factories producing difference
products, These inventories are also procured at many
times as per customer specification and order
requirement and customized as such. The whole
inventory is counted by the Company on a cyclical basis
and accordingly provision for obsolescence of
inventories is assessed and recognized by the
management in the financial statements based on
management estimation as at end of reporting period.

The Company manufactures and sells goods which
may be subject to changing consumer demands and
product developments. Significant degree of judgment
is thereby required to assess the net realizable value
of the inventories and appropriate level of provisioning
for items which may be ultimately sold below cost.
Such judgment includes management’s expectations
for future sale valumes, inventory liguidation plans and
future selling prices less cost to sell.

Basad on above, existence and valuation of inventaries
has been identified as a key audit matter,

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the
following audit procedures in this area, among others to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

a) Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key internal controls relating to physical
verification of inventories by the management and the
internal auditors of the Company, identification of obsolete
and slow moving inventories, inventories with low or
negative gross margins, monitoring of inventory ageing
and assessment of provisioning and of net realizable values.
b) Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
prepared by the management were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket;

c) Performing a review of the provisions for inventories
by examining movements in the balance during the current
year and new provisions made for inventory balances as
at 31 March 2020 during the current year to assess the
historical accuracy of management's inventory provisioning
process;

d] Assessing, on a sample basis, the net realizable value
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories and inventories
with low or negative gross margins as calculated by
management with reference to prices achieved and costs
to sell after the financial year end.

e) Attending cyclical inventory counts at various godown
& factories at regular intervals during the reporting period
and evaluating the results of the cycle counts performed
by the management throughout the year to assess
management’s estimation of the provisioning.

PEIPNP
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Auditor’s Reports

5.

The Helding Company’'s Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information, The other
infarmation comprises the infarmation included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial staternents and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with
our audit of the consclidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial staterments or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is 2 material
misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing to report
in this regard. Responsibilities of Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the Cansolidated
Financial Slatements.

Management’s responsibility for Consolidated
Financial Statements

b.

108

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in Section 13415)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs
[consolidated financial position], consolidated profit
or loss |consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income), consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The Holding
Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible
for ensuring accuracy of records including financial
information considered necessary for the preparation
of consolidated Ind AS financial statements, Further,
in terms of the provisions of the Act, the respective

Board of Directors /management of the companies
included in the Group, and its associate companies
and joint venture companies covered under the Act
are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safequarding the assets and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreqularities; setection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
staterments that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, These financial statements have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Beard of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of Consolidated
Financial Statements

9.

Our objectives are {o oblain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whale are free from material misstatermnent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
raterial misstaterment when it exists. Misstaterments



10.

can arise fram fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these cansolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3) [i] of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing ocur
opinion on whether the holding company has
adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use af the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

1.

13,
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consclidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Eyaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the conseolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during ocur audit,

. We also provide those charged with governance with

a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the
consclidated financial statements of the current
pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in cur auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter orwhen, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14, As required by Section 19711 6] of the Act, based on

FEPP IR
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our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, an separate financial statements
{ consolidated financial statements of the
subsidiaries, we report that the Holding Company
and two subsidiary companies covered under the
Act paid remuneration to their respective directors
during the year in accordance with the pravisions of
and limits laid down under Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

15. As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, based on

110

our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements
! consolidated financial statements and other
financial information of the subsidiaries we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

al we have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our
exarmination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors;

¢l the consolidated financial staternents dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

dl in our opinion, the atoresaid consolidated
financial statements comply with |nd AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

e] On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Halding
Company and taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies covered under the Act, nane of the
directors of the Group companies covered under
the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2020

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 26th, 2020

from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2] of the Act;

fl  With respect to the adequacy af the internal
financial controls ower financial reporting of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, covered under the Act, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in ‘Annexure A';

gl With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules,
2014 [as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements / consolidated
financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries:

i. The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consclidated financial position of the
Group;

ii. Provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements, as
required under the applicable law or Ind
AS, for material foreseeable losses, on
long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund, if
any, by the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies during the year ended
31 March 2020;

For 5. K. Singhania & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firmn Registration No. 302206E

Rajesh Singhania
Partner
Membership Mo, 2722
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ANNEXURE ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 [the "Act’]

1. Ineonjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Mallcom India Limited (the "Haolding Company’)
and its subsidiaries [the Holding Campany and its subsidiaries
together refarred to as the ‘Group'| as at and for the year ended
31 March 2020, wa have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reparting | IFCoFR’] of the Helding Campany, its
subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, as at that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. Therespective Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies, six associate companies and one
|oint venture company, which are companies covered under the
Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial contrels based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the campany cansidaring the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote an Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting |the '‘Guidance Mate'| issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accauntants of India [the 'ICAI]. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internat financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the arderly and efficient canduct of the company™s
business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the
safeguarding of ils assets, the preventicn and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Dur responsibility is to express an apinion on the IFCaFR of
the Holding Cormpany and its subsidiary companies, as afaresaid,
based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143000] of the Act, to the exlent
applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we camply with ethical requirements and plan and perfarm the
audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether
adequatelFCaFR were established and maintzined and if such
contrals operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Dur sudit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the IFCaFR and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of IFCeFR includes abtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operaling effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgernent,
including the assessment af the fisks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

E.  We believe that the audit evidence we have chiained and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of

their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph belaw, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the IFCoF R of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

b, A company's |FCoFR is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial staternents for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 4
campany s IFCaFR include those policies and procedures that 1)
pertain to the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; |2] provide reasonable assurance that
transaclions are recorded as necessary Lo permil preparation of
tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
cornpany are being made anly in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and [3) provide
reasanable sssurance regarding prevention or timely datection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have & material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCaFR, including the
possibility of collusion ar improper management override of
cantrols, matenal misstatemants.due to errar or fraud may accur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
IFCoFR to future periads are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR
may becorne inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degres of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorata.

Opinion

8. |nouropinicn and based on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on IFCoFR of the the Holding Company and
its subsidiary campanies, which are companies covered undar
the Act, have in all material respects, adeguate internal financial
cantrals over financial reporting and such conlrols were operating
etfactively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control aver
financial reporting criteria established by the Helding Company
and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid, considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on
Audit af Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 5. K. Singhania & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Mo, 302206E

Rajesh Singhania
Partner
Membership Mo, 52722

Flace: Kolkata
Dated: June 2gth, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2020

¥ in Lakhs)
I ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 4,222.38 L0242
Intangible assets & 7377 45.65
Capital work-in-progress 7 304.27 93.08
Financial Assels
Investments 8 0.06 0.046
Loans & Deposits o 7857 122.60
Current Tax Assets [Met] 202,08 166,41
4,851 11 £,952.12
Current Assets
Inventories 1o TET7I.48 &,775.B8
Financial Assets
Investments 11 2425149 54485
Trade receivables 12 2.220.56 2,591 .45
Cash and cash equivalents 13 524.73% 29410
Other Bank Balances 14 2.7 743
Loans Q 2774 29.48
QOther Current Assets 15 2,347.22 3.675.20
14 B48.63 14,918.39
Total Assets 19,729.74 19,870.51
1L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 16 &24.00 624.00
Qther Equity 17 10.438.84 B.697.35
11,062 84 2,321.35
LIABILITIES
Mon Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowing 18 355.13 35517
Deferred Tax Liabilities |MNet) e 83.77 6431
3R 00 41948
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Short-Term Barrowings 22 3.235.48 4,529.39
Trade Payables M 333204 3,840.48
Other Financeal Liabilities 22 40416 438.63
Other Current Liabilities 23 1,243.6% 1.297.70
Provisions 24 12.59 43.48
846690 10.R49.14
Total Equity and Liabilities 19.729.74 19,870.51
Significant Accounting Policies 3

['he accompanying nates are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

fs perour Report of even date,

For 5, K. Singhania & Co, For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 302206E

Rajesh Singhania AK. Mall G.K.Mall

Partner Chairman & Managing Director  Directar

Membership Mo, 52722 [ - oog7ar 84) |DIM ; o1 043022

Place: Kolkata 5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Date: 290 June, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
IACS - 42302
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2020

R in Lakhsl
siﬂw m mmﬁm
INCOME
| Revenue from operations 25 28,7469.09 30,078,748
Il Othar income 24 £5.84 18.73
I TOTAL INCOME 28,814.95 30,097.4%
IV EXPEMSES
Cost of materials consumed 274 156,01 621 17.229.87
Purchase of Traded Goods 278 1,858.91 2,003.73
Changes in inventories of finished goods; wark-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 28 {295.53] [247.68)
Employee Benefit Expense 0 1.313.86 1.247.30
Finance Costs a0 2B 68 394,71
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5&4 503.30 54517
Manufacturing and other Operational Expense 3 6,355.98 6,234.90
Other Expenses 31/al 368,30 RO0,54
TOTAL EXPENSES 26,437.71 27,828.55
W Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 2,377.24 2,269.00
Prier Period llem
Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems 152.9% -
Profit before tax 2,530.23 2,26%.00
Vi Tax Expense
Current tax s90.17 77854
Deferrad 1ax 1827 895
Incormne Tax for Earlier Years 35 &1 [5.14]
653.05 782.37
1,877.19 1.486.63
Add; Adjustment for MAT Credit Receivable [11.24] [12.48]
Wil PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,888.43 1,699.11
Less: Non Controlling Interest - -
Wil PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,888.43 1,499.11
1% OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Iterns that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
income Tax relating to items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Fair value of Investmenl / Exchange difference on transaction of fareign
operations a3 [o) 23.80 117.53
Income Tax relating ta these items [6.00] l31.56)
Iterns that will not be reclassified to prafitor loss [Re-meazurement of
post employment benefit obligations| {12.09] [14.28)
Income Tax relating to these items 4.80 523
3.51 75.84
X TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 1.891.94 1,574.95
(Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the Period)
Xl Earning per equity share of * 10 each [in ") 38
Cash a9 68 34.11
Baszic & Diluted 30284 24.02
Significant Accounting Policies a
The accompanying nates are an integral part of the Financial Statements,
As per aur Report of even date
For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 302204E
Rajesh Singhania ALK Mall G.K.Mall
Partner Chairman & Managing Director  Director

Membership Mo. 52722

Place: Kalkata
Date: 291N June, 2020

[DIN : 00470184

5.5.Agrawal

Chiaf Financial Officer

DIDID)

[DIN : o1043022)

5. Purllujrntha
|:|:|n"||:|.‘=‘|117:,r JE'LTE‘-.:H':,'
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March, 2020

A. | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary ltems 2,377.24 2,268.78
Adjustments for :
Balances Written Back [Net) 242 5.98
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 546330 56515
Finance Costs 256.68 33620
Interest Income (3.7 [5.04]
Extracrdinary [tem
Net [gainl/losson Fair Valuation of Current Investments 1529 =
Remeasurement Gain of DBO/DBP - 7
Profil on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment |Netl/Assets Written Off (351) 6813 902.29
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,171.07
Adjustments for :
lincreasel/Decrease in Inventaries (797.60) 1285131
lincreasel/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 241405 1.527.70|
Increase/[Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables & Provisions (551.73) 1,06472 1.449.75 |363.08]
Cash generated from Operations 4,470.09 2,807.99
Direct Taxes paidl Net of Refunds) 641 81 672.67
Net Cash from Operating Activities :
B. | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 367 5.04
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment [Netl/Assets
Wnitten Off - -
Purchase of Praperly, Plant and Equipmenis
[Including Capital Work-in-Progress and Advances| 558211 (853.31]
Purchases/Precceeds from sale of Investments 11,580.34) {2.134.88| |520.18) 368451
Net Cash from/ (Used in] Investing Activities 12,134.88) l1.368.f%f
c. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long Term Loans (0.04) -
[Repayment|/ Praceeds from Shert Term Borrowings lt.293:) l179.451
Interest and Financial Charges Paid [256.48} 1336201
Dividend and Tax paid thereon [Intenim, special and Finall 15045 {1 40018l 1 50.45] (66610
Net Cash from/ (Used in) Financing Activities (1,400.18) (666.1
Net Increase/(Decreasel in cash or cash equivalents [A+B+C) 23322 100.77
Cash or Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 301.53 200.76
Cash or Cash equivalents at the end of the year 534.44 301.53
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
1 Reconcillation of Financial Liabilities arising from Financing Activities
Particulars Opening Balance Financing Cash Flow Changes Non-Financing Cash Flow Changes Closing Balance
As at 31.03.2019 Principal Repayment | _Fair Value Changes Forex Changes | As at 31.03.2020
Short Term Borrowings 4.529.39 - 12937 - - 3.435.48
Long term Borrowings 5817 #5117
2] Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not hifurcated between investing and financial activities.
3l  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.
4l For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises the followings:
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Balances with Banks 522 2924
Cash in Hand 1243 912
Total 534.44 301.53
As per our Report of even date,
For S. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302206E
Rajesh Singhania A.K.Mall 6.K.Mall
Partper Chairman & Managing Director  Director

Membership No, 52722

Place: Koﬁkata
Date: 290 June, 2020

114

[DIN : 004701 84)

55 al
Chief Financial Officer

{DIN : 01 043022|

3 Pwaklg:dhu
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31st March, 2020

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL [Refer Note 14)

Equily Shares of ¥ 1 Deach, 1ssued, subscribad and Tully paid-up

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

[Tin hI

As at 01.04.2020 6,240,000 624.00
Asat 31.03.2019 6,240,000 624.00
B. OTHER EQUITY [Refer Note 17)
For the year ended 31st March, 2020
[T in Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2019 401.49 1,268.12 7,375.00 (347.26) 8,697.35
Prafit for the Current Year - . - 1.888.43 1.888.43
Comprehensive Income for the year - - - .51 3.51
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - . 1.891.94 1.891.94
Transfer to/ [from| Retained Earnings - 1,600.00 [1.400.00] -
Remeasurement of DBR/DBO/ Investment - . - -
Dividend -~ - - [124.80] (124.80)
Dividend Distribution Tax - - - 25.65 [25.65]
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2020 401.4% 1,268.12 B8,975.00 (205.77) 10,438.84
For the year ended 31st March 2019
|7 in Lakhs)

1,268.12

(367.24)

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2018 401.49 5,975.00 | 7,277.37
Profit for the Current Year - - - 145511 -
Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 75.84 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year e - - 1.574.95 1.574.95
Transfer to/ [fraom| Retained Earnings - - 1,400.00 [1,400.00] -
Remeasurement of DBP/DBO/Investment - - (4.52] (4.52]
Dividend - - - [124.80] [124.80]
Dividend Distribution Tax - - - (25.65] [25.65]
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2019 401.49 1,268.12 7,375.00 [347.28) 8,697.35

As per our Report of even date.

For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firmn Registration Mo, 302206E

Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Membership Mo, 52722 [OIM : oog701 84 [CIM - 01 043022)

Placa: Kolkata 5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Date: 26th June, zoz0 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

[ACS : 42302]
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MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

Group Information

Mallcom [India) Limited [MIL or "the Company'] is a public
Limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
|ndia. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited, which is a
recognized stock exchange in India, The registered office
of the Campany Is located at EN-12, Sector-Y, Sall Lake
City, Kolkata-700091.

These consolidated financial statements [CFS] are
approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting dated 29th June 2020, The
comprise of the financial statements of Mallcom [India)
Limited and its subsidiaries - Mallcom Safety Pet. Lid.

and Mallcom VSFT Gloves Pvt, Ltd. which are incorporated
in India. The effect of intra group transations between
the company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on
Consolidation.

The Group is engaged in the manufacture, export and
distribution of a2 wide range of Persenal Protective
Equipment [PPE).

For Company's Principal Share Holders reffer note no.
1é.

2. Principles of Consolidation

The Subsidiaries censidered in the preparation of these
Censolidated Financial Staterments are;

Mallcom Safety Pyt, Ltd Dezalers in Personal

Protactive Equipment] PPE] India 100 100
Mallecom VYSFT Gloves Pyt, Ltd Manufacturer & Exporter of

Mitrile Dipped & Other

Synthetic Gloves India 100 ile]

al

bl

cl

d]

al
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The Conseclidated Financial Statements of the Group are
prepared on following basis:

The Consolidated Financial Staterments are prepared in
accordance with Ind A5 110- Conseolidated Financial
Staterments” natified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with rule 7 of theCompanies
[Accounts) Rules, 2014,

The Financial Statements of the Company and its
Subsidiary Companies are combined an a line-by-line
basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after eliminating Intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions and resulting
unrealized profits or losses in accordance with Ind AS
1o

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared
using unifarm accounting policies for like transactions
and ather events in similar circumstances and are
presented in the same manner as the Company's
Standalane Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements of the Company and its
Subsidiaries used in the consaolidation are drawn up to
the same reparting date i.e. 31 st March, 2020,

Significant accounting policies
Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on

historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
insurance claims which are accounted far on
cashfacceptance basis due to uncertainty of realization.

The financial staternents are presented in Indian Rupees
["IMR") and all values are rounded ta the nearest Lakhs,
except otherwise indicated.

bl Subsidiaries

I, Subsidiaries are entities overwhich the Group has control
and the Control is achieved when the group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its:

lal Power over the investee

|b] Exposure or rights to variable returns from its
invalvermnent with the investee

el The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
cantrol over the subsidiary 1s acguired and they are
discontinued from the date of cessation of contraol,

i, The Group combines the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries based on a line-by-line
consolidation by adding together the book value of like
items of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses as
per the respective linancial statements. Intra group




Vi,

cl

dl

balances, intra group transactions and the unrealized
profits on stocks arising out of intra group transaction
have been eliminated.

The cansclidated financial staterments are prepared using
uniform accounting policies for similar material
transactions and other events in similar circumstances
otherwise as stated slsewheare.

The difference between the costs of investment in the
subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acguisition
of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital
reserve as the case may be. The said goodwill is not
amortised, however it is tested for impairment at each
balance sheet date and impairment loss, if any is
recagnized in the consclidated financial statements.

Mon-controlling interest’s share of net profit of
subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against
the revenue af the Group in order to arrive at the net
revenue attributable to the owners of the Company. The
excess of loss for the year over the non-controlling
interast is adjusted in owner's interest,

Men-controlling interest’s share of net assets of
subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate fram liabilities and
the eguity of the Company’s shareholders.

Non-controlling Interest

Mon-controlling interests represent the proportion of
incame, ather comprehensive income and net assets in
subsidiaries that is not attributable ta the Company's
OWnNeErs.

Man-controlling interests are initially measured at
prapertionate share on the date of acquisition of the
recognised amounts of the acguiree’s identifiable net
assets. Subseguent to the acguisition, the carrying
amount of the non-centralling interests is the amount
of the interest at initial recognition plus the proportionate
share of subsequent changes in eguity.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost [ess
accumulated depreciation/amartization and impairment,
if any. Freehold land not containing mineral reserve is
disclosed at cost less impairment, if any. Cast comprises
of purchase price and directly attributable cost of
acquisition/bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use (net of credit availed, if anyl, When
significant parts of the plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals the company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Capital
work in progress is carried at cost and directly
attributable expenditure during construction period which

Flant & Machinery 13 Years
Building 28 Years
Electric Installations 13 Years
Mould & Dies 13 Years
Furniture & Fistures 8 Years
Vehicles & Years
Offica Equipment 3 Years
Computers 1 Years
Computer License 4 Years
Patent Right 4 Years
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is allocated to the property, plant and equipment an the
completion of project.

Borrewing costs directly attributable to the
acquisitionfconstruction of a gualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset till such time
the asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing
costs are recognized as an expense in Lhe peried inwhich
they are incurred,

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on written down value method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
Froparty are deprecaled over their expected lease larms,
Mo depreciation is charged on Freehold land. Estimated
useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values and
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amartization and impairment, if any. Cast comprises of
purchase price and directly attributable caost of
acquisition/bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use [net of credit availed, if any)
Amartization is provided an a written down value method
over estimated useful lives,

The residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible assel are measured as the difference
between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
attributable cost of acquisition/ bringing the asset toits
working condition for its intended use [net of credit

FEPP IR,
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availed, if any]. Such assets, are amortised over the
uzeful life using straight line method and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication of the same.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
and are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
reporting date,

Derecognition of Tangible and Intangible assets

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
its use or disposal Gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each
balance shest date il there is any indication of impairment
based oninternal & external factors. &n impairment loss
is recognized wherever the carrying amounts of an asset
excesd ils recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value al the
weighted average cost of capital, Reversal of impairment
loss is recognized immediately as Income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities [financial
instruments) are recognized when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual pravisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial Liabilities are initially
measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable Lo the acquisition er issue of financial assels
and financial liabilities [other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets ar financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified
as current, if they are expected to be realised or settled
within eperating cycle of the Group or otherwise these
are classified as non-current.

The classificatian of financial instrurments whether to be
measured at Amaortised Cost, at Fair Value through Profit
and Loss [FVTPL] or at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income [FYTOC!] depends on the abjactive
and contractual terms ta which they relate. Classification
of financial instruments are determined on initial
recagnition.

V.

Cash & Cash equivalents

Cash & Cash eguivalents consist of Cash an Hand, Cash
at Bank, Term Depasits & Chegues in Hand. All highly
liguid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject
toan insignificant risk of change in value and are having
original maturities of three months or less from the date
of purchase, are cansidered as cash eguivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which
are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective
is to hold these assets in arder to collect contractual
cash flows and the cantractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest an the principal
arnount outstanding are measured at amortised cost,

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
subsequent to initial recognition are measured at
amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate [EIR] method,

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts [including
all fees and points paid or received, lransaction casls
and other premiums or discounts] thraugh the expected
life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the
gross carrying amaunt of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of Tinancial Uability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognitian.

Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income [FYTOCI]

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recagnized directly in other comprehensive incame.

For the purpose of para lii| and liii} above, principal is
the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and interast consists of consideration for the time value
of money and associated credit risk.

Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through
profit or loss

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria
of ameortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are classified as Fair Value
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through Profit and loss, These are recognised at fair
value and changes therein are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derivative and Hedge Accounting

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
such as foreign exchange forward, swap and option
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates in respect of financial instruments and
forecasted cash flows denominated in certain foreign
currencies. The Group uses hedging instruments which
provide principles on the use of such financial derivatives
consistent with the risk management strategy of the
Group, The hedge instruments are designated and
documented as hedges and effectiveness of hedge
instruments to reduce the risk associated with the
exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at
inceplion and on an angoing basis.

Any derivative that is either not designatad as a hedge,
or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109
“Financial Instruments” is categorised as a financial
assel, at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs attributable are also recognised in Statement of
prafit and loss. Changes in the fair value of the derivative
hedging instrument designated as a fair value hedge are
recagnised in the Statement of profit and Loss,

Changes in the fair value of the derivative haedging
instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented
within equily as cash flow hedging reserve to the extent
that the hedge is effective.

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria
ler hedge accounting, expires or is sald, terminated or
exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. Any gain or loss recagnised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in eguity till
that time remains and thereafter to the extent hedge
accounting being discontinued is recognised in Staternent
of prafit and loss. When a forecasted transaction is na
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
accumulated in equily is transferred to the Stalement af
prefit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial assel is assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date. A financial asset is considerad to be
impaired if objective svidence indicates that one or more
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset,

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial
asset at an amount equal to the Lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recagnition. IT the
credit risk ana financial instrument has not increased

viii.
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significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that
result in relation to revenue frem contracts with
customers, the Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount egual to lifetime expected credit losses.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognises a financial asset or a group af
financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of pwnership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset [except for equity
instruments designated as FVTOCI], the difference
betwean the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideralion received and receivable are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income FYTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
camprehensive incame is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment,

Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's
obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled. The difference between the
carrying amaunt of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recagnized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue recognition
Sales

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with
delivery.

Export Benefits

Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods
in the year of export if the entitlements can be estimated
with reasonable accuracy and canditions precedant to
claim is fulfilled.

Interest & Dividend

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking
inte account the amount oulstanding and the rate
applicable.

Dividend income is recognized when the sharehaolders’
right to receive payment is established by the balance
sheet date.

FEPD IR
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Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

Frovisions are recognized when an enterprise has a
present obligation as a result of past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Frovisions are not discounted to its present value and
are determined based on best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date, They are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates

Contingent Liahilities are not pravided for and are
disclosed by way of notes to the financial staterments
when there is & possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the eccdrrence or non-accurrence of one or maore
uncertain future events not whally within the control of
the Group or when there is a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an sutflow of resources will be required Lo seltle
the same or a reliable estimate of the amaunt in this
respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are nol recagnised but disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements by way of notes to
accounts when an inflaw of econamic benefits is probable.

Foreign Currency Transaction

Foreign currency transaclions are recorded in the
reparting currency prevailing at the date af the
transaction. Realized gains/ losses on foreign exchange
transactions during the year are recognized in the
Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are translated at the yearend rates and resultant
gains/losses from foreign exchange translations are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Forward Exchange Contracts not intended far trading or
speculation purposes.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of
forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or
incame over the Llife of the contract. Exchange differences
on such contracts are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or
renswal of forward exchangs contract is recognised as
income or expense for the year,

Equity Share Capital

Anequity instrument is a contract that evidences residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded
as share capital and the amount received in excess of
par value is classified as Securities Premium

m)
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Costs directly attributable to the issue of ardinary shares
are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects,

Inventories

|nvantaries are valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value, Cosl of inventaries is ascertained on 'FIFD basis,
Materials and cther supplies held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the related finished products are expected to be
cold at or above caost,

Raw Materials, Stores and spares

These are valued at the lower of cost and estimatad nel
realizable value, after providing for cost of obsalescence
and other anticipated losses, wherever, considered
I'IE"I:ESSEF}I'.

Work-in-pregress and Finished Goods

These include cost of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventaries Lo their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on First in First aut [FIFO)
basis.

Leases
Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, atinception of a contract, A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for & period of time in exchange
for cansideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: |i] the contract involves the
use of an identified asset, [ii] the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset through the period of the lease and (il the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset, At
the date of commencement of the lease, the Campany
recognizes a right-of-use asset [TROU") and a
corresponding lease Liability for all lease arrangements
inwhich it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less [short-term leazes) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense oan a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Certain lease arrangements includes the options
to extend ar terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when itis reasonably certain that they will
be exaercised. The right-of-use assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease Liability adjusted for any lease payments
rade at or prior to the cornmencemeant date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives,
They are subsequently measured at cost less
accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses, ROU
assets are depreciated from the commencement date
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on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying assel. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recaverability whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount lie. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use| is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are targely
independent of those fram other assets, In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Ganerating Unit [CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified
as a finance or aperating lease. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease, All other leases are classified as
operating leases. When the Company is an intermediate
lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately, The sublease is classified as a
finance ar operating lease by reference to the ROU asset
arising fram the head lease, For aperating leases, rental
incame is recognized on a straight-line basis aver the
term of the relevant lease, Company adopted Ind AS 114
on Leases wefi1stAprilzm g

Taxation

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax
expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is
recognized in the income statement except to the extent
that it relates to items recagnized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tayx,

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected o be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are these that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.Current
incame tax relating to items recognised cutside profit
or loss is recognisad outside profil or loss {either in
other comprehensive income ar in equity], Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
requlations are subject to interpretation and eslablishes
provisions where appropriate. Current tax assets and
liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realise the asset and settle the Liability ona net basis
or simultaneously,

Deferred tax is provided on tempaorary differences
between the Lax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amaunts for financial reparting purpeses at the
reporting date, Deferred tax liabilities are recognised

pl
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for all taxable temporary differences.Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assel lo be
recovered.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised ar the liability is
setiled, bazed on tax rates [and tax laws| that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss [either in ather
comprehensive income or in equity| Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax Liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to lthe same laxable entity and the same taxation
autharity.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits, such as salaries, wages,
incentives etc. are recognized as expenses at actual
amounts, in the Staternent of Profit and Loss of the year
in which the related services are rendered. Leave not
availed ina year can be carried forward up to 30 days.

Defined Contribution Plans

Defined contribution plans are Provident Fund Scheme,
Employee State Insurance Scherme and Government
administered Pensian Fund Scheme for the employees,
The company makes monthly contributions towards these
funds / schemes, which are recognized in the Statement
af Profit & Loss in the financial year to which they relate,
There is no obligation other than the manthly
contributions.

Defined Benefit Plans

The company has a defined benefit plan for Post-
employment benefit in the form of Gratuity for all
employees. Contribution on account of gratuity payment
is made to the Gratuity Trust. Liability for above defined
benefit plan is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation,
as at the Balance Sheet date. The actuarial method used
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far rmeasuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit
method. Actuarial gain and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in other comprehensive
incorme.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the
net prafit or loss after tax for the year attributable to
Equity Shareholders [after deducting attributable taxes]
by the weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the year, The weighted average
numbers af equity shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for events of bonus issue, bonus elements
in a right issue to existing shareholders and share splits.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equily sharehalders and the weightled average number
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting

Segment is identified and reported laking inlo account
the nature of products and services, the different risks
and returns and the integral business reporting systems.
The Group's primary business segment is Industrial
Safety Products. The Industrial Safety Products business
incorporates product groups’ viz. Leather hand Gloves,
Industrial Work Garments, Seamless Knitted Gloves,
Leather Shoe Upper, Safety Shoes and Nitrile Dipped
Gloves, which mainly have similar risks and returns.
Thus the Group's business activity falls within a single
primary business segment.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cesl comprises of interest and other costs
incurred in connection with the borrowing of the funds.
All borrowing costs are recognised in the Staterment of
Profit and Loss using the effective interest methad.

Investments

|nvestments that are readily realizable and intended to
be held for net more than a year are classified as current
investment. All other investments are classified as lang
term investrments, Current Investments are carried at
lower of cost and fair value determined on individual
investment basis. Lang-terms investments are carried
at cost. & provision of diminution is made to recognize
a decline, other than temporary, in the value of lang-
term investments,

Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key
sources of estimation and uncertainty

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements
in confermity with the measurement principle of Ind AS
requires managemeant to make estimates, judgments

and assumptions, These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and
reparted amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Accounting estimates could change from period
to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognised
in tha year in which the results are known /materialized
and, If material, their effects are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements,

Application of accounting policies that require sigmificant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
and the use af assumptions in the consolidated financial
staternents have been disclosed below., The key
assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
ta the carrying amount of assets and Liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below

Depreciation / amortisation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment / intangible assets.

FProperty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets are
depreciated/amortised on straight-line/written down
value basis over the estimated useful lives [or lease
term if shorter] in accordance with Group accounting
policy, taking into account the estimated residual value,
wherever applicable.

The Group reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and
Intangible Assets whenever there is objective evidence
that the assets are impaired. In such situation Asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of
asset's or cash generating units [CGU| fair value less
cost of disposal and its value in use, In assessing value
in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted
using pre-tax discount rates which reflect the current
assessment of time value of money, In determining fair
value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations
are considered or otherwise in absence of such
transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation { amartisation and amount of impairment
expense to be recorded during any reparting pericd. This
reassessmeant may result in change estimated in future
periads.



Arrangements containing leases and classification of
leases

The Group enters into service { hiring arrangements for
various assets / services. The determination of lease
and classification of the service/hiring arrangement as
3 finance lease or operating lease is based on an
assessment of several factors, including, but net limited
to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease
term, lesses’s oplion to purchase and estimated certainty
of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to
the asset’s econamic life, proportion of present value of
minimurn lease payments ta fair value of leased asset
and extent of specialised nature of the leased assel.

Claims and Compensation

Claims including insurance claims are accounted for on
determination of certainty of realisation thereof,

Impairment allowances on trade receivables

The Group evaluates whether there is any objectlive
evidence that trade receivables are impaired and
determines the amount of impairment allowance as a
result of the inability of the customers to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of
the trade receivables and histarical write-off experience,
I the financial canditions of the trade receivable were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determination of
taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for
income tases,

Deferred Tax for all taxable temporary differences have
been given effect te in the consolidated financial

vi.
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statements. In case of Associates and Joint Venture, the
Group being in a position to control the timing of reversal
of temporary differences and considering the past trend
thers being no possibility of such reversal in near future,
adjustment for deferred taxation against share of profit
attributable to the Group has not been given effect in the
consolidated financial statements.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO]

Critical estimate of the DBO involves a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mertality, discount rate, anticipation of future
salary increases etc. as estimated by Independent Actuary
appeintad for this purpose by the Management. Variation
in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO
amount and the annual defined benefit expenses,

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period
when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated,
The timing of recegnition and quantification of the liability
requires the application of judgemenl Lo existing facts
and circumstances, which can be subject ta change,

Management judgment is required for estimating the
possible autflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations/against the Group as it
is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy,

The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities and
estimation for contingencies are reviewed regularly and
revised to take account of changing facts and
circumstances,
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NOTE 5 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

[Z in Lakhs]

lii | Tangible Assets
1 Leaze Hold Property 4.1 443 172 1712 27.99
2 | Land BOE.AQ - 805.60 = = 2 - | Bog.ég
3 | Building 157970 | 30.24 - | 1.609.94| 32752 | 103m - | 4moal 1478090
4 | Plant and Equipments | 315583 [ 11153 732 | 326004 98942 | 348.25 522 | 133044 | 1.931.65
5 Electrical Installations 22 5.59 - 207N 72.83 3188 - 10471 103.00
& | Mould & Dies 8237 | Tab4 1370 2337 | 2627 - 4£9.64 87.37
7 | Furniture & Fixtures 9143 4,62 9o.05|  44.23 1318 - 574 38.464
8 | Vehicles 5302 - 202 3039 676 - 15 14.87
g | Dffice Eguipments 45.09 &70 - 7% 1459 7.50 - 23.89 27.90
0 | Computer Software J0.66| 1045 . 4§31 2632 B.42 B 3474 6.57
SUB Total [A) 6,069.92 | 243.96 732 | 630458)1 54779 | 54357 522 | 208613 | 422238
NOTE & : INTANGIBLE ASSETS

[T in HhSl

(i} | Intangible Assets
1 Computer License B4.84 - - B4B&| 382 18437 - Rb.AD 2B.37
2 | Patent Right 10,06 - - 10,06 6.57 137 - 794 m
3 | Goodwill 53.B6 - - 43.86 - - 057 = £3.29
SUB Total (B) 138.78 - = | 13B78| 44.69 | 1973 0.57 64.42 73.77
NOTE 7 : CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

29.44

[% in Lakhs]

1 | Plant & Equipment 29044 | 2453 24.52 24.54
2 | Building 13.70 | 265.B8 1373 ‘265.8 - - - 265.85
a Electrical Installations 1.10 107 003 - - - - 0.03
4 | Factory Equipment - 8.05 - 8.05 = 8.05
5 | Computer Saltware 1.40 5.60 1.40 5.80 - - - 5.80

SUB Total [C] 45.64 | 304.26 45.65 304.25 = < = 304.27
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NOTE 8: NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
[Fully paid up except otherwise stated]
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0.0&

(T in Lakhs)

0.06

[nvestment in Government or Trust Securities - -
[MSC Placed with VAT Autharities]
Total = 0.0& - 0.0&

NOTE 9 : FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

{Unsecured and Considered Good) _
1 |Security Deposit & Earnest Money Deposit 78.57 122.60 - -
2 |Loan & Advances to Statf and Workers - - 2794 29.48
Total 78.57 122.60 27.74 25.48
NOTE 10: INVENTORIES (Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value]

[T in Lakhs]

1 |Raw Matenial [Includes Geods in Transit ¥ 479.37 lakhs (As at 31.03.2019 T 217.48 lakhs] 411594 3.824.20
2 |Work-in-Progress 1,183.86 1,325.32
3 |Finished Goods 1.268.47 B16.29
4 |Stares & Spares 1,005.20 B10.07
Total 7,573.48 6,775.88
MNOTE 11 : INVESTMENTS

[Fully paid up except otherwise stated)

I7 in Lakhs)

Investments at Amortised Cost

QUOTED

Bonds

Edelweiss Capital Limited , NCD 100,000 2560 200 61 500 G44.85

Investment in Mutual Fund [Debt]

LAT Triple Ace Bond Fund -Direct -Growth 10.00 541,200 N01E - -

LAT Banking & P5U Bond Fund-Direct-Growth 10.00 1,643,232 a05.08 - -

LA&T Short Term Fund-Direct -Growth 10.00 1,468,640 205.93 - -

L&T Money Market Fund-Direct-Growth 10.00 | 1,485,001 303.99 = =

Mippan India Barking & PSU Bond Fund-Direct -Growth 10.00 | 4,053,205 &1 0.42 - -
1,825.58 =

Total 2,125.1% 944 85

DIDIDIID
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11.1 AGGREGATE CARRYING AMOUNT AND MARKET YALUE OF QUOTED INVESTMENTS

Quoted Investments:

In Bands and Units of Mutual Funds 212519 212519 544.85 544.85
Total 2,125.19 2,125.19 544.85 544.85
NOTE 12 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

1 |Unsecured :

T in Lakhs)

Considered Good 224056 3.591.45
Total 2,220.56 3,591.45
12.1 : AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLE

Fin Lakhsl

Within the credit period 3591 .45
1-180 days past due - =
Maore than 130 days past due Fh.469 -
Total 2,220.56 3,591.45
MOTE 13 : CASH AND CASH EQIVALENTS
[ in Lakhs]

1 |Cashin Hand 12.43 =k

2 |Balance with banks 512.30 2B4.98
Total 524.73 294.10
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NOTE 14 : OTHER BANK BALANCES

1 |Margin Money [Pledged with Bank|* .71 7.43
_ Total 9.71 7.43
* The above amaount is pravided against issuance of Bank Guaraniee by the bank,

NOTE 15 : OTHER ASSETS

(% in Lakhs]

{Unsecured and Considered Good|
1 |Advance Recoverable in cash or in kind* 159,99 45.52
2 |Advance ta Suppliers 61 .62 1.574.14
3 |MAT Credit Receivable q4.47 -
4 |Balance With Revenue Authorities | Indirec! Taxes) 1.581.50 2.043.07
5 |Prepaid Expenses 17.44 1247
Total 2,357.22 3,675.20

* Includes amaunt receivable fram Related Parties

NOTE 14 : SHARE CAPITAL

[% in Lakhs]

1 |AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

1,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,000.00 1,000.00

2 |ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

62,40,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 624.00 &24.00
Total 5624.00 624,00

16.1 DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES OF THE COMPANY

AJAY KUMAR MALL 1,025,320 16.43 10,25,320 1643

14

2. |KADAMEINI SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED. 2,189,408 35.09 21,890,608 35.09
3. [JAY KUMAR DAGA 12,908,494 20.81 12,98,494 2081
4. |[MALLCOM HOLDIMNGS PRIVATE LIMITED 813,600 .83 8,713,600 9.83

DIDIDDPI 2227
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1462 The campany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vate per share.

16310 the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders,

16.4 A5 no fresh issue or reduction in capital was made during the current year as well as during the previous period,
hence thera is no change in the opening and clasing capital. Accordingly, reconciliation of share capital has naot been
given,

16.5 Agreegate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and bought back shares
during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date:

As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
ML il

16.6The Equity Shares of the company are listed at BSE Limited and the annual listing fees has been paid for the year,

NOTE 17 : OTHER EQUITY
MNature of Reserves
Capital Reserve

A capital reserve represents the amount, being the purchase price lower than the fair market value of the capital assels
acquired by the company and used for the purpose of its business

Securities Premium Reserve

Securities Premium Reserve represents the amount received in excess of par value of equily shares of the Company. The
same, inter-alia may be ulilized by the Company o issue fully paid up bonus shares to its members and buying back the
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

General Reserve

General Reserve represents the reserve created by apportionment of profits generated during the year or transfer from
other reserves either valunlarily or pursuant lo statutory requiremesnts. The same is a free reserve and available for
distribution.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the company.

NOTE 18 : BORROWINGS

(% in Lakhs]

1 I..Insacurn-ll Borrowings

From Others
From Others [Related Parties] an5.13 355.17

Total 355.13 355.17

19 There is no default in repayment of principal and interest thereon
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[¥ in Lakhs]

i Deferred Tax Assets:
Arising on account of:
Expenses allowed for tax purpase when paid [19.25] (9.97]
2 |Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Arising on account of:
Depreciation and Amortization [64.52] 54.34]
Net Deferred Tax Assets/[Liabilities) (83.77) (64.31]

Components of Deferred tax Assets/[Liabilities] as at March 31, 2020 are given below:

Deferred Tax Assets:

Fair Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities |31.94] - |6.00 |37.94]

Provision for post retirement and other employae benefits 10.76 |8.08) - 8.68

Remeasurement of defined benefit abligations .23 - 480 10.03

Total Deferred Tax Assets 9.97 [8.08) [1.201 (19.25)

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Fair Valuation |gainl/loss on Investments - - -

Timing difference with respect to Property, Plant & Equipment

and other intangiable assels |54.34) hoag) - [64.52]

Total Deferred Tax Assets [54.34] 110.19] = [55.76)

MET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ILIABILITIES] [44.31) [18.27] [1.20) [83.77)
NOTE 20 : CURRENT BORROWINGS

1 | SECURED
Loan Repayable on Demand

[ in Lakhs]

Export Packing Credit [Refer Note 20.1) 3.147.66 4,529.39
Packing Credit Foreign Currency Loan |Refer Note 20,1 | B7.82 -
Total 3,235.48 4,529.39

20.1.Demand Loans from Banks are Secured by hypothecation of all present/future stock and receivables, all present/future
fixed assets excluding Land & Building) and Corporate Guarantee by Kadambini Securities Pyt. Ltd. and Mallcom

Holdings Put. Ltd. and further Personal guarantee of Managing Directar,

PIPDIPIIIAN29
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NOTE 21: TRADE PAYABLES

2,752.73

[T in Lakhs]

33250

For Supplying of Goods
For Supplying of Services RTO.41 1517
Total 3,332.14 3,840.48

211 There were no dues outstanding to the suppliers as on 31.03.2020 registered under the Micro, Small and Medium

NOTE 22: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- OTHERS

40416

[ in Lakhs]

Enterprises [Development| Act, 2006, to the extent such parties have been identified from the available documents/
infarmation. Mo interest in terms of such Act has either been paid or provided during the year

438.63

Security Depasit from Customers Vendors & Others
Total 404.16 438.43
NOTE 23: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(% in Lakhs]

Advance From Customers/Suppliers 1121 .48 u 1.5?-r

Sundry Creditor tor Services and Expenses 100.79 H3.87

Statutary Liabilities 21.36 182,26

Total 1.243.63 1.277.70
MOTE 24 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

(7 in Lakhs]

Provision For Employee Benefits

Gratuity 12.50 B.B5

Other Staif Benefit Schemes [Leave Encashment] - 34.63
Total 12.59 43.48
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[T in Lakhs]

Sale of Manufactured Goods
Leather Gloves 4,614.64 482010
Textile Garments 8,490.65 8,787.65
Nitrile Dipped Gloves 210862 3.231.21
Safety Shoes 9.425.37 9.054.14
Shoe Upper 401.73 782.09
Knitted Gloves 128.64 568.04
Helmet / Facemask 49.61 66.59
Uthers 1112 11110
25,430.32 27,520.92

Sale of Traded Goods

Safety Shoes 1,396.03 28570
Nitrile Dipped Gloves 32247 28.50
Leather Gloves 166,27 153.50
Textile Garments 278,68 580.00
Others 33.06 7.50
219651 1.055.20
3 |Service Exports - 9314
4 |Job Work Charges - 26,49
5 |Foreign Exchange Gain 164.38 295.54
6 |Export Incentives 977.88 1,087.45
1.142.26 1,502.64
Total 28,769.09| 30,078.76

PIIDIIIP > AN
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NOTE 246: OTHER INCOME

(T in Lakhs]

3.67

5.04

1 Interest
2 |Profit on sale of Investment 7. -
3 |Unspent Liabilities & Unclaimed balances Written Back 2.42 R.0B
4 |Short Term Capital Gain - 0.44
5 |Other Non Operating Income 12.55 7.27
Total £5.86 18.73
NOTE 27A : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

4,619.07

[Z in Lakhs]

4681 .64

al |Opening Stock
PURCHASES OF RAW MATERIALS AND STORES

1 |Raw Material [Including Carriage Inward] 14,224.98 14, 744.29
Stores & Consumables 1.5B4.94 1,739.22
Packing Materials T09.564 BA3.TO
Sub-total 16,518.28 17.147.30
Closing Stock 512114 £4,619.07
Cost of Materials Consumed 16,0146.21 17.220.87
Total 16,016.21 17,229.87
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NOTE 27B : PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

[% in Lakhs]

Safety Shoes . 1.21.11 1.2&.1

1
2 |Nitrile Dipped Gloves 209,32 27.95
3 |Leather Gloves 104.63 152.75
4 |Textile Garmenis 194,16 567.55
5 [Custom Duty on Purchase - 2.28
6 |Others 209.49 7.01
Total 1,858.91 2,003.73
NOTE 28. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS

(T in Lakhs]

Closing Stock

Wark in Progress 118384 1.340.50 15664

Finished Goods 1,268.47 B08.74 LRD.T3

Traded Goods - 7.55 [7.55]
2.452.33 215679 295.54

Opening Stock

Wark in Progress 1,340.50 252.20 38E.30

Finished Goods B16.30 B47.78 (31.48)

Traded Goods - 913 (.13
2.156,80 180912 347.69

TOTAL [295.53) [347.48)

PEPPIPE PPN
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[ in Lakhs]

1 |Finished Goods

Leather Glaves 31059 20.53
Textile Garments 148.50 58.04
Mitrile Dipped Gloves 140.58 24822
Safety Shoas 34589 13472
Shoe Upper 0530 -
Knitted Gloves 41.35 14.66
Helmets 21 .47 &0.00
Leathers 76.88 -
Personal Prolective Equipments [Others| &0.07 52.57

1,260.92 B0B.74

2 |Work-in-progress

Leather Glaves 103.95 33.00
Mitrile Dipped Gloves - 240.75
Textile Garments 18,83 396,70
Knitted Gloves 208 19.90
Safety Shoes - 24.00
Shoe Uppers 4286 R91.37
Leather 95,24 33.80

1,183.84 1,340.51

NOTE 29: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

[T in Lakhs]

1 |5Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,108.95 1,128.89
2 |Cantribution to Provident and Other Funds o319 48.84
3 |Leave Encashment - {4.80]
& |Stalf Welfare Expenses 217 50,43
Total 1,313.86 1,247.27
NOTE 30: FINANCE COSTS

169.34

¥ in Lakhs]

1 Interest Expenses 336,20
2 |Bank Charges and ancillary borrowing cost 67.34 58.51
Total 256.68 374.7
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NOTE 31 : MANUFACTURING AND OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
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4,234.85

'D?.g

[T in Lakhs]

i Fabrication & Processing Charges
2 |Factory Maintenance Boib &1.85
3 |Labour Charges 348.95 398.88
4 |Freight - Export 122.82 201.28
5 |Terminal Handling Charges - Export 80,26 82.94
& |Clearing & Forwarding expenses 23.63 111.06
7 |Insurance 28.78 21 .46
8 |Carriage Outward 39.m 91a0
9 |Sales Promotion Expenses 318.26 387.08
10 |Trade Fair Expenses 27.43 20.08
11 |Sales Commissian 19,08 32.84
12 |Other selling expenses 145.45 17934
13 |Power & Fuel 3846.27 A15.62
14 |Repairs to Buildings 4.66 20.77
15 |Repairs Lo Plant & Machinery 11047 90,14
14 |Security Charges 56.39 4058
Total 6,355.98 6,234.90
NOTE 31(a) : OTHER EXPENSES

[T in Lakhs]

DIDIDIID

1 |Rent 314 54,88
2 |Postage, Telephone & Telex 12.69 164.31
3 |Travelling & Canveyance 9.27 105.31
4 |Printing & Stationery 1604 20.23
5 |Filling Fees 0.56 1.48
& |Rates & Taxes B.47 10.47
7 |Legal & Professional Fees 55.94 36,84
8 |Membership & Subscription 8.2 1726
2 |Directars’ Sitting Fees 1.72 1.50
10 |Payment to auditors [refer details below) 715 4.87
11 |Miscellaneous Expenses 21140 140.40
12 |Loss on Fareign Exchange Fluctuation [Met) - 0.88
13 |Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.33 -
14 |VAT for earlier Years - 3.90
15 |AMC Charges 2.25
16 |ESI Paid far earlier Years - 1.55
17 |Consultancy Fees - 0.87
18 |General Expenses 2 0.32
19 |lrrecoverable Receivables Written OFF 2.09 68,40
Total 368.30 500.54
Payment to Auditor
As Auditor:
Audit Fee 412 34
Tax Audit Fee 0.50 0.55
Certification Charges 0.80 .85
Other Services 1.73 0.33
Total 7.15 £.87
by W

771,35



malicom$ > >>>> >0

NOTE 32 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CLAIMS/DEMANDS NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBT)

(T in Lakhs]
al Contingent Liabilities

Export bills duly discounted/negotiated under LC and for which acceptance already
received and/or moved ta bank line |previous years figures relates to Bill drawn
under LC onlyl 158.60 68952
Outstanding Bank guarantee issued by SBI and CIT| Bank 22.41 5.00
Band under customs issued in the favor of Assistant Commissianer of Customs
covering the purchase of imported / indigenous capital goods/ raw materials without
payment of Custom duty with respect to 100% E.O.U. for Manufacture of Safety Work
Garments 250,00 250.00
Bond cumn Legal undertaking issued in favour of Development Commissioner
Indigenous capital goods/ raw materials without payment of
Custom duty with respect to 100% FSEZ unit 395.00 395.00
Sales Tax demand in respect of earlier years, Which has been disputed
by the company 329.86 2.80
Income Tax Demand in respect of earlier years, which has been disputed
by the company 86.21 124.79
Service Tax Demand in respect of earlier years which has been disputed
by the company 2950 31.88
Indemnity Bond 290.85 200.85

bl The company has the following outstanding export forward cantracls against the confirmed arders in hand hence no
contingent liability has been estimated

uso

EURO

23,71.82818133.10,315.35
24,28,332 45 | 29.95,800.1 0

NOTE 33: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS [REFER NOTE 29)

{a) Contribution to defined Contribution Plans recognized as expenses are as under:-

(% in Lakhs]

1 |Providend Fund 55.52 3.70
2 |ESIC 19.58 19.92
Total 75.50 51.62

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity - The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has campleted five years or more
of service is entitled to Gratuity as per provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded through

approved gratuity trust and is managed by HOFC Standard Life Insurance Co Lid.
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Disclosure for defined benefit plans based on actuarial reports:

[¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars For the year | For the year
31,03.2020 | 31.03.2019
Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations:
Present value of deflined benelit obligation at the beginning of the year 107.54 80.70
Current Service Cost 11.30 021
Interest Cost 7.24 t.26
Remeasurements |gains|/losses 618 15.47
Benefits paid |3.18] [4.09]
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 129.09 107.55
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 8844 B5.4
Expected Return on Plan Assets 5.97 b.62
Remeasurements |gainsl/losses [12.92] 0.51
Contributions 8,85 -
Benelils paid 3.18] [4.0%]
Fair value of plan assels at the end of the year 87.16 88.44
Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 88.44 85.40
Actual Return on plan assets [6.95] T3
Contributions 8.85 -
Benefits Paid 13,18 [4.09]
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 87.14 B8.44
Actuarial [Gain)/Loss on Planned Assets:
Actual Return an plan assets (6.95] 713
Expected Return an Plan Assets 15.97| [6.62]
Actuarial [Gain)/Loss [12.92] 0.51
Actuarial [Gain)/Loss recognized:
Actuarial [gainffloss- obligation 16.18] [15.47]
Actuarial [gain)floss- plan assets [12.92] 0.51
Total Actuarial [Gainl/Loss [19.09] 114.96]
Actuarial |Gain)/Loss recognized [19.09] (14.98)
Outstanding actuarial [gain)/loss at the end of the year
Experience adjustment:
Experience Adjustment {Gainl/Loss for Plan Liabilities 2.07 15.47]
Experience Adjustment (Gainl/Loss for Plan Assets 12,92 [o.51]
Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:
Murmber of ermployees 365 354
Total manthly salary 27.23 24.23
Average Past ServicelYears) 8.50 B.20
Average Future Service|Years| 20.40 21.40
Average AgelYears) 39.40 38.40
Weighted average duration |based on discounted cash flaws| in years 13 13
Average Monthly Salary 7,460 6,806
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss
Currant Service Cost 11.30 022
Interest Cost 726 6,25
Expected Return on Plan Assets I5.97 [6.62]
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss 12.59 8.85

b1
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Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial [gainsl/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Total recegnized in Other Comprehensive Income

Total recegnized in Total Comprehensive Income

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet consists of

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Met Liakility

The Major Categories of Plan Assets as a % of Total Plan

Qualifying Insurance Palicy

(T in Lakhs]

41.93 19140
41.93 19.10
54,52 27.95
129.09 107.54
87.14 BE.44
41.93 1900
100% 100%

The Principal actuarial assumption used:

Discounl Rate

Salary Growth Rate
Mortality Hate

Expected Rate Of Return

Withdrawal Rate [Per Annum)

6.75%
pEr annum
5.00%

per annum
|ALM 2006-08
Lltimate
7.75%

per annum
495% pa

7.75%
perannum
5.00%
pErannum
IALM 2004-08
Ulitimate
7.75%

FEr annum

bgrt%pa

The estimates of future salary increases have been considered in actuarial after taking into consideration the impact of
inflation, Senicrity, promotion and other relevant factors suchas supply and demand situation in the employment market. Same
assumptions were cansidered for comparative periad i.e 201 8-19 as per Ind-A519. The Gratuity Scheme is invested in group
Gratuity cash accurnulation palicy offered by HDFC Life Insuarance Co Ltd, The gratuity plan is not exposed to any significant
risk in view of absolute track record, Investment is as per IRDA guidelines and mechanizm is there to moniter the performance

of the fund.
Benefits Valued:

Salary Terminal Terminal
Basic Satary | Basic Salary

(Excluding |  [Excluding

all other all ather

Allowances Allowance

and and

Perquisites] | Perquisites]

Yesting Period § Years of § Years of
Service Service
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15/26*Salary

Bengfits of Norma Hehremnf
Mumber of Mumber of
Completed |  Completed
Years of Years of
Service Service
Benefit on early exit due to death and disability As above As above
except that | exceptthat
na vesting na vesting
conditions conditions
apply apply
Lirnit 2,000,000.00 [ 2.000,000.00

Current Liability:

Current Liability 2850 20.0%
Man Current Liability 10059 78.46
Total Liability 126.00 107.55

* Because of Dverfunding

* Current Liabitity: It is probable outlay in next12 manths as required by the Companies Act

Sensiti __

Impa_l on I:_IEfir_ue
Banefit Obligation
(Tin Lakhsl 75.78

B1.53

7975

The company expects to contribute $12.59 Lakhs [Previous Year ¥ 8.85 lakhs] to gratuity fund.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2020is13 years | as at 31.03.201 9. 15 years|.
Estimate of expected benetit payments [In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted).

D1st April 2020 to 31 st March 2021
015t April 2021 to 31 st March 2022
O1st April 2022 to 31 st March 2023
01 st April 2023 to 31 st March 2024
015t April 2024 to 31 st March 2025
01st April 2025 Onwards

NOTE 34 : SEGMENT REPORTING

[4] The Company’s primary business segment is Industrial Safely Products. The Industrial Safety Products business
incorporates product groups viz, Leather hand Gloves, Industrial Work Garments, Seamless Knitted Gloves, Leather
Shoe Upper, Safety Shoes and Nitrile Dipped Gloves, which mainly have similar risks and returns. Thus the Company’s
business activity falls within a single primary business segment.
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|Bl Far the purpose of geographical segments, total sales are divided into India and other countries. The following table
shows the distribution of the company's sales by geographical market regardless of where the goods are produced;

[T in Lakhs]

Segment Revenue from Operations:

Outside India 18,964.22 20,704,964
Within India 9.804.87 9,367.80
Total 28,76%.09| 30,072.76

{2 in Lakhs]

Trade Receivables:

Outside India 1.940.37 2.966.57
Within India 28019 B4b.47
Tatal 2,220.56 3,513.04

The company has common fixed assets for producing goods for domestic and export markets: Hence, Separate figures for

fixed assets/additions to fixed assets are not furnished.

NOTE 35: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE [AS PER IND AS 24- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES)

al  Associates

il Kadambini Securities Put. Ltd, [KSPL]

il Mallcom Holdings Pyt. Ltd. [MHPL]

iiil Movers Construction Pvt. Ltd. [MCPL]

iv] Chaturbujh irmpesx Pyt, Ltd, [CIPL]

vl DNB Exim Pyt. Ltd. [DNE]

il Two Star Tannery Put, Ltd. [TSTPL]

viil Best Safety Pvt, Ltd [BSPL]

viii] S5R Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. [SSR] [farmerly Vikram Traders Pul, Ltd |
ix] Mallcom Lexotic Exports Pyl. Limited [MLEPL]

x] Anmal Components Put, Ltd. [ACPL]

xi] Trencher Online Services Private Limited [TOSPL]

bl Hey Managerial Personnel

il Mr. Ajay Kumar Mall [Managing Directar|
il Mr. Shyam Sundar Agrawal [Chief Financial Officer]

iiil Ms. Shuvanki Purkayastha [Company Secretary)
[Ms. Twinkle Pandey in FY. 2018-2019]

cl Relatives of Key Managerial Persanneal

il Mr. Sanjay Kumar Mall
il Mrs. Sunita Mall

il Mr. Giriraj Mall

ivl Mr, Rahit Mall

vl Ms, Kiran Devi Mall

vil Mrs. Preeti Mall

viil Ms. Surabhi Mall
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d] Transaction with related parties during the year and balance outstanding at the year end:

(Xin Lakhs)

Sale of goods & services 774.80 | 1,065.59 = = g i

Purchase of goods & services 2,994.62 1 3,410.24 - = - -
Jab Wark Charges paid - - - - - -
Advance Given - - - - - -
Security Deposit/ Advance a05.38 9.07 - - - -
Unsecured Loan & Advance Repaid 3 7.9 - - - .
Remuneration ** 4 - 56,81 52.27 = 10.20
Dividend Paid 75.07| 7507 0.5 20.51 6.75 6.75
Rent [including service charges| Paid 54.00 54.00 - = - L

=*fs the future liability of gratuity is provided on actuarial basis for the company as a whale, the amount pertaining to the related
party is not included above.

e] Details of compensation paid to KMP during the year are as follows:

rﬂ Lakhs]

Short-term employee benehts 318 58,77
Fost-employment benefits® 3.63 3.50
Other leng-terrm benefite® - -

* Past-emplayment benelits and other long-term benefits have been disclosed based on actual payment made on retirement/resignation
of services, but does not includes provision made on actuarial basis as the same is available for all the employees together,

NOTE 3&: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

i

1 Current Tax 59017 77854

2 Deferred Tax
- Relating to origination and reversal of temparary differences 18.27 8.95
Tax Expense attributable to Current Year's/Period's Profit 8617.44 787.51

3 Adjustments in respect of Income Tax of Earlier Years 35.61 |5.14)
Income Tax Expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss £53.05 782.01
Current Tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
during the year/period

& Net [gainl/Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plan [4.52] 2473
Income Tax Charged to Other Comprehensive Income [4.52)
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NOTE 37: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows:-
[T in Lakhs]

Financial Assets [Current and Man-Current]
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
|Loans
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss Account
Investment in Equity Instrumants and Bonds
Financial Liabilities [Current and Non-Current]
Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Borrowings
Trade Fayahles
Other Financial Liabilities

) Y
.'. r g
N

2,220.56 2,220,564 309145 3.591.45
524,73 524,73 294,10 294.10
.71 8.7 743 T.43
10691 104,31 152,74 151.76
202516 212519 R45.24 545.24
3.590.01 3.590.61 4,884 54 4,884 56
3.332.14 333204 3.840.48 384048
L0406 404148 43B.43 4£38.63

Fair Valuaton Techniques

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used Lo estimate
the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, current trade
receivables and payables, current financial liabilities and assets
and borrowings appraoximate their carrying amount largely
due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The
managerment cansiders that the carrying amounts of financial
assels and financial liabilities recagnised at nominal
cost/amortised cost in the financial stalements approximate
their fair values,

& substantial portion of the company's lang-term debt has
been contracted at floating rates aof interest, which are reser
at short intervals. Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings
approximates their carrying value subject to adjustments made
for transaction cost. In respect of fixed interest rate borrawings,
fair value is determined by using discount rates that reflects
the present borrowing rate of the company.

Export Receivables

Export Receivables Forward M

Forward 14

Investments [Other than |nvestments in Assaciates, Jaint
Venture and Subsidiaries] traded in active market are
determined by reference to the quotes from the stock exchanges
as at the reporting date. Investments in liquid and short-term
mutual funds are measured using quoted market prices at
the reporting date multiplied by the guantity held, Quated
Investments for which quotations are not available have been
included in the market value al the face value/paid up value,
whichever is lower excepl in case of debentures, bonds and
governmeant securities where the net present value at currant
yield to maturity have been considered, Unguoted investments
in shares have been valued based on the historical net asset
value as per the latest audited financial statements,

Derivative financial assets and liabilities:

The Company follows established risk management palicies,
including the use of derivatives to hedge its exposure ta foreign
fluctuations on foreign currency assets/liabilities. The counter
party in these derivative instruments is a bank and the company
considers the risks of non-performance by the counter party
as nan-malerial.

The following tables present the agreegate contracted principal
armounts of the company’s derjvative contracts outstanding:

237182818
2.428,336.45

LSD/INR
299580010 | ELRO/INR

15.00
17.00

3:310,315.35
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Company's activities and exposed to variety of financial risks.
The key financial risks includes market risk, credit risk and Lguidity
risk, The Company's focus is te foreses the unpradictability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects
on its financial performance. The board of Directors reviews and
approves policies for managing these risks. The risks are goverened
by appropriate policies and procedures and accardingly financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with
the Company's policies and risk objectives.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market
fluctuations resulting invariation in the fair value of future cash
flows af a financial instruments, The major componeants of Market
risks are currency risk, interest rate risk and othar price risk,
Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade
receivables, borrowings, investments and trade and other payables.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Fareign Currency risk that the fair value or tuture cash flows af
an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in fareign exchange
rates. The Company's expesure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's foreign currency
denominated borrowings, trade receivables and trade or other
payables,

The Company has adopled a comprehensive risk manageameant
review system wherein it actively hedges ils fareign exchange
exposures within defined parameters through use of hedging
instrurnents such as forward cantracts, The Company pericdically
reviews its risk management initiatives and also takes experls
advice on regular basis on hedging strategey.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The company’s exposure in market risk relating to change in
interest rate primarily arises from fleating rate borrowing with
banks and financial institutions. Barrowings at fixed interest rate
gxpozes lhe campany fo the fair value inlerest rate risk.

NOTE 38: EARNING PER SHARE [EPS]
A. Basic and Diluted EPS:

Profit or Loss attritutable to ordinary Equity Shareholders

Equity Share Capital

Weighted average number of egquity shares cutstanding

[Face value Rs10/- per share)
Earnings Per Share- Basic and Diluted

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

OTHER PRICE RISK

The Campany's equity exposure in Subsidiaries are carried at
cost or deerned cost and these are subject to impairment testing
as per the palicy followed in this respect, The campany's current
investments which are fair valued through profit and loss are
not material, Accardingly, other price risk of the financial
instrument to which the company is exposed is not expected la
be material.

CREDIT RISK

The cradit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its
cbligations under a financial instrurment or customer contract,
leading to afinancial loss, The cormpany is exposed (o credit risk
from its operating activities fFrimarily trade receivables|. The
rmanragemeant has a credit palicy in place and the exposure to
credil risk is manitored on an ongoing basis. The company
periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking
into account the financial condition, current economic trends
and Ia_g&ing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set
accardingly and the company obtains necessary security including
letter of credits and/ar bank guarantes to mitigate,

The carrying amount of respective financial assets recognised
in the financial statements, inet of impairment losses| reprasents
the company's maximum exposure to credit risk, The
cancentration of credit risk is Limited due to the custormer base
baing large and unrelated. Of the trade receivable balance at
the end of the year {other than subsidiaries], there are no single
customer accounted for more than 1 0% of the accounts receivable
and 10% af revenue as al March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be
ahle 1o zettle ar meel its abligations on lime or at a reasonable

rice. The Company's objective is to maintain cptimum level of

iquidity to meet it's cash and collateral requirements at all
times. The company’s assets represented by financial instruments
camprising of receivables are largely funded against barrowed
funds. The company relies an borrowings and internal accruals
to meet its fund requirements. The current committed line of
credit are sufficient to meet its shart to medium term fund
requirement,

[% in Lakhs]

1,888 43 149911

TinLakhs
T inLakhs &24.00 624,00
Mas., 6,240,000 6,240,000
T 20,26 24.02

B. Cash EPS; |Profit for the year+Depreciation and Amaortisation Expense+Deferred tax)/Weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding-
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NOTE 39: OPERATING LEASES

The company has taken certain premises on lease for 3 years to 99 years. There are no subleases.

[T in Lakhs)
LKAt o' == e £ H a = il-!
Lease payment for the year 13.54

Minimum Lease payment not later than 1 year 13.54
Later than one year but not later than Five years 17.93
Later than Five years A2.a2

NOTE 40: There were no dues putstanding to the suppliers as on 31.03.2020 registered under the Micra, Small and Medium
Enterprises [Devalopment] Act, 2006, to the extent such parties have been identified fram the available documents/
information, Mo interest in terms of such Act has either been paid or provided during the year.

NOTE 41: In the apinion of the management and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value of realization of loans
and advances and other current assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount at which they
are stated in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE &2: Provisions of Section 135 of the Campanies Act, 201 3 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR] is applicable

in case of the company. The Company was required to incur a minimum amount of €22.1 4 Lakhs being twao percent of average
net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding linancial years as calculated as per section 198

of the Companies Act, 201 3. The company has incurred a sum of ¥ 34.00 Lakhs in the year and the excess amount was duly
approved by the CSR Committee, Audit Comittee and the Board. All the expenses have been incurred in cash.

MNOTE &3: Figures less than Rs.50.000 have been shown aclual, wherever statutorily required to be disclosed, as the figures
have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs.

MNOTE &4: The Company has considered the possible effects that may arise out of the still unfelding COVID-19 pandemic on
the carrying amounts of Proparty, Plant & Equipmant, Intangible Assets, Investrments, Inventaries, Trade Receivables etc.

For this purpose the company has considered internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of the
financial results including credit regorts and related information , economic forecasts, market value of certain investments
etc. Based on the current estimates the company doesn’t expect any significant impact on such carrying values.

NOTE 45: The Board of Directors has recommended dividend of ¥ 2/- per equity shares [previous year T 2/-) ot $10/- each
for the year ended 31 st March, 2020

NOTE 46: These Financial Statements have been approved by Board of Directers of the Company on 20th June 2020 for issue
ta the shareholders for there adoption

The accompanying notes are an integral apart of the Financial Statements.

&s per our Report of even date.

For 5. K. Singhania & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo, 302204E

Rajesh Singhania AK.Mall G.K.Mall

Partner Chairman & Managing Directer  Director

Membership Mo, 52722 [DIM : 00470184 [DIM « 01 043022)
5.5.Agrawal 5. Purakayastha

Flace: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 2910 June, 2020 [ACS : 42302)
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